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Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 %Change

Operating Results (millions)
Operating revenue $ 18,041 $ 13,991 28.9%
Reported earnings (GAAP) 1,033 1,249 -17.3%
Operating earnings* 1,558 1,523 2.3%
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,623 2,770 -5.3%

Data Per Common Share
Reported earnings (GAAP) $ 3.00 $ 3.78 -20.6%
Operating earnings* $ 4.53 $ 4.61 -1.7%
Dividends paid $ 2.68 $ 2.60 3.1%
Market value (intraday high) $ 86.97 $ 68.85 26.3%
Market value (intraday low) $ 66.51 $ 60.78 9.4%
Market value (year-end) $ 77.20 $ 67.74 14.0%
Book value (year-end) $ 29.93 $ 33.59 -10.9%
Market to book value (year-end) 2.58 2.02 27.9%

Financial Position (millions)
Total assets $ 52,660 $ 45,418 15.9%
Total debt 18,601 17,448 6.6%
Common shareholders’ equity 10,397 11,426 -9.0%
Equity market capitalization 26,824 23,044 16.4%

Other Statistics (shares in millions)
Return on average common equity–reported 9.7% 11.8%
Return on average common equity–operating* 14.6% 14.4%
Common shares outstanding–average, diluted 344.4 330.5
Common shares outstanding–year-end 347.5 340.2
Number of full-time employees 17,400 16,500

*Based on Non-GAAP Financial Measures. See page 25.

Consolidated Financial Highlights

A straightforward strategy:
On the cover: Dominion was the first out-of-state utility to send crews to the New Orleans area after Hurricane
Katrina struck the Gulf Coast August 29. First our crews restored electricity to the Louis Armstrong 
New Orleans International Airport, a hospital and state trooper headquarters; then they re-strung power lines
in residential neighborhoods near Lake Pontchartrain.

Page 1: Manufacturing—The Manchester Street Power Station in Providence, R.I., is a three-unit, 
432-megawatt combined-cycle facility fired by natural gas with oil back up.

Transportation—Dominion plans to nearly double the storage capacity of the Cove Point liquefied natural gas
facility on the Chesapeake Bay to help meet growing natural gas demand on the East Coast.

Retail—Jeff Geis, one of 18 Dominion foresters who oversee almost 34,000 miles of power lines, ensures 
that tree trimming specifications are being met.
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Make it Move it Sell it

Dominion Resources

Dominion Resources is one of the nation’s leading 

energy companies. We’re traded under the symbol “D” on 

the New York Stock Exchange and are proud to have the 

confidence of more than 450,000 shareholders. We’re 

also privileged to serve nearly 12 million people in nine

states. As one of the nation’s largest producers of natural

gas and electric power, we’re an established wholesale

energy marketer. Our $53 billion asset base includes about

28,100 megawatts of electric generation, 6.3 trillion cubic

feet equivalent of proved gas and oil reserves and nearly

7,800 miles of natural gas transmission pipeline. We also

operate the nation’s largest natural gas storage system

with 950 billion cubic feet of capacity.

 Retail 
•Electric and Gas Distribution

•Unregulated Products and Services

 Manufacturing
•Exploration & Production

•Generation

 Transportation
•Natural Gas Pipeline and Storage

•Electric Transmission
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Dominion from a regulated electric utility into one of the

nation’s premier integrated energy enterprises has been the

highlight of my professional life, even a labor of love.

At year end, our market capitalization stood at nearly

$27 billion, making us the sector’s third-largest. When

I joined this company in 1984, our market cap was about

$2.5 billion. By year end, we were serving more than

five million retail customer accounts in nine states, up from

1.5 million in Virginia and North Carolina in 1984. Our

generation capability exceeds 28,000 megawatts, up from

10,000 in 1984, and our natural gas and oil reserves

stand at 6.3 trillion cubic feet equivalent, up from none

when I first joined the company 22 years ago. We are

the nation’s largest and the world’s third-largest natural

gas storage operator, and we own and operate America’s

busiest liquefied natural gas terminal.

For you, the investor, we’ve produced double-digit total

returns on investment since our groundbreaking merger with

Consolidated Natural Gas Co. in early 2000.

This success would not have been possible without the

energetic management team and the dedicated people who

work at Dominion. They keep the energy flowing 24/7 to our

customers’ homes and businesses. I’ve been privileged to

work with them. They deserve the credit for catapulting

Dominion into the ranks of the world’s largest corporations.

I salute their intelligence, drive and enthusiasm.

I pass the CEO’s baton to Tom Farrell in full stride, know-

ing that Tom will take our company to even higher levels of

performance. Like I was, Tom was trained as a lawyer. Over

the years he learned the ins and outs of our business from

In my younger days, I enjoyed practicing law. But that

experience pales in comparison to the satisfaction

I’ve found in running and growing Dominion, creating

value for you and our fellow investors.

I love a challenge. And leading your company through

a period of unprecedented industry change has not

disappointed. By the late 1990s, several competing schools

of thought were being bandied about by the industry’s

leadership. Each asked: How best to assure future success

in a business beset with rapid change in the political,

regulatory and financial landscape?

As I’ve written to you before, some argued for spin-offs

of generation, some for exclusive focus on core utility

businesses, others for global size and scope. I pushed a

common-sense approach: Build a fully integrated natural

gas and electric power company serving an energy-hungry

region of the United States.

Some said we zigged as others zagged. However you

choose to characterize our recent history, it worked. Thanks

for the confidence in our vision. The transformation of

Dear Fellow Investor

The transformation of Dominion
from a regulated electric utility into
one of the nation’s premier integrat-
ed energy enterprises has been
the highlight of my professional life,
even a labor of love.



the people on the front lines. He is as comfortable in a

power station as he is in state capitols or the corner office. 

To our customers and the communities where we do

business, I offer my thanks for the opportunity to serve you.

Our board of directors has provided unwavering support,

wise guidance and a willingness to try new things in these

often turbulent times.

Finally, I thank you, our shareholders, for your capital

and your trust. I can think of no greater honor. Our nation’s

appetite for energy is robust and growing. Dominion’s strong

fundamentals, rising dividend and steady growth potential

provide compelling reasons to channel more investment

dollars our way.

As your company’s single largest individual shareholder, 

I intend to keep on buying.

Sincerely,

Thos. E. Capps

For you, the investor, we’ve 
produced double-digit total returns
on investment…

Thos. E. Capps Chairman



$1,000 investment on 
December 31, 1994
with automatic reinvestment of dividends.
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1996

East Midlands
acquisition
announced (UK)

Dominion acquired
East Midlands
Electricity, a major
power distributor in
the United Kingdom.
The deal closed in
early 1997.

The Capps Era: 1995-2005
Vision, Opportunistic Outlook Reward Investors

At the close of the 20th century, Capps initiated a strategic

merger with Consolidated Natural Gas Co. to create a

strong, integrated foundation for growth in the company’s

target markets.

Following this transformational merger, Capps continued

to expand Dominion’s asset portfolio, diversify risks, 

lower operating costs and produce solid long-term returns

for our shareholders.

A decade ago, Tom Capps foresaw a new market-

place for BTUs—and did something about it. He

set about positioning Dominion as an energy

leader for the 21st Century.

He first moved the company beyond its Virginia roots by

investing in competitive power projects in the U.S. and Latin

America. He then spearheaded the acquisition of East

Midlands Electricity, a major power distributor in the United

Kingdom, to gain further experience in deregulated markets.

1999

Latin American 
generation
businesses sold

The sale of our Latin
American interests in
1999-2000 helped
shift our strategic
focus to the energy-
intensive Northeast,
mid-Atlantic and
Midwest regions of the
U.S.—home to 40
percent of U.S. energy
demand, some of its
highest prices and, as
a result, some of the
earliest moves toward
industry restructuring.

Virginia Electric
Utility Restructuring
Act (Senate Bill
1269)

Virginia Power was a
principal advocate of 
a bill by the Virginia
General Assembly that
provided a roadmap
for competitive energy
markets.

1998

Profitable sale of
East Midlands

The sale of East
Midlands generated
$647 million in after-tax
proceeds that allowed
us to fund a share 
buyback program and
pursue other investment
opportunities.

1997

Growth of natural
gas and oil portfolio

Dominion joined the
Alberta Hub—a strate-
gic intersection of
regional gas buyers
and sellers. We devel-
oped our marketing
skills and put state-
of-the-art technology
to work.

1995

Growth of interna-
tional merchant
power portfolio

Dominion expanded 
its position as a lead-
ing power producer in
Latin America by
acquiring a hydro-
electric business that
operated two stations
in Bolivia. During this
decade Dominion 
also operated genera-
tion businesses in
Argentina, Peru and
Belize.



$3,841 investment value 
as of December 31, 2005
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2005

Dominion New
England acquisition
(Massachusetts,
Rhode Island)

On January 1
Dominion acquired
three fossil power 
stations in New
England’s high-price
power market, which
is heavily dependent
on natural gas-fired 
generation.

Kewaunee acquisi-
tion (Wisconsin)

The addition of
Kewaunee Power
Station in Wisconsin
expanded and 
diversified our genera-
tion portfolio 
in the energy hungry 
Midwest region.

2003

First commercial
delivery to Cove
Point LNG Facility

In late summer,
Dominion began oper-
ating the Cove Point
LNG facility. Natural
gas in liquid form 
is pumped from 
ships at its offshore
dock through pipes 
to insulated storage
tanks. It is then 
converted back into
its gaseous state.

2002

Cove Point acquisi-
tion (Maryland)

With demand for 
natural gas expected
to grow at least 20
percent by the end of
the decade, Dominion
purchased the Cove
Point liquefied natural
gas (LNG) facility in
southern Maryland on
the Chesapeake Bay.

State Line 
acquisition (Indiana)

The acquisition of State
Line Power Station
near the Illinois/
Indiana border 
increased the output 
of our merchant 
fleet to nearly 6,000
megawatts.2001

Millstone acquisition
(Connecticut)

On March 31
Dominion acquired the
Millstone Power Station
in Connecticut—
part of the company’s
super-regional 
geographic footprint.

Louis Dreyfus 
acquisition

The acquisition of
Louis Dreyfus boosted
natural gas reserves 
at our Dominion E&P 
unit by nearly 60 
percent and increased 
production levels by 
40 percent.

2000

CNG merger 
completed

On January 28
Dominion became the
nation’s largest fully
integrated natural gas
and electric company,
with combined annual
revenues totaling 
$8.6 billion and assets
exceeding $24 billion.

2004

Devils Tower,
world’s deepest
spar platform, 
began operating in 
the Gulf of Mexico 

Devils Tower is the
fourth producing 
property in our deep-
water portfolio, and
the first operated 
by Dominion. It is
designed to handle
60,000 barrels of oil
and 110 million cubic
feet of gas per day.

Amendment to
Virginia Electric
Utility Restructuring
Act (Senate Bill 651)

Senate Bill 651 is
unique in the nation. 
It extended fixed base
rates for customers in
Virginia while providing
shareholders with base
rate certainty.



A s I begin my first year as your chief executive 

officer, I want to thank outgoing CEO Tom Capps

for his vision and energy. When he joined the

company in 1984, Dominion operated mainly as a 

Virginia-based electric utility with a market value of about

$2.5 billion. Today, we are an integrated energy company 

that makes, moves and sells electricity, natural gas and oil.

At year-end, our market value stood at nearly $27 billion—

truly a remarkable performance and a tremendous legacy

for Tom to leave behind.

Today Dominion is well focused, financially healthy and

performing at superior levels of efficiency. Our integrated

energy company operates in more than 20 states, western

Canada and the Gulf of Mexico. Our businesses are widely

recognized for their quality.

We have the added advantage of motivated employees

who are the best at what they do. This was evident at a

meeting I hosted last year in Richmond. Packing an audito-

rium were more than 200 members of Dominion’s manage-

ment team who lead natural gas and oil engineers, nuclear

plant operators, geologists, pipeline builders and experts in

many complex fields. Dozens of other dedicated profession-

als joined us by video conference at seven company sites in

New England, the Midwest, mid-Atlantic and Gulf regions.

Dear Shareholders

Today Dominion is well focused,
financially healthy and performing
at superior levels of efficiency.

Thomas F. Farrell, II President and Chief Executive Officer
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Line crews from our Virginia and North Carolina electric

utility units drove to New Orleans to help Entergy with the

Herculean task of rebuilding the power grid. They worked in

treacherous conditions. Some days they gave their lunches

to hungry residents. At times they slept in their trucks. They

stayed until another storm named Ophelia threatened the

mid-Atlantic and forced them home.

Engineers and construction workers from our natural gas

and oil exploration and production business (E&P) repaired

the minor damage to our offshore drilling platforms—

well before the region’s refineries and processing facilities

returned to service to take and transport our production

for sale.

Following Katrina and then Rita, our employees worked

together as “One Dominion.” They donated almost $150,000

to the Dominion Katrina Relief Fund, an amount matched

by the company to help colleagues who suffered losses.

Dominion donated an additional $250,000 to The Salvation

Army to assist with the larger relief effort.

I focused mainly on the core values that guide us: safety,

ethical behavior, excellence and the unity of purpose we seek

across our multiple businesses. No one knew that in less

than two weeks, Hurricane Katrina would test each value.

Working Together as One Dominion

In the aftermath of Katrina’s devastation, our top priority

was the safety of our Gulf Coast employees and their loved

ones. We mobilized employees in Houston, Oklahoma City

and Richmond. Their immediate mission: Locate our

New Orleans-based exploration and production people using

all available means. Our people spent nine days, working

around the clock, but their hard work and whatever-it-takes

attitude paid off. We found all affected employees. Each

of them was safe.

We assured them that their jobs, paychecks and benefits

would continue. We made it clear that the company would

help them pick up the pieces and start anew. Meanwhile,

employee teams set about making plans for the temporary

relocation of almost all of our 446 affected workers

and their families to Houston. Within three weeks, we had

them settled into furnished apartments and working in

new office space.

In the aftermath of Katrina’s devas-
tation, our top priority was the
safety of our Gulf Coast employees
and their loved ones.

’02’0’00’ ’0 ’0 ’0 ’0 ’0’0

200 200

Roll-off E&P Legacy Hedges
VA Fuel Re-set
Roll-off Millstone Legacy Hedges
Cove Point Expansion
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Share Price Closes 2005 Nearly 14 Percent Higher

The hurricanes took a financial toll on many businesses in

2005, including Dominion. However, investors demonstrat-

ed their confidence in the long-term prospects of our

integrated businesses. Our share price held up. In fact, we

hit more than two dozen all-time highs last year.

Thanks in part to our employees and to broad strength in

the energy sector, our share price closed up 14 percent

in 2005 at $77.20 compared to $67.74 at year-end 2004.

Including our annual dividend, we delivered a total return

of more than 18 percent in 2005, topping a total return of

more than 17 percent by the Standard & Poor’s 500

Electric Utilities Index and a total return of more than 16

percent by the S&P 500 Utilities Index. Beyond our sector,

the S&P 500 delivered a total return of just under 5 percent

in 2005, and the Dow Jones Industrial Average returned

less than 2 percent.

Taking a longer view, our total five-year return to

shareholders from Dec. 31, 2000, to Dec. 31, 2005, has

topped 40 percent. That compares favorably to a

30-percent total return by the S&P 500 Electric Utilities

Index and a negative total return of nearly 11 percent by

the S&P 500 Utilities. During the same five-year period, the

broader S&P 500 delivered a total return of less than

3 percent, while the Dow Jones Industrial Average returned

more than 10 percent.

Hurricane Damage, Virginia Fuel Expense

Lower 2005 Earnings

In 2005, we earned $3.00 per share under Generally

Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), down from $3.78

per share a year earlier. Both Gulf hurricanes were major

factors behind the shortfall. Unrecoverable fuel expenses at

our Dominion Virginia Power unit were another factor.

Operating earnings in 2005 were $4.53 per share, down
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from 2004 operating earnings of $4.61. Operating earnings

excludes certain items appearing in the chart on page 25

that reconciles them to our GAAP earnings. Further details

are found in our Management’s Discussion and Analysis

on pages 27 through 51.

Our income statement on page 55 reflects $375 million

of after-tax charges attributable to the hurricanes. We expect

results to improve in 2006 when the region’s refining and

transportation infrastructure is back on line and we are able

to sell our production at market prices. We also expect pro-

ceeds from a claim on our business interruption insurance.

Also lowering our 2005 earnings were higher-than-

expected unrecoverable fuel costs at Dominion Virginia

Power. Later in this letter, I’ll update you on a scheduled

2007 adjustment to the amount our Virginia utility will

be able to collect to cover fuel expenses. That will be an

important part of our expected earnings growth.

In the interim, our resourceful employees are trimming

costs to make up for these unexpected shortfalls. Utilizing

Six Sigma quality initiatives and other process improve-

ments, they saved more than $178 million in 2005,

an 80-percent increase over savings of $99 million in the

previous year. In 2006, they will continue to manage our

costs with equal competence and intensity.

Operational Excellence and Safety

Safety remains one of our most important objectives. None

of us likes to see people hurt. I believe an accident-free

workplace is a very reliable indicator of discipline and opera-

tional excellence. Sloppy safety performance indicates a lack

of thorough planning, solid execution and attention to detail.

In 2005, we heightened our focus on accident preven-

tion and sharing best practices across business units. With

strong support from our employees, we experienced what is

most likely our best safety performance in company history.

Reportable safety incidents declined 31 percent from the

previous year. To cite one notable example from Dominion

E&P, the employee team based in Jane Lew, W.Va., has

gone more than two years without a safety incident. I call

these “pockets of excellence” in the company. We want to

deepen and expand them in 2006.

More than $800 Million in Profitable

Acquisitions Closed in 2005

You may not be aware that Dominion is the largest power

generator in New England. Thanks to an exceptional team

of dedicated employees working long hours, weekends and

holidays, we were able to close early on the $642 million



Brayton Point Power Station in Somerset, Massachusetts, supplies power to more than 1 million New England homes and businesses.
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acquisition of three power stations in the region: two

coal- and oil-fired facilities in Massachusetts and one gas-

fired facility in Rhode Island. Collectively they represent

more than 2,700 megawatts of generating capacity.

Combined with the output of our Millstone nuclear station,

these plants give us the largest, most competitive and

diverse generation portfolio in New England, a region heavily

dependent on high-priced natural gas. Approximately

90 percent of the electricity we expect to generate at our

New England base-load plants is hedged in 2006 through

contracts that deliver revenue certainty, a cornerstone

of our long-term strategy for delivering steady earnings. The

balance is sold into the regional wholesale market where

energy prices are rising.

We also completed the $192 million acquisition of the

556-megawatt Kewaunee Power Station, a nuclear facility

near Green Bay, Wisc. The two utilities that jointly owned

the station want to benefit from Dominion’s operating

expertise and will buy back all of the output under

two long-term contracts.

A longstanding reputation for superior nuclear operations

remains one of Dominion’s core competitive advantages.

With more than 5,700 megawatts of generating capacity,

we are one of the top three investor-owned producers of

nuclear power in the nation.

For the 2002-2004 period, Platts Nucleonics Week, a

McGraw-Hill publication, ranked our North Anna and Surry

power stations as the nation’s fourth and eighth most

efficient nuclear facilities respectively. These two stations

also ranked in the nation’s top ten lowest-cost producers in

2004 among stations that reported the data. In 2005, our

two Virginia stations also set a new company record for

electric generation output, topping the previous record set

in 2000. Our Millstone station in Connecticut achieved two
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new refueling records. Unit 2 was refueled in 39 days and

Unit 3 in 28 days. Millstone also received renewed 20-year

operating licenses from the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory

Commission. Units 2 and 3 are now licensed to operate

until 2035 and 2045, respectively.

Integration into Regional Transmission Organization

Provides Flexibility and Efficiency

We successfully integrated our electric transmission assets

into PJM—operator of the world’s largest competitive

wholesale electricity market. While we still retain ownership

of this critical infrastructure, participation in PJM gives

us three key advantages: It enhances transmission service

reliability, expands access to regionwide, economical

generation sources, and improves our company’s efficiency

at deploying capital.

Production Delayed, Not Lost at E&P;

Growth to Resume in 2006

In 2006, barring extraordinary events, we expect our E&P unit

to return annual production to a range of about 445 to 455

billion cubic feet equivalent. That’s about 10 billion cubic feet

equivalent less than our prehurricane projections. By 2007,

we expect E&P production to rebound fully and achieve

compounded annual average growth of 5 to 6 percent.
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With all the headlines focused on the hurricanes in the

Gulf, people tend to forget that our low-risk onshore gas

production and reserves are the backbone of our natural

gas and oil business. In 2005, we worked hard to expand

this base. In fact, about 68 percent of our total reserves are

onshore in regions dominated by our low-risk gas factories.

I’m proud that our overall E&P program places among

the industry’s top quartile in lowest finding and development

costs and operating expenses.

The fastest, most efficient drilling rigs in the world can

be found at Dominion’s Sonora properties in west Texas.

And according to the latest available data from Oil & Gas

Journal, the 952 net production wells that we drilled in the

United States in 2004 were more than any other company,

major or independent. We replaced 200 percent more

than we produced, a key measure of drilling success and

growth potential. Dominion E&P now holds the fifth largest

position among United States independents in natural

gas reserves and production.

We successfully integrated our
electric transmission assets
into PJM—operator of the world’s
largest competitive wholesale
electricity market.



Millstone Power Station set two records in May: surpassing 1 million consecutive work hours without a recordable accident and completing the shortest 
and safest outage in station history.



Laurie Bowes, Solomon Yirga and Bill McBride (left-to-right, foreground) plan day-ahead bids for the PJM market. Stephanie Smith (center, background)
assists James Carr and Cynthia Ellis, who direct the output of Dominion’s fleet of generation units in the real-time market. Membership in PJM is expected
to reduce fuel costs and benefit customers.
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Our offshore business in the Gulf of Mexico’s deep water

includes working interests in seven producing fields,

with five more under development. Success in deepwater

exploration and production requires careful management

of costs and risks.

Investing and Allocating Our Capital Wisely

Allocating capital wisely across all businesses is key to

our future success. In 2006, we expect to spend about

49 percent of our $3.8 billion capital budget on E&P, which

reflects the increasing costs of exploration and drilling

and the expansion of our onshore operations. Managing

increased insurance costs also will be a challenge.

We plan other major investments in 2006, including

customer service upgrades and new customer connections

at our utility distribution subsidiaries. These will account

for 14 percent of our 2006 budget, or $525 million.

Expansions at our Cove Point LNG facility and other

incremental build-outs of our gas storage system will

account for another 5 percent, or $190 million.

Taking A Longer View Of Credit Metrics

These investments are the backbone of our future growth

and profitability. We make them with our long-term financial

strength in mind. Thanks to our strong financial position,

we will be able to generate the required investment capital

while remaining a solid investment-grade company.

In fact, in early 2006, we announced the sale of certain

businesses expected to raise about $970 million, plus

adjustments to reflect capital expenditures and changes in

working capital at its targeted closure in 2007. Equitable

Resources has agreed to purchase our natural gas distribu-

tion utilities in Pennsylvania and West Virginia. Together

these utilities serve less than 12 percent of our 4 million

electric and natural gas local distribution customers in the
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mid-Atlantic and Midwest. We’ll use proceeds of the sale for

general corporate purposes, including debt reduction.

In 2006, we are scheduled to receive about $330

million in proceeds from the conversion of equity-linked

debt securities. Future moves to raise capital will be made

in full accordance with our commitment to operate not only

to the satisfaction of our shareholders but our valued

community of bondholders as well.

At year-end, our company’s adjusted debt as a percent-

age of capital stood at about 58 percent, compared to

54 percent at the end of 2004. We missed our target of 51

percent in 2005, largely because of the temporary negative

effects of hurricanes and rising commodity prices. A chart

showing our debt ratios under GAAP appears on page 25.

As a result of falling short of our targeted credit metrics,

Standard & Poor’s downgraded our bond rating from BBB+

to BBB. Moody’s maintained its Baa1 rating but in early

January placed our rating on review for a downgrade. In

2005, we added coverage from Fitch, which rates your

company’s debt at BBB+. Although we are disappointed

with the downgrades, we are confident we have the assets

and the financial plan to achieve credit metrics consistent

with the high triple-B rating over the next few years.

Patience grounded in a long-term perspective has

rewarded Dominion shareholders in the past. We believe

our bondholders maintain a long-term view and

are comfortable, not only with where we are today but also

with our ability to improve these metrics as we continue

to execute our plan.

Renewed Earnings Growth Expectations

Yes, 2005 turned out to be a difficult earnings year. But

we have weathered such years before. In January 2006, we

set operating earnings targets of $5.05 to $5.25.

As we’ve noted in earlier letters, differences can occur

between our operating earnings forecasts and actual GAAP

earnings. Some factors we can see on the horizon but can’t

yet quantify. In 2006, for example, potential changes

in accounting principles could come into play. Factors we

can’t foresee can also create differences, and usually do,

as in all businesses.

Among the things that we know will work against us in

the short-term in 2006 are the remaining impacts of the

hurricanes on our Gulf operations. Pension and retiree med-

ical benefits will cost more to provide. And underrecovery

of fuel costs at Dominion Virginia Power in 2006 also will

play a negative role.

Fortunately, our projected earnings will benefit from

important positive drivers in 2006. Even more importantly,

the same positive drivers are expected to fuel our earnings

Patience grounded in a long-term
perspective has rewarded Dominion
shareholders in the past.
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potential from 2007 through 2009. We call them structural

drivers. They are in place and not going away. We expect

them to work increasingly in our favor well beyond the

short-term negative drivers in 2006.

It’s appropriate to start with a scheduled adjustment of

our Virginia fuel-recovery factor in 2007 since we’ve written

to you about that before.

Revenue Certainty in Virginia Until 2011

Long-time owners of Dominion will recall that our Virginia

electric customers have enjoyed price stability under a 

state law that freezes Dominion’s base rates until 2011. In

exchange for the rate and revenue certainty that benefit

both consumers and our company, the law required us to

accept fuel price risk from 2004 through 2010. 

As a result, our customers pay a fixed rate for fuel costs

and the company pays for fuel cost over-runs or retains

under-runs. The fuel rate freeze will save the typical 

residential customer about $260 during the two-year period

of 2005 and 2006. Commercial and industrial customers

will save even more. During the first two years of the

freeze—adopted by Virginia in 2004 with our support—

fuel prices soared: natural gas by more than 80 percent,

coal by more than 40 percent and crude oil by more 

than 100 percent. Unless fuel prices decline dramatically,

we expect continuing shortfalls until mid-2007.

Jim Mauger, gas distribution construction leader, inspects welding work at a pipeline replacement job site in Rostraver, Pa.
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The Quinlan storage pool and TL-527 pipeline
in Southwestern New York, shown in black,
are expected to begin operations in April 2006.
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Virginia Fuel Cost Recovery Set For 2007

Under existing Virginia law, regulators are scheduled in

mid-2007 to adjust the amount of money we are legally

entitled to recover through customer bills to cover fuel costs

at Dominion Virginia Power. Virginia regulators have a long

history of equity and balance in fuel-recovery cases. Much

of the case involves an analytical process, which recognizes

existing and future commodity prices at the time.

Customers Have Benefited

While heating costs have soared recently for consumers in

many parts of the country, monthly bills for our electric

customers in Virginia have remained virtually unchanged. In

fact, the typical monthly bill for our Virginia residential

customers is just a few pennies higher than it was 12 years

ago. Adjusted for inflation, it’s more than 30 percent lower.

Optimistic Outlook 2007 through 2009:

Commodity Price Advantage, Three Growth Drivers

Looking to 2007, 2008 and 2009, we expect positive

results from rising energy prices. We’ll realize benefits at our

natural gas and oil production unit and at our merchant

power generating stations. For example, as the largest

power producer in New England, we expect to receive

higher prices for Millstone’s output and for the output of

our other stations in the region.

Also contributing to our improved earnings outlook are

three growth drivers that reflect the growing demand for

power and natural gas in our Northeast, mid-Atlantic and

Midwest markets.

• First, robust customer growth in Virginia and North

Carolina will continue to fuel higher electricity demand and

sales at our regulated electric utility. Our four-year average

annual growth in electric demand increased to almost
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4.7 percent. New service connections are climbing steadily

at a rate of about 2.5 percent a year. While meeting this

increase, our employees improved electric service reliability

by 8 percent compared to 2004.

• Second, substantial pipeline and storage expansions are

under way at our Cove Point LNG facility in Maryland. Once

completed in mid-2008, total storage capacity at the site

will increase by more than 80 percent, to 14.6 billion cubic

feet. We also are adding to our profitable underground natu-

ral gas storage system. Storage and pipeline expansions

are under way in West Virginia, New York and Pennsylvania.

With federal regulatory approval, service will come online

beginning in 2008.

• Third, we expect natural gas exploration and production

growth of 5 to 6 percent annually on average from 2006

through at least 2008. That growth is significant. It will

occur as existing long-term contracts for sales at yester-

day’s lower prices expire and are replaced at current, higher

market prices. We lock in prices for a portion of our natural

gas and oil production to generate a stable stream of

cash flows and earnings and to lower our exposure to the

boom-and-bust cycles of energy markets. We will continue

this hedging strategy going forward, but we expect to have

more production available for sale in today’s higher-price

commodity markets.

A Major Commitment to the Environment

Late last year, we announced new plans to lead in efforts to

improve air quality. Our commitment to responsible environ-

mental stewardship is ongoing.

As outlined in the announcement, Dominion will invest

$500 million to reduce emissions at our coal-fired generat-

ing units serving Virginia between 2006 and 2015. This

major investment in clean air follows more than $2 billion

we already have spent or committed to spend since the

1990s to upgrade the environmental performance of our

coal stations serving Virginia. Once completed, Dominion’s

coal-fired units serving Virginia will have cut sulfur dioxide

emissions by an average of more than 80 percent, nitrogen

oxide by 74 percent, and mercury emissions by about 86

percent from 2000 levels.

Late last year, we announced new
plans to lead in efforts to improve
air quality. Our commitment to
responsible environmental steward-
ship is ongoing.

Potential Earnings Benefit of
ro t ri ers

Illustrative only—not drawn to scale.
Based on forward commodity prices
as of February 2006.
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Gary Lipscomb talks to the control room after inspecting one of Mt. Storm Power Station’s three selective catalytic reduction units (SCRs).



24 Dominion 2005

Our Job: Reward Your Confidence

Like my predecessor, I am a natural optimist.

When I joined Dominion 11 years ago as general counsel,

the company had a sterling reputation for dependable and

efficient service. I look forward to continuing that tradition.

I grew up in a military family that prizes integrity, 

precision, certainty and attention to detail. In this culture,

leaders look after the troops first—feed them, a saying

goes, then eat. Initiate. Don’t react. 

Last year, our people proved that some important things

can’t be quantified. Employee resolve, strong community

service and a philanthropic ethic don’t get reported on the

balance sheet. Nowhere on the income statement will you

find a line item that captures corporate culture and values.

But the people who work for Dominion represent a huge

advantage for company owners and customers. On behalf of

our employees, I want to thank our customers, suppliers,

partners, board of directors and you and your fellow

investors for your continuing support. Our job is to reward

the confidence you’ve placed in us.

Sincerely,

Thomas F. Farrell II
President and Chief Executive Officer

Dominion employees Pamela Gottfried, Daniel DeCrane and Charles Hardy (left to right, foreground) plant a tree as Matt Boltz helps clear overgrowth and
build information kiosks along the Washington & Old Dominion Trail in Virginia.
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Reconciliation of Measures Prepared in Accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) Versus Non-GAAP Measures1

Ratio of Total Debt to Total Capitalization

GAAP Measure Adjusted GAAP Measure Adjusted
at 12/31/04 at 12/31/04 at 12/31/05 at 12/31/05

(dollars in millions)

Securities due within one year $ 1,368 $ 1,368 $ 2,330 $ 2,330
Short-term debt 573 573 1,618 1,618
Long-term debt:

Equity-linked debt securities 330 330 330 330
Junior subordinated debentures 1,429 1,416
Other long-term debt 13,748 13,748 12,907 12,907
Long-term debt–total 15,507 14,078 14,653 13,237

Total debt 17,448 59.9% 16,019 54.4% 18,601 63.6% 17,185 58.1%
Preferred stock 257 257 257 257
Junior subordinated debentures 1,429 1,416
Common shareholders' equity:

Common stock 10,888 10,888 11,286 11,286
Other paid-in capital 92 92 125 125
Retained earnings 1,442 1,442 1,550 1,550
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (996) (996) (2,564) (2,564)
Common shareholders’ equity—total 11,426 11,426 10,397 10,397

Equity-linked debt securities 330 330
Total equity and preferred stock 11,683 40.1% 13,442 45.6% 10,654 36.4% 12,400 41.9%
Total capitalization $29,131 $29,461 $ 29,255 $29,585

(1) Regulation G of the SEC’s rules require reconciliations to U.S. GAAP measures for certain publicly disclosed financial information. This schedule is presented to meet the requirements of
Regulation G. The ratios presented based on U.S. GAAP amounts are not measures that are normally used by Dominion in assessing performance.

Consolidated Dominion Resources, Inc.—Reconciliation of Operating Earnings to Reported Earnings (GAAP)

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Millions EPS Millions EPS Millions EPS Millions EPS Millions EPS

Operating Earnings $ 1,053 $ 4.17 $ 1,365 $ 4.83 $ 1,449 $ 4.55 $ 1,523 $ 4.61 $ 1,558 $ 4.53
After-tax items:

Telecom related charges (750) (2.35) (13) (0.04) 5 0.02
Dominion Capital related charges (208) (0.83) (8) (0.03) (81) (0.25) (61) (0.18) (22) (0.06)
Termination of power purchase contracts (136) (0.54) — — (65) (0.20) (43) (0.13) (44) (0.13)
Restructuring of certain electric sales contracts — — — — (39) (0.12) — — — —
Charges related to Hurricanes — — — — (122) (0.38) (50) (0.15) (375) (1.09)
Restructuring and acquisition-related charges (68) (0.27) 5 0.02 — — — — — —
Charges related to exiting certain businesses — — — — (69) (0.22) (86) (0.27) (12) (0.04)
Other asset impairments (97) (0.38) — — — — (5) (0.01) (68) (0.20)
Cumulative effect of changes in

accounting principles — — — — 11 0.03 — — (6) (0.02)
Other items — — — — (16) (0.06) (16) (0.05) (3) (0.01)

Total after-tax items (509) (2.02) (3) (0.01) (1,131) (3.55) (274) (0.83) (525) (1.53)
Reported Earnings (GAAP) $ 544 $ 2.15 $ 1,362 $ 4.82 $ 318 $ 1.00 $ 1,249 $ 3.78 $ 1,033 $ 3.00

Reconciliation of Operating Return on Equity to Reported Return on Equity

2005 2004
Millions % Millions %

Common Shareholders’ Equity–13 mos. average $ 10,693 $ 10,552
Operating Earnings–Twelve months ended* 1,558 1,523
Return on average common equity–operating 14.6% 14.4%
Reported Earnings–Twelve months ended 1,033 1,249
Return on average common equity–reported 9.7% 11.8%

* See Reconciliation of Operating Earnings to Reported Earnings.

For factors that could cause actual results to differ, see Forward-Looking Statements, Risk Factors, and Market Risk Sensitive Instruments and Risk Management in Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this report.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations (MD&A) discusses our results of operations
and general financial condition. MD&A should be read in conjunc-
tion with our Consolidated Financial Statements. The terms
“Dominion,” “Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” are used throughout
this report and, depending on the context of its use, may represent
any of the following: the legal entity, Dominion Resources, Inc., one
of Dominion Resources, Inc.’s consolidated subsidiaries or operat-
ing segments or the entirety of Dominion Resources, Inc. and its
consolidated subsidiaries.

Contents of MD&A
The reader will find the following information in our MD&A:
• Forward-Looking Statements
• Introduction
• Accounting Matters
• Results of Operations
• Segment Results of Operations
• Selected Information—Energy Trading Activities
• Sources and Uses of Cash
• Future Issues and Other Matters
• Market Risk Sensitive Instruments and Risk Management
• Risk Factors
• Selected Financial Data

Forward-Looking Statements
This report contains statements concerning our expectations,
plans, objectives, future financial performance and other state-
ments that are not historical facts. These statements are “forward-
looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. In most cases, the reader can iden-
tify these forward-looking statements by such words as “antici-
pate,” “estimate,” “forecast,” “expect,” “believe,” “should,”
“could,” “plan,” “may” or other similar words.

We make forward-looking statements with full knowledge that
risks and uncertainties exist that may cause actual results to differ
materially from predicted results. Factors that may cause actual
results to differ are often presented with the forward-looking state-
ments themselves. Additionally, other factors may cause actual
results to differ materially from those indicated in any forward-looking
statement. These factors include but are not limited to:
• Unusual weather conditions and their effect on energy sales to

customers and energy commodity prices;
• Extreme weather events, including hurricanes and winter

storms, that can cause outages, production delays and property
damage to our facilities;

• State and federal legislative and regulatory developments,
including deregulation and changes in environmental and other
laws and regulations to which we are subject;

• Cost of environmental compliance;
• Risks associated with the operation of nuclear facilities;
• Fluctuations in energy-related commodity prices and the effect

these could have on our earnings, liquidity position and the
underlying value of our assets;

• Counterparty credit risk;
• Capital market conditions, including price risk due to marketable

securities held as investments in nuclear decommissioning and
benefit plan trusts;

• Fluctuations in interest rates;
• Changes in rating agency requirements or credit ratings and the

effect on availability and cost of capital;
• Changes in financial or regulatory accounting principles or

policies imposed by governing bodies;
• Employee workforce factors including collective bargaining

agreements and labor negotiations with union employees;
• The risks of operating businesses in regulated industries that are

subject to changing regulatory structures;
• Changes in our ability to recover investments made under tradi-

tional regulation through rates;
• Receipt of approvals for and timing of closing dates

for acquisitions and divestitures;
• Realization of expected business interruption insurance proceeds;
• Transitional issues related to the transfer of control over our

electric transmission facilities to a regional transmission
organization;

• Political and economic conditions, including the threat of
domestic terrorism, inflation and deflation; and

• Completing the divestiture of investments held by our financial
services subsidiary, Dominion Capital, Inc. (DCI).
Additionally, other risks that could cause actual results to differ

from predicted results are set forth in Risk Factors.
Our forward-looking statements are based on our beliefs and

assumptions using information available at the time the statements
are made. We caution the reader not to place undue reliance on
our forward-looking statements because the assumptions, beliefs,
expectations and projections about future events may, and often
do, differ materially from actual results. We undertake no obligation
to update any forward-looking statement to reflect developments
occurring after the statement is made.

Introduction
Dominion is a fully integrated energy company headquartered in
Richmond, Virginia. Our strategy is to be a leading provider of elec-
tricity, natural gas and related services to customers in the energy
intensive Northeast, Mid-Atlantic and Midwest regions of the United
States. This area represents about a quarter of the nation’s land-
mass, but accounts for approximately 40 percent of energy con-
sumed. Our diversified portfolio of assets includes approximately:
• 28,100 megawatts of generation capacity;
• 7,800 miles of interstate natural gas transmission, gathering

and storage pipeline;
• 6,000 miles of electric transmission lines;
• 6.3 trillion cubic feet equivalent of proved gas and oil reserves;

and
• an underground natural gas storage system with 950 billion

cubic feet of capacity, the nation’s largest.
Our businesses are managed through four primary operating

segments: Dominion Delivery, Dominion Energy, Dominion Genera-
tion and Dominion Exploration & Production. The contributions to
net income by our primary operating segments are determined
based on a measure of profit that we believe represents the seg-
ments’ core earnings. As a result, certain specific items attributable
to those segments are not included in profit measures evaluated by
management in assessing segment performance or allocating
resources among the segments. Those specific items are reported
in the Corporate segment.
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merchant fleet are located in Connecticut, Illinois, Indiana, Massa-
chusetts, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, West Virginia and Wis-
consin.

Dominion Generation’s earnings result from the generation and
sale of electricity. Due to 2004 deregulation legislation, revenues
for serving Virginia jurisdictional retail load are based on capped
rates through 2010 and fuel costs for the utility fleet, including
power purchases, are subject to fixed rate recovery provisions until
July 1, 2007, when a one-time prospective adjustment will be made
effective through December 2010. Changes in our utility operating
costs, particularly with respect to fuel and purchased power, rela-
tive to costs used to establish the rates, will impact Dominion
Generation’s earnings.

Variability in earnings provided by the merchant fleet relates to
changes in market-based prices received for electricity and the
demand for electricity, which is primarily weather driven. Variability
also results from changes in the cost of fuel consumed, labor and
benefits and the timing, duration and costs of scheduled and
unscheduled outages.

Dominion Exploration & Production (E&P) includes our gas
and oil exploration, development and production business. Opera-
tions are located in several major producing basins in the lower 48
states, including the outer continental shelf and deepwater areas of
the Gulf of Mexico, and Western Canada.

Dominion E&P generates income from the sale of natural gas
and oil we produce from our reserves. Variability relates primarily to
changes in commodity prices, which are market-based, and pro-
duction volumes, which are impacted by numerous factors includ-
ing drilling success, timing of development projects and external
factors such as storm-related damage caused by hurricanes. We
attempt to manage commodity price volatility by hedging a sub-
stantial portion of our expected production. These hedging activities
may require cash deposits to satisfy collateral requirements. We
attempt to mitigate the financial impact of storm-related delays in
production by maintaining business interruption insurance for our
offshore operations. Our business interruption insurance covers
delays caused by damage to both our production facilities and to
third-party facilities downstream.

Corporate includes the operations of our corporate, service
company and other operations (including unallocated debt), corpo-
rate-wide enterprise commodity risk management and optimization
services, the remaining assets of DCI, which are in the process of
being divested, the net impact of our discontinued telecommunica-
tions operations that were sold in May 2004 and specific items
attributable to our operating segments that are excluded from the
profit measures evaluated by management in assessing segment
performance or allocating resources among the segments.

Accounting Matters

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
We have identified the following accounting policies, including cer-
tain inherent estimates, that as a result of the judgments, uncer-
tainties, uniqueness and complexities of the underlying accounting
standards and operations involved, could result in material changes
to our financial condition or results of operations under different
conditions or using different assumptions. We have discussed the
development, selection and disclosure of each of these policies
with our Audit Committee.

Dominion Delivery includes our regulated electric and gas dis-
tribution and customer service business, as well as nonregulated
retail energy marketing operations. Electric distribution operations
serve residential, commercial, industrial and governmental cus-
tomers in Virginia and northeastern North Carolina. Gas distribution
operations serve residential, commercial and industrial gas sales
and transportation customers in Ohio, Pennsylvania and West Vir-
ginia. Nonregulated retail energy marketing operations include the
marketing of gas, electricity and related products and services to
residential, industrial and small commercial customers in the
Northeast, Mid-Atlantic and Midwest.

Revenue provided by electric and gas distribution operations is
based primarily on rates established by state regulatory authorities
and state law. The profitability of these businesses is dependent on
their ability, through the rates they are permitted to charge, to
recover costs and earn a reasonable return on their capital invest-
ments. Variability relates largely to changes in volumes, which are
primarily weather sensitive, and changes in the cost of routine
maintenance and repairs (including labor and benefits). Income
from retail energy marketing operations varies in connection
with changes in weather and commodity prices as well as the
acquisition and loss of customers.

Dominion Energy includes our tariff-based electric transmis-
sion, natural gas transmission pipeline and storage businesses and
the Cove Point liquefied natural gas (LNG) facility. It also includes
certain natural gas production located in the Appalachian basin and
producer services, which consist of aggregation of gas supply, mar-
ket-based services related to gas transportation and storage, asso-
ciated gas trading and the prior year’s results of certain energy
trading activities exited in December 2004. The electric transmis-
sion business serves Virginia and northeastern North Carolina and
on May 1, 2005, became a member of PJM Interconnection, LLC
(PJM), a regional transmission organization (RTO). As a result, we
integrated our control area into the PJM energy markets. The gas
transmission pipeline and storage business serves Dominion’s gas
distribution businesses and other customers in the Northeast,
Mid-Atlantic and Midwest.

Revenue provided by regulated electric and gas transmission
operations and the LNG facility is based primarily on rates approved
by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). The prof-
itability of these businesses is dependent on their ability, through
the rates they are permitted to charge, to recover costs and earn a
reasonable return on their capital investments. Variability results
from changes in rates, the demand for services, which is primarily
weather dependent, and operating and maintenance expenditures
(including labor and benefits).

Earnings from Dominion Energy’s nonregulated businesses are
subject to variability associated with changes in commodity prices.
Dominion Energy’s nonregulated businesses use physical and finan-
cial arrangements to attempt to hedge this price risk. Certain hedging
and trading activities may require cash deposits to satisfy collateral
requirements. Variability also results from changes in operating and
maintenance expenditures (including labor and benefits).

Dominion Generation includes the generation operations of
our electric utility and merchant fleet as well as energy marketing
and risk management activities associated with the optimization of
our generation assets. Our generation mix is diversified and
includes coal, nuclear, gas, oil, hydro and purchased power. The
generation facilities of our electric utility fleet are located in Virginia,
West Virginia and North Carolina. The generation facilities of our
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Fair value is based on actively quoted market prices, if available.
In the absence of actively quoted market prices, we seek indicative
price information from external sources, including broker quotes
and industry publications. If pricing information from external
sources is not available, we must estimate prices based on avail-
able historical and near-term future price information and use of
statistical methods. For options and contracts with option-like char-
acteristics where pricing information is not available from external
sources, we generally use a modified Black-Scholes Model that
considers time value, the volatility of the underlying commodities
and other relevant assumptions. We use other option models under
special circumstances, including a Spread Approximation Model,
when contracts include different commodities or commodity loca-
tions and a Swing Option Model, when contracts allow either the
buyer or seller the ability to exercise within a range of quantities.
For contracts with unique characteristics, we estimate fair value
using a discounted cash flow approach deemed appropriate in the
circumstances and applied consistently from period to period. If
pricing information is not available from external sources, judgment
is required to develop the estimates of fair value. For individual con-
tracts, the use of different valuation models or assumptions could
have a material effect on the contract’s estimated fair value.

For cash flow hedges of forecasted transactions, we must esti-
mate the future cash flows of the forecasted transactions, as well
as evaluate the probability of occurrence and timing of such trans-
actions. Changes in conditions or the occurrence of unforeseen
events could require discontinuance of hedge accounting or could
affect the timing of the reclassification of gains and/or losses on
cash flow hedges from accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss)(AOCI) into earnings.

Use of estimates in goodwill impairment testing
As of December 31, 2005, we reported $4.3 billion of goodwill on our
Consolidated Balance Sheet, a significant portion of which resulted
from the acquisition of Consolidated Natural Gas Company (CNG) in
2000. Substantially all of this goodwill is allocated to our Generation,
Transmission, Delivery and Exploration & Production reporting units.
In April of each year, we test our goodwill for potential impairment,
and perform additional tests more frequently if impairment indicators
are present. The 2005 and 2004 annual tests did not result in the
recognition of any goodwill impairment, as the estimated fair values
of our reporting units exceeded their respective carrying amounts. In
2003, impairment charges of $78 million were recognized as a result
of interim tests conducted for certain DCI subsidiaries and our
discontinued telecommunications business.

We estimate the fair value of our reporting units by using a com-
bination of discounted cash flow analyses, based on our internal
five-year strategic plan, and other valuation techniques that use
multiples of earnings for peer group companies and analyses of
recent business combinations involving peer group companies.
These calculations are dependent on subjective factors such as our
estimate of future cash flows, the selection of appropriate discount

and growth rates, and the selection of peer group companies and
recent transactions. These underlying assumptions and estimates
are made as of a point in time; subsequent modifications, particu-
larly changes in discount rates or growth rates inherent in our esti-
mates of future cash flows, could result in a future impairment of
goodwill. Although we have consistently applied the same methods
in developing the assumptions and estimates that underlie the fair
value calculations, such as estimates of future cash flows, and
based those estimates on relevant information available at the
time, such cash flow estimates are highly uncertain by nature and
may vary significantly from actual results. If the estimates of future
cash flows used in the 2005 annual test had been 10% lower, the
resulting fair values would have still been greater than the carrying
values of each of those reporting units, indicating no impairment
was present.

Use of estimates in long-lived asset impairment testing
Impairment testing for an individual or group of long-lived assets or
intangible assets with definite lives is required when circumstances
indicate those assets may be impaired. When an asset’s carrying
amount exceeds the undiscounted estimated future cash flows
associated with the asset, the asset is considered impaired to the
extent that the asset’s fair value is less than its carrying amount.
Performing an impairment test on long-lived assets involves our
judgment in areas such as identifying circumstances indicating an
impairment may exist, identifying and grouping affected assets and
developing the undiscounted and discounted estimated future cash
flows (used to estimate fair value in the absence of market-based
value) associated with the asset, including the selection of an
appropriate discount rate. Although our cash flow estimates are
based on relevant information available at the time the estimates
are made, estimates of future cash flows are, by nature, highly
uncertain and may vary significantly from actual results. For exam-
ple, estimates of future cash flows would contemplate factors such
as the expected use of the asset, including future production and
sales levels, and expected fluctuations of prices of commodities
sold and consumed.

In 2005, we tested a group of gas and steam turbines held for
future development with a carrying amount of $187 million for
impairment. The results of our analysis indicated that these assets
were not impaired. In 2004, we did not test any significant long-
lived assets or asset groups for impairment as no circumstances
arose that indicated an impairment may exist. In 2003, reflecting a
significant revision in long-term expectations for potential growth in
telecommunications service revenue, we approved a strategy to
sell our interest in the telecommunications business. In connection
with this change in strategy, we tested the network assets to be
sold for impairment, using the revised long-term expectations for
potential growth. Our assets were determined to be substantially
impaired and were written down to fair value. We sold our telecom-
munications business in 2004.

Asset retirement obligations
We recognize liabilities for the expected cost of retiring tangible
long-lived assets for which a legal obligation exists. These asset
retirement obligations (AROs) are recognized at fair value as
incurred, and are capitalized as part of the cost of the related tangi-
ble long-lived assets. In the absence of quoted market prices, we
estimate the fair value of our AROs using present value techniques,
in which we make various assumptions including estimates of the
amounts and timing of future cash flows associated with retirement

Accounting for derivative contracts at fair value
We use derivative contracts such as futures, swaps, forwards,
options and financial transmission rights to buy and sell energy-
related commodities and to manage our commodity and financial
markets risks. Derivative contracts, with certain exceptions, are
subject to fair value accounting and are reported on our Consoli-
dated Balance Sheets at fair value. Accounting requirements for
derivatives and related hedging activities are complex and may be
subject to further clarification by standard-setting bodies.
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activities, credit-adjusted risk free rates and cost escalation rates.
AROs currently reported on our Consolidated Balance Sheets were
measured during a period of historically low interest rates. The
impact on measurements of new AROs, using different rates in the
future, may be significant. In the future, if we revise any assump-
tions used to calculate the fair value of existing AROs, we will adjust
the carrying amount of both the ARO liability and related long-lived
asset. We record accretion expense, increasing the ARO liability,
with the passage of time. In 2005, 2004 and 2003, we recognized
$102 million, $91 million and $86 million, respectively, of accre-
tion expense, and expect to incur $124 million in 2006.

A significant portion of our AROs relate to the future decommis-
sioning of our nuclear facilities. At December 31, 2005, nuclear
decommissioning AROs, which are reported in the Dominion Gener-
ation segment, totaled $1.7 billion, representing approximately
77% of our total AROs. Based on their significance, the following
discussion of critical assumptions inherent in determining the fair
value of AROs relates to those associated with our nuclear decom-
missioning obligations.

We obtain from third-party experts periodic site-specific “base
year” cost studies in order to estimate the nature, cost and timing
of planned decommissioning activities for our utility nuclear plants.
We use internal and external cost studies for our merchant nuclear
facilities based on similar methods. These cost studies are based
on relevant information available at the time they are performed;
however, estimates of future cash flows for extended periods are by
nature highly uncertain and may vary significantly from actual
results. In addition, these cost estimates are dependent on subjec-
tive factors, including the selection of cost escalation rates, which
we consider to be a critical assumption.

We determine cost escalation rates, which represent projected
cost increases over time, due to both general inflation and
increases in the cost of specific decommissioning activities, for
each of our nuclear facilities. The use of alternative rates would
have been material to the liabilities recognized. For example, had
we increased the cost escalation rate by 0.5%, the amount recog-
nized as of December 31, 2005 for our AROs related to nuclear
decommissioning would have been $343 million higher.

Employee benefit plans
We sponsor noncontributory defined benefit pension plans and
other postretirement benefit plans for eligible active employees,
retirees and qualifying dependents. The costs of providing benefits
under these plans are dependent, in part, on historical information
such as employee demographics, the level of contributions made to
the plans and earnings on plan assets. Assumptions about the
future, including the expected rate of return on plan assets, dis-
count rates applied to benefit obligations and the anticipated rate
of increase in health care costs and participant compensation, also
have a significant impact on employee benefit costs. The impact on
pension and other postretirement benefit plan obligations associ-
ated with changes in these factors is generally recognized in our
Consolidated Statements of Income over the remaining average
service period of plan participants rather than immediately.

The selection of expected long-term rates of return on plan
assets, discount rates and medical cost trend rates are critical
assumptions. We determine the expected long-term rates of return
on plan assets for pension plans and other postretirement benefit
plans by using a combination of:
• Historical return analysis to determine expected future

risk premiums;

• Forward-looking return expectations derived from the yield on
long-term bonds and the price earnings ratios of major stock
market indices;

• Expected inflation and risk-free interest rate assumptions; and
• Investment allocation of plan assets. The strategic target asset

allocation for our pension fund is 45% U.S. equity securities, 8%
non-U.S. equity securities, 22% debt securities and 25% other,
such as real estate and private equity investments.
Assisted by an independent actuary, we develop assumptions,

which are then compared to the forecasts of other independent
investment advisors to ensure reasonableness. An internal commit-
tee selects the final assumptions. We calculated our pension cost
using an expected return on plan assets assumption of 8.75% for
2005, 2004 and 2003. We calculated our 2005 other postretire-
ment benefit cost using an expected return on plan assets assump-
tion of 8.00% compared to 7.79% and 7.78% for 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The rate used in calculating other postretirement ben-
efit cost is lower than the rate used in calculating pension cost
because of differences in the relative amounts of various types of
investments held as plan assets and because other postretirement
benefit activity, unlike the pension activity, was partially taxable in
2004 and 2003.

Discount rates are determined from analyses performed by a
third-party actuarial firm of AA/Aa rated bonds with cash flows
matching the expected payments to be made under our plans. The
discount rate used to calculate 2005 pension and other postretire-
ment benefit costs was 6.00% compared to the 6.25% and 6.75%
discount rates used to calculate 2004 and 2003 pension and other
postretirement benefit costs, respectively. Lower long-term bond
yields were the primary reason for the decline in the discount rate
from 2004 to 2005.

The medical cost trend rate assumption is established based on
analyses performed by a third-party actuarial firm of various factors
including the specific provisions of our medical plans, actual cost
trends experienced and projected, and demographics of plan par-
ticipants. Our medical cost trend rate assumption as of December
31, 2005 is 9.00% and is expected to gradually decrease to 5.00%
in later years.

The following table illustrates the effect on cost of changing the
critical actuarial assumptions previously discussed, while holding all
other assumptions constant:

Increase in
Net Periodic Cost

Other
Actuarial Change in Pension Postretirement
Assumption Assumption Benefits Benefits

(millions)

Discount rate (0.25%) $14 $ 7
Rate of return on plan assets (0.25%) 10 2
Healthcare cost trend rate 1% N/A 26

In addition to the effects on cost, a 0.25% decrease in the dis-
count rate would increase our projected pension benefit obligation
by $138 million and would increase our accumulated postretire-
ment benefit obligation by $53 million.

Accounting for regulated operations
The accounting for our regulated electric and gas operations differs
from the accounting for nonregulated operations in that we are
required to reflect the effect of rate regulation in our Consolidated
Financial Statements. Specifically, our regulated businesses record
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assets and liabilities that nonregulated companies would not report
under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. When it is probable that regulators will permit the
recovery of current costs through future rates charged to cus-
tomers, we defer these costs as regulatory assets that otherwise
would be expensed by nonregulated companies. Likewise, we rec-
ognize regulatory liabilities when it is probable that regulators will
require customer refunds through future rates and when revenue is
collected from customers for expenditures that are not yet incurred.
Regulatory assets are amortized into expense and regulatory liabili-
ties are amortized into income over the recovery period authorized
by the regulator.

We evaluate whether or not recovery of our regulatory assets
through future regulated rates is probable and make various
assumptions in our analyses. The expectations of future recovery
are generally based on orders issued by regulatory commissions or
historical experience, as well as discussions with applicable regula-
tory authorities. If recovery of regulatory assets is determined to be
less than probable, the regulatory asset will be written off and an
expense will be recorded in the period such assessment is made.
We currently believe the recovery of our regulatory assets is proba-
ble. See Notes 2 and 14 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Accounting for gas and oil operations
We follow the full cost method of accounting for gas and oil explo-
ration and production activities prescribed by the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC). Under the full cost method, all direct
costs of property acquisition, exploration and development activi-
ties are capitalized and subsequently depreciated using the units-
of-production method. The depreciable base of costs includes
estimated future costs to be incurred in developing proved gas and
oil reserves, as well as capitalized asset retirement costs, net of
projected salvage values. Capitalized costs in the depreciable base
are subject to a ceiling test prescribed by the SEC. The test limits
capitalized amounts to a ceiling—the present value of estimated
future net revenues to be derived from the production of proved gas
and oil reserves assuming period-end pricing adjusted for cash flow
hedges in place. We perform the ceiling test quarterly, on a coun-
try-by-country basis, and would recognize asset impairments to the
extent that total capitalized costs exceed the ceiling. In addition,
gains or losses on the sale or other disposition of gas and oil prop-
erties are not recognized, unless the gain or loss would significantly
alter the relationship between capitalized costs and proved
reserves of natural gas and oil attributable to a country.

Our estimate of proved reserves requires a large degree of judg-
ment and is dependent on factors such as historical data, engineer-
ing estimates of proved reserve quantities, estimates of the
amount and timing of future expenditures to develop the proved
reserves, and estimates of future production from the proved
reserves. Our estimated proved reserves as of December 31, 2005
are based upon studies for each of our properties prepared by our
staff engineers and reviewed by Ryder Scott Company, L.P. Calcula-
tions were prepared using standard geological and engineering
methods generally accepted by the petroleum industry and in
accordance with SEC guidelines. Given the volatility of natural gas
and oil prices, it is possible that our estimate of discounted future
net cash flows from proved natural gas and oil reserves that is used
to calculate the ceiling could materially change in the near-term.

The process to estimate reserves is imprecise, and estimates
are subject to revision. If there is a significant variance in any of our
estimates or assumptions in the future and revisions to the value of

our proved reserves are necessary, related depletion expense and
the calculation of the ceiling test would be affected and recognition
of natural gas and oil property impairments could occur. See Notes
2 and 29 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Income taxes
Judgment and the use of estimates are required in developing the
provision for income taxes and reporting of tax-related assets and
liabilities. The interpretation of tax laws involves uncertainty, since
tax authorities may interpret them differently. We establish liabilities
for tax-related contingencies in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 5, Accounting for Con-
tingencies, and review them in light of changing facts and circum-
stances. Ultimate resolution of income tax matters may result in
favorable or unfavorable impacts to net income and cash flows and
adjustments to tax-related assets and liabilities could be material.
In addition, deferred income tax assets and liabilities are provided,
representing future effects on income taxes for temporary differ-
ences between the bases of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting and tax purposes. We evaluate quarterly the probability of
realizing deferred tax assets by reviewing a forecast of future tax-
able income and the availability of tax planning strategies that can
be implemented, if necessary, to realize deferred tax assets. Failure
to achieve forecasted taxable income or successfully implement tax
planning strategies may affect the realization of deferred tax assets.

Other
Accounting standards
During 2005, 2004 and 2003, we were required to adopt several
new accounting standards, the requirements of which are discussed
in Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. The adoption of
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 46
(revised December 2003), Consolidation of Variable Interest Enti-
ties. (FIN 46R) on December 31, 2003 with respect to special pur-
pose entities, affected the comparability of our 2005 and 2004
Consolidated Statements of Income to 2003’s as follows:
• We were required to consolidate certain variable interest lessor

entities through which we had financed and leased several new
power generation projects, as well as our corporate headquar-
ters and aircraft. In 2005 and 2004, our Consolidated State-
ments of Income reflect depreciation expense on the net
property, plant and equipment and interest expense on the debt
associated with these entities, whereas in 2003 the lease pay-
ments to these entities were reflected as rent expense in other
operations and maintenance expense.

• In addition, under FIN 46R, we report as long-term debt our
junior subordinated notes held by five capital trusts, rather than
the trust preferred securities issued by those trusts. As a result,
in 2005 and 2004 we reported interest expense on the junior
subordinated notes rather than preferred distribution expense
on the trust preferred securities.

Clearinghouse
During the fourth quarter of 2004, we performed an evaluation of
our Dominion Clearinghouse (Clearinghouse) trading and marketing
operations, which resulted in a decision to exit certain energy trad-
ing activities and instead focus on the optimization of our assets. In
January 2005 in connection with the reorganization, commodity
derivative contracts held by the Clearinghouse were assessed to
determine if they contribute to the optimization of our assets. As a
result of this review, certain commodity derivative contracts previ-
ously designated as held for trading purposes are now held for non-
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trading purposes. Under our derivative income statement classifica-
tion policy described in Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial State-
ments, all changes in fair value, including amounts realized upon
settlement, related to the reclassified contracts were previously
presented in operating revenue on a net basis. Upon reclassifica-
tion as non-trading, all unrealized changes in fair value and settle-
ments related to those derivative contracts that are financially
settled are now reported in other operations and maintenance
expense. The statement of income related amounts for those
reclassified derivative sales contracts that are physically settled are
now presented in operating revenue, while the statement of income
related amounts for physically settled purchase contracts are
reported in operating expenses.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003

(millions)

Sale activity included in operating revenue $377 $290 $181
Purchase activity included in operating expenses(1) 362 271 163

(1) Included in other energy-related commodity purchases

In September 2005, the FASB ratified the EITF’s consensus on
Issue No. 04-13, Accounting for Purchases and Sales of Inventory
with the Same Counterparty, that will require buy/sell and related
agreements to be presented on a net basis in our Consolidated
Statements of Income if they are entered into in contemplation of
one another. This new guidance is required to be applied to all new
arrangements entered into, and modifications or renewals of exist-
ing arrangements, for reporting periods beginning April 1, 2006. We
are currently assessing the impact that this new guidance may have
on our income statement presentation of these transactions; how-
ever, there will be no impact on our results of operations or cash
flows. See Note 4 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Overview
2005 vs. 2004
Our 2005 results were significantly impacted by Hurricanes Katrina
and Rita, which struck the Gulf Coast area in late August and late
September 2005, respectively. Due to the hurricanes, our produc-
tion assets in the Gulf of Mexico and, to a lesser extent, southern
Louisiana were temporarily shut in. The interruption in gas and oil
production resulted in a $272 million after-tax loss related to the
discontinuance of hedge accounting for certain gas and oil hedges.
Results were also impacted by delays in production caused by
damage to third-party downstream infrastructure.

Our 2005 results were also negatively impacted by increased
fuel and purchased power expenses incurred by our electric utility
operations primarily as a result of higher commodity prices. These
negatives were partially offset by higher realized gas and oil prices
for our exploration and production operations, gains on the sale of
excess emissions allowances and a higher contribution from mer-
chant generation operations primarily reflecting the benefit of two
acquisitions during 2005. In January 2005, we completed the
acquisition of three fossil fired power stations with generating
capacity of more than 2,700 megawatts (Dominion New England)
and in July 2005, we completed the acquisition of the 556-
megawatt Kewaunee nuclear power station (Kewaunee).

2004 vs. 2003
Our results for 2004 improved dramatically reflecting the absence
of $750 million of after-tax losses recognized in 2003 associated
with our discontinued telecommunications business that we sold in
May 2004. Other positive drivers included higher average realized
gas and oil prices and a favorable change in the fair value of certain
oil options held by our exploration and production operations. These
positives were partially offset by increased fuel expenses incurred
by electric utility operations as a result of the elimination of
deferred fuel accounting, a loss from energy trading and marketing
activities reflecting comparatively lower price volatility on natural
gas option positions and the effect of unfavorable price changes on
electric trading margins and an after-tax charge related to our inter-
est in a long-term power tolling contract that was divested in 2005,
in connection with our exit from certain energy trading activities.

Crude oil buy/sell arrangements
We enter into buy/sell and related agreements primarily as a means
to reposition our offshore Gulf of Mexico crude oil production to
more liquid marketing locations onshore. We typically enter into
either a single or a series of buy/sell transactions in which we sell
our crude oil production at the offshore field delivery point and buy
similar quantities at Cushing, Oklahoma for sale to third parties. We
are able to enhance profitability by selling to a wide array of refiners
and/or trading companies at Cushing, one of the largest crude oil
markets in the world, versus restricting sales to a limited number of
refinery purchasers in the Gulf of Mexico.

Under the primary guidance of EITF Issue No. 99-19, Reporting
Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent, we present
the sales and purchases related to our crude oil buy/sell arrange-
ments on a gross basis in our Consolidated Statements of Income.
These transactions require physical delivery of the crude oil and the
risks and rewards of ownership are evidenced by title transfer,
assumption of environmental risk, transportation scheduling and
counterparty nonperformance risk. Amounts currently shown on a
gross basis in our Consolidated Statements of Income are summa-
rized below.

Results of Operations
Presented below is a summary of our consolidated results:

Year Ended December 31, 2005 $ Change 2004 $ Change 2003

(millions, except EPS)

Net Income $1,033 $ (216) $1,249 $ 931 $ 318
Diluted earnings per share (EPS) 3.00 (0.78) 3.78 2.78 1.00
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Analysis of Consolidated Operations
Presented below are selected amounts related to our results of
operations:

Year Ended December 31, 2005 $ Change 2004 $ Change 2003

(millions)

Operating Revenue $18,041 $4,050 $13,991 $1,896 $12,095
Operating Expenses

Electric fuel and energy
purchases 4,713 2,551 2,162 495 1,667

Purchased electric capacity 505 (82) 587 (20) 607
Purchased gas 3,941 1,014 2,927 752 2,175
Other energy-related

commodity purchases 1,391 402 989 543 446
Other operations and

maintenance 3,058 292 2,766 (181) 2,947
Depreciation, depletion

and amortization 1,412 107 1,305 89 1,216
Other taxes 582 63 519 43 476

Other income (loss) 168 1 167 207 (40)
Interest and related charges 991 52 939 (36) 975
Income tax expense 582 (118) 700 103 597
Income (loss) from discontinued

operations, net of tax 5 20 (15) 627 (642)
Cumulative effect of changes in

accounting principles, net of tax (6) (6) — (11) 11

An analysis of our results of operations for 2005 compared to
2004 and 2004 compared to 2003 follows.

2005 vs. 2004
Operating Revenue increased 29% to $18.0 billion, primarily
reflecting:
• A $1.9 billion increase in nonregulated electric sales primarily

due to a $1.1 billion increase attributable to the addition of
Dominion New England and Kewaunee and a full year of com-
mercial operations at our Fairless Energy power station (Fair-
less), which began operating in June 2004. The increase also
reflects a $730 million increase related to the designation of
certain commodity derivative contracts as held for non-trading
purposes effective January 1, 2005. These contracts were previ-
ously held for trading purposes as discussed in Note 28 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements. The impact of this change in
classification on Operating Revenue was offset by similar
changes in Other operations and maintenance expense and
Electric fuel and energy purchases expense;

• An $863 million increase in nonregulated gas sales largely
reflecting a $588 million increase from gas aggregation activities
and nonregulated retail energy marketing operations primarily
due to higher prices, a $110 million increase due to higher nat-
ural gas prices related to market-based services for the optimiza-
tion of transportation and storage assets, partially offset by the
effect of unfavorable price changes on unsettled contracts and a
$110 million increase in sales of gas purchased by exploration
and production operations to facilitate gas transportation and
satisfy other agreements. The increases in revenue from gas
aggregation activities, nonregulated retail energy marketing oper-
ations and exploration and production operations were largely
offset by corresponding increases in Purchased gas expense;

• A $400 million increase in other energy-related commodity
sales reflecting a $276 million increase in nonutility coal sales
resulting from higher coal prices ($171 million) and increased
sales volumes ($105 million), an $87 million increase in sales of

purchased oil by exploration and production operations and a
$37 million increase in sales of emissions allowances held for
resale primarily due to higher prices. This increase was largely
offset by a corresponding increase in Other energy-related
commodity purchases expense;

• A $363 million increase in regulated electric sales reflecting a
$153 million increase in sales to wholesale customers, a $99
million increase due to the impact of a comparatively higher
fuel rate for non-Virginia jurisdictional customers, a $77 million
increase primarily due to the impact of favorable weather on
customer usage and a $59 million increase from customer
growth associated with new customer connections, partially off-
set by a $25 million decrease due to variations in seasonal rate
premiums and discounts. The increase resulting from a compar-
atively higher fuel rate was more than offset by an increase in
Electric fuel and energy purchases expense; and

• A $341 million increase in regulated gas sales primarily related
to the recovery of higher gas prices. The effect of this increase
was offset by a comparable increase in Purchased gas expense.

Operating Expenses
Electric fuel and energy purchases expense increased

118% to $4.7 billion, primarily reflecting the combined effects of:
• A $1.2 billion increase related to the designation of certain

commodity derivative contracts as held for non-trading purposes
effective January 1, 2005, which were previously held for trading
purposes as discussed in Operating Revenue;

• A $796 million increase related to utility operations primarily
resulting from higher commodity prices including purchased
power and congestion costs associated with PJM; and

• A $556 million increase due to the addition of Dominion New
England and Kewaunee and a full year of commercial operations
at Fairless.
Purchased electric capacity expense decreased 14% to

$505 million, as a result of the termination of several long-term
power purchase agreements in connection with the purchase of the
related generating facilities in 2005 and 2004.

Purchased gas expense increased 35% to $3.9 billion, princi-
pally resulting from a $522 million increase associated with gas
aggregation activities and nonregulated retail energy marketing
operations, a $305 million increase associated with regulated gas
distribution operations and a $124 million increase related to
exploration and production, all of which are discussed in
Operating Revenue.

Other energy-related commodity purchases expense
increased 41% to $1.4 billion, primarily reflecting a $263 million
increase in the cost of coal purchased for resale, a $91 million
increase related to purchases of oil by exploration and production
operations, and a $47 million increase in emissions allowances pur-
chased for resale, all of which are discussed in Operating Revenue.

Other operations and maintenance expense increased 11%
to $3.1 billion, resulting from:
• A $423 million loss related to the discontinuance of hedge

accounting for certain gas and oil hedges resulting from an
interruption of gas and oil production in the Gulf of Mexico
caused by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita;

• A $361 million increase due to the addition of Dominion New
England and Kewaunee and a full year of commercial operations
at Fairless;
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• A $193 million increase in salaries and benefits, due to higher
incentive-based compensation ($106 million), wages ($43 mil-
lion) and pension and medical benefits ($44 million);

• A $77 million charge resulting from the termination of a long-
term power purchase agreement;

• A $75 million increase in hedge ineffectiveness expense associ-
ated with exploration and production operations, primarily due
to an increase in the fair value differential between the delivery
location and commodity specifications of our derivative con-
tracts and the delivery location and commodity specifications of
our forecasted gas and oil sales;

• A $59 million loss related to the discontinuance of hedge
accounting in March 2005 for certain oil hedges primarily
resulting from a delay in reaching anticipated production levels
in the Gulf of Mexico, and subsequent changes in the fair value
of those hedges;

• A $51 million charge related to credit exposure associated with
the bankruptcy of Calpine Corporation;

• A $35 million charge related to our investment in and planned
divestiture of DCI assets;
These increases were partially offset by the following:

• A $344 million decrease related to the designation of certain
commodity derivative contracts as held for non-trading purposes
effective January 1, 2005, which were previously held for trading
purposes as discussed in Operating Revenue;

• A $186 million benefit related to financial transmission rights we
received from PJM as a load-serving entity to offset the conges-
tion costs associated with PJM spot market activity, which are
included in Electric fuel and energy purchases expense;

• A $139 million gain resulting from the sale of excess emissions
allowances. Future sales, if any, are dependent on market
liquidity and other factors;

• A $24 million net benefit resulting from the establishment of
certain regulatory assets and liabilities in connection with the
settlement of a North Carolina rate case in the first quarter of
2005; and

• The net impact of the following items recognized in 2004:
• A $184 million charge related to the sale of our interest in a

long-term power tolling contract in connection with our exit
from certain energy trading activities;

• A $96 million loss related to the discontinuance of hedge
accounting for certain oil hedges resulting from an interrup-
tion of oil production in the Gulf of Mexico caused by Hurri-
cane Ivan, and subsequent changes in the fair value of those
hedges during the third quarter;

• A $72 million charge associated with the impairment of
retained interests from mortgage securitizations and venture
capital and other equity investments held by DCI; and

• A $71 million net charge resulting from the termination of
certain long-term power purchase agreements; partially
offset by

• A $120 million benefit due to favorable changes in the fair
value of certain oil options related to exploration and
production operations.

Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense (DD&A)
increased 8% to $1.4 billion, largely due to incremental deprecia-
tion and amortization expense resulting from our acquisition of the
Dominion New England power plants and other property additions.

Other taxes increased 12% to $582 million, primarily due to
higher property taxes resulting from the Dominion New England

power plants and higher severance taxes associated with increased
commodity prices.

2004 vs. 2003
Operating Revenue increased 16% to $14.0 billion, primarily
reflecting:

• A $364 million increase in nonregulated gas sales reflecting a
$410 million increase in revenue from gas aggregation activities
and nonregulated retail energy marketing operations, due to
higher prices and increased volumes and a $61 million increase
in revenue from sales of gas purchased by exploration and pro-
duction operations to facilitate gas transportation and satisfy
other agreements, partially offset by a $108 million decrease in
revenue from energy trading and marketing activities due to
comparatively lower price volatility on natural gas option posi-
tions. The increases related to gas aggregation activities, non-
regulated retail energy marketing operations and exploration
and production operations were largely offset by corresponding
increases in Purchased gas expense;

• A $304 million increase in regulated electric sales reflecting a
$231 million increase due to the impact of a comparatively
higher fuel rate on increased sales volumes and a $49 million
increase from customer growth associated with new customer
connections. The rate increase resulted from the settlement of a
Virginia fuel rate case in December 2003. This increase was
more than offset by an increase in Electric fuel and energy
purchases expense;

• A $164 million increase in regulated gas sales reflecting a $198
million increase due to higher rates for regulated gas distribution
operations primarily related to the recovery of higher gas prices
and a $20 million increase resulting from the return of cus-
tomers from Energy Choice programs, partially offset by an $87
million decrease associated with milder weather and lower
industrial sales. The effect of this net increase was largely offset
by a comparable increase in Purchased gas expense;

• A $133 million increase in gas and oil production revenue pri-
marily reflecting a $97 million increase in revenue from gas pro-
duction primarily due to higher average realized prices and a
$36 million increase in revenue from oil production primarily
reflecting higher volumes; and

• A $119 million increase in nonregulated electric sales reflecting a
$181 million increase in revenue from nonregulated retail energy
marketing operations largely due to increased volumes and a
$97 million increase in revenue from merchant generation oper-
ations, largely due to the commencement of commercial opera-
tions at Fairless in June 2004, partially offset by decreased
revenue at certain other stations resulting from lower output.
These increases were partially offset by a $140 million decrease
in revenue from energy trading and marketing activities reflecting
decreased margins in electric trading due to unfavorable
price movements.

• A $684 million increase in other energy-related commodity
sales reflecting a $384 million increase in nonutility coal sales
resulting from higher coal prices and increased sales volumes, a
$120 million increase in sales of emissions allowances held for
resale due to higher prices and increased sales volumes and a
$109 million increase in sales of purchased oil by exploration
and production operations. This increase was largely offset by a
corresponding increase in Other energy-related commodity pur-
chases expense;
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Operating Expenses and Other Items
Electric fuel and energy purchases expense increased 30%

to $2.2 billion, primarily reflecting:
• A $408 million increase related to regulated utility operations

resulting from the combined effects of an increase in the fixed
fuel rate and the elimination of fuel deferral accounting for the
Virginia jurisdiction, which resulted in the recognition of fuel
expenses in excess of amounts recovered in fixed fuel rates. The
increase also reflects higher generation output;

• A $162 million increase related to nonregulated retail energy
marketing operations discussed in Operating Revenue;

• An $88 million increase related to merchant generation opera-
tions, largely due to the addition of Fairless, partially offset by
decreased fuel expense at certain other stations resulting from
lower generation output; partially offset by

• A $163 million decrease related to energy marketing and risk
management activities.
Purchased gas expense increased 35% to $2.9 billion, princi-

pally resulting from:
• A $357 million increase associated with gas aggregation activi-

ties and nonregulated retail energy marketing operations dis-
cussed in Operating Revenue;

• A $130 million increase associated with regulated gas distribu-
tion operations discussed in Operating Revenue;

• A $66 million increase from gas transmission operations due to
increased gathering and extraction activities and higher gas
usage; and

• A $58 million increase associated with exploration and
production operations discussed in Operating Revenue.
Other energy-related commodity purchases expense

increased 122% to $989 million, primarily reflecting a $348 million
increase in coal purchased for resale, a $108 million increase
related to purchases of oil by our exploration and production opera-
tions and a $105 million increase in the cost of emissions
allowances purchased for resale, each of which are discussed in
Operating Revenue.

Other operations and maintenance expense decreased 6%
to $2.8 billion, resulting from:
• A $113 million net benefit due to favorable changes in the fair

value of certain oil options related to exploration and production
operations. During 2004, we effectively settled certain oil
options not designated as hedges by entering into offsetting
option positions that had the effect of preserving approximately
$120 million in mark-to-market gains attributable to favorable
changes in time value; and

• The impact of the following charges recognized in 2003:
• A $197 million charge representing incremental electric util-

ity restoration expenses associated with Hurricane Isabel;
• A $108 million charge from asset and goodwill impairments

associated with DCI’s financial services operations;
• A $105 million charge associated with the termination of

certain long-term power purchase agreements;
• A $64 million charge for the restructuring of certain electric

sales contracts recorded as derivative assets;
• A $60 million goodwill impairment associated with the pur-

chase of the remaining interest in the telecommunications
joint venture, Dominion Fiber Ventures, LLC (DFV), held by
another party;

• A $28 million charge related to severance costs for work-
force reductions; and

• A $22 million impairment related to CNG International’s
(CNGI) generation assets that were sold in December 2003.

These benefits were partially offset by the following charges and
incremental expenses recognized in 2004:
• A $184 million charge related to the sale of our interest in a

long-term power tolling contract;
• A $96 million loss related to the discontinuance of hedge

accounting for certain oil hedges resulting from an interruption
of oil production in the Gulf of Mexico caused by Hurricane Ivan,
and subsequent changes in the fair value of those hedges dur-
ing the third quarter;

• A $72 million charge associated with the impairment of retained
interests from mortgage securitizations and venture capital and
other equity investments held by DCI;

• A $71 million net charge associated with the termination of cer-
tain long-term power purchase agreements;

• An approximate $60 million increase in costs related to gas and
oil production activities;

• An $18 million increase in reliability expenses associated with
utility operations primarily due to increased tree-trimming;

• A $13 million increase related to salaries, wages and benefits
resulting from a $60 million increase in pension and medical
benefits and a $46 million increase due to wage increases and
other factors, partially offset by an $89 million decrease in
incentive-based compensation expense due to failure to meet
targeted earnings goals; and

• A $10 million charge associated with the sale of our natural gas
and oil assets in British Columbia, Canada.
Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense

increased 7% to $1.3 billion, largely due to incremental deprecia-
tion expense resulting from property additions, including those
resulting from the consolidation of certain variable interest entities
as a result of adopting FIN 46R at December 31, 2003.

Other taxes increased 9% to $519 million, primarily due to
higher gross receipts taxes and higher severance and property taxes
associated with increased commodity prices.

Other income increased to $167 million from a net loss of $40
million in 2003, primarily reflecting:
• A $61 million increase resulting from net realized gains (includ-

ing investment income) associated with nuclear decommission-
ing trust fund investments as opposed to net realized losses
(net of investment income) in 2003;

• A $23 million benefit associated with the disposition of CNGI’s
investment in Australian pipeline assets that were sold during
2004; and

• The impact of the following charges recognized in 2003, which
did not recur in 2004:
• $57 million of costs associated with the acquisition of DFV

senior notes;
• $27 million for the reallocation of equity losses between us

and the minority interest owner of DFV; and
• A $62 million impairment of CNGI’s investment in Australian

pipeline assets held for sale.
Income tax expense—Our effective tax rate decreased 3.0% to

35.6% for 2004, reflecting an increase in the valuation allowance
for 2003 with no comparable increase in 2004, partially offset by
increases in 2004 in utility plant differences and other factors.

Loss from discontinued operations decreased to $15 million
from $642 million, primarily reflecting the sale of our discontinued
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telecommunications operations during May 2004 and the impact of
the following charges recognized in 2003:
• Impairment of network assets and related inventories of $566

million. We did not recognize any deferred tax benefits related to
the impairment charges, since realization of tax benefits was not
anticipated at the time based on our expected future tax profile.
In addition, we increased the valuation allowance on deferred
tax assets recognized by our telecommunications investment,
resulting in a $48 million increase in deferred income tax
expense; and

• Telecommunications operating losses of $28 million.

Outlook
In order to deliver results to shareholders, we are focused on main-
taining operational excellence, managing generation-related fuel
expenses, increasing gas and oil production and managing com-
modity price risk. In 2006, we believe our operating businesses will
provide moderate growth in net income on a per share basis, includ-
ing the impact of higher expected average shares outstanding.

Positive drivers include:
• Continued growth in utility customers;
• Receipt of business interruption insurance proceeds for delays

in gas and oil production caused by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita;
• An increase in gas and oil production and higher realized prices

for gas and oil; and
• A full year’s contribution from Kewaunee.

The positive drivers will be partially offset by:
• A potential decrease in regulated electric sales, as compared to

2005, assuming our utility service territory experiences a return
to normal weather in 2006;

• A decrease in gains from the sale of excess emissions
allowances;

• A full year’s reduction in rates charged by gas transmission oper-
ations due to a rate settlement that was effective in July 2005;

• Higher expected operating expenses for gas and oil production;
and

• Increased pension and other benefits expense.
Based on these projections, we estimate that cash flow from

operations will increase in 2006, as compared to 2005. We believe
this increase will provide sufficient cash flow to maintain or grow our
current dividend to common shareholders.

Segment Results of Operations
Segment results include the impact of intersegment revenues
and expenses, which may result in intersegment profit or loss.
Presented below is a summary of contributions by our operating
segments to net income:

Selected statistics for our operating segments are presented
below:

Year Ended December 31, 2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003

Dominion Delivery
Electricity delivered

(million megawatt hours) 81 3.8% 78 4.0% 75
Degree days

(electric service area):
Cooling(1) 1,707 7.7 1,585 13.8 1,393
Heating(2) 3,784 2.8 3,682 (4.7) 3,865

Electric delivery
customer accounts(3) 2,309 1.9 2,267 1.8 2,227

Gas throughput (bcf):
Gas sales 131 3.1 127 (5.2) 134
Gas transportation 241 (1.2) 244 2.1 239

Heating degree days
(gas service area)(2) 5,899 3.2 5,716 (5.3) 6,035

Gas delivery customer
accounts(3):
Gas sales 1,006 (6.2) 1,072 12.5 953
Gas transportation 692 9.8 630 (15.5) 746

Unregulated retail energy
marketing customer
accounts(3) 1,166 0.9 1,156 (15.2) 1,363

Dominion Energy
Gas transportation

throughput (bcf) 794 12.8 704 14.7 614

Dominion Generation
Electricity supplied

(million megawatt hours):
Utility 81 3.8 78 4.0 75
Merchant 41 41.4 29 11.5 26

Dominion E&P
Gas production (bcf) 280 (16.9) 337 (7.4) 364
Oil production (million bbls) 15.3 12.5 13.6 12.4 12.1
Average realized prices with

hedging results(4):
Gas (per mcf)(5) $4.73 15.9 $4.08 2.8 $3.97
Oil (per bbl) 30.21 20.3 25.11 7.7 23.32

Average prices without
hedging results:

Gas (per mcf)(5) 7.98 39.0 5.74 13.0 5.08
Oil (per bbl) 49.54 39.6 35.49 30.0 27.30

DD&A (per mcfe) 1.47 13.1 1.30 8.3 1.20
Average production

(lifting) cost (per mcfe)(6) 1.17 27.2 0.92 15.0 0.80

bcf = billion cubic feet
bbl = barrel
mcf = thousand cubic feet
mcfe = thousand cubic feet equivalent
(1) Cooling degree days are the differences between the average temperature for each day and

65 degrees, assuming the average temperature is greater than 65 degrees.
(2) Heating degree days are the differences between the average temperature for each day and

65 degrees, assuming the average temperature is less than 65 degrees.
(3) In thousands, at period end.
(4) Excludes the effects of the economic hedges discussed under Dominion Energy.
(5) Excludes $323 million, $223 million and $43 million of revenue recognized in 2005, 2004 and

2003, respectively, under the volumetric production payment (VPP) agreements described in
Note 12 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

(6) The exclusion of volumes produced and delivered under the VPP agreements accounted for
approximately 17% of the increase from 2004 to 2005 and 75% of the increase from 2003
to 2004.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003

(millions, except EPS)

Net Diluted Net Diluted Net Diluted
Income EPS Income EPS Income EPS

Dominion Delivery $ 448 $ 1.30 $ 466 $ 1.41 $ 453 $ 1.42
Dominion Energy 319 0.93 190 0.57 346 1.09
Dominion Generation 402 1.17 525 1.59 512 1.60
Dominion Exploration &

Production 565 1.64 595 1.80 415 1.30

Primary operating
segments 1,734 5.04 1,776 5.37 1,726 5.41

Corporate (701) (2.04) (527) (1.59) (1,408) (4.41)

Consolidated $1,033 $ 3.00 $1,249 $ 3.78 $ 318 $ 1.00
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Dominion Delivery
Dominion Delivery includes our regulated electric and gas distribu-
tion and customer service business, as well as nonregulated retail
energy marketing operations.

Presented below, on an after-tax basis, are the key factors
impacting Dominion Delivery’s net income contribution:

2005 vs. 2004

Increase (Decrease)

Amount EPS

(millions, except EPS)

Interest expense(1) $(25) $(0.08)
Salaries, wages and benefits expense (14) (0.04)
Depreciation expense (10) (0.03)
Bad debt expense(2) (7) (0.02)
Regulated electric sales:

Weather 14 0.04
Customer growth 11 0.03

Regulated gas sales—weather 8 0.02
Other 5 0.02
Share dilution — (0.05)

Change in net income contribution $(18) $(0.11)

(1) Represents the impact of additional long-term affiliate borrowings and variable rate debt,
higher interest rates on affiliate borrowings and prepayment penalties resulting from the
early redemption of debt.

(2) Higher bad debt expense primarily reflects the absence of a 2004 reduction in reserves.

2004 vs. 2003

Increase (Decrease)

Amount EPS

(millions, except EPS)

Nonregulated retail energy marketing operations(1) $ 32 $0.10
Regulated electric sales:

Customer growth 9 0.03
Weather 4 0.01

Reliability expenses(2) (11) (0.03)
Regulated gas sales—weather (9) (0.03)
Other(3) (12) (0.04)
Share dilution — (0.05)

Change in net income contribution $ 13 $(0.01)

(1) Higher contribution primarily reflects an increase in average customer accounts and higher
electric and gas margins.

(2) Higher reliability expenses, largely due to increased tree trimming.
(3) Other factors, including a decrease in net pension credits.

Dominion Energy
Dominion Energy includes our tariff-based electric transmission,
natural gas transmission pipeline and storage businesses and an
LNG facility. It also includes certain natural gas production and pro-
ducer services, which consist of aggregation of gas supply, market-
based services related to gas transportation and storage and
associated gas trading and the prior year’s results of certain energy
trading activities exited in December 2004.

Presented below, on an after-tax basis, are the key factors
impacting Dominion Energy’s net income contribution:

2005 vs. 2004

Increase (Decrease)

Amount EPS

(millions, except EPS)

Producer services(1) $119 $ 0.36
Economic hedges(2) 22 0.07
Cove Point(3) 13 0.04
Gas transmission rate reduction(4) (17) (0.05)
Salaries, wages and benefits expense (11) (0.03)
Other 3 0.01
Share dilution — (0.04)

Change in net income contribution $129 $ 0.36

(1) Reflects the impact of losses in the prior year related to certain energy trading activities that
were exited in December 2004 and higher contributions from market-based gas trading,
storage, transportation and aggregation activities.

(2) Represents the impact of price movements in 2004 associated with a portfolio of financial
derivative instruments used to manage price risk associated with a portion of our anticipated
sales of 2004 natural gas production that had not been considered in the hedging activities of
the Dominion E&P segment. In 2005, we did not enter into similar economic hedging
transactions.

(3) Reflects the addition of a fifth storage tank in December 2004 and increased pipeline
capacity.

(4) Represents the impact of a comprehensive rate settlement between Dominion Transmission,
Inc. (DTI) and its customers. The settlement, which became effective July 1, 2005, will reduce
our natural gas transportation and storage service revenues by approximately $49 million
annually.

2004 vs. 2003

Increase (Decrease)

Amount EPS

(millions, except EPS)

Energy trading and marketing(1) $(116) $(0.37)
Electric transmission revenue(2) (15) (0.05)
Economic hedges (12) (0.04)
Other(3) (13) (0.04)
Share dilution — (0.02)

Change in net income contribution $(156) $(0.52)

(1) The loss from energy trading and marketing activities reflects comparatively lower price
volatility on natural gas option positions and the effect of unfavorable price changes on
electric trading margins.

(2) Reflects decreased wheeling revenue resulting from lower contractual volumes and
unfavorable market conditions.

(3) Other factors including losses from asset and price risk management activities related to
intersegment marketing.

Dominion Generation
Dominion Generation includes the generation operations of our
electric utility and merchant fleet as well as energy marketing and
risk management activities associated with the optimization of
generation assets.
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Presented below, on an after-tax basis, are the key factors
impacting Dominion Generation’s net income contribution:

2005 vs. 2004

Increase (Decrease)

Amount EPS

(millions, except EPS)

Fuel expenses in excess of rate recovery $(280) $(0.85)
Interest and other financing expense(1) (51) (0.15)
Energy marketing and risk management activities(2) (50) (0.15)
Salaries, wages and benefits expense (36) (0.11)
Merchant generation(3) 103 0.31
Sales of excess emissions allowances 63 0.19
Energy supply margin(4) 40 0.12
Purchased electric capacity expense 37 0.11
Regulated electric sales:

Weather 39 0.12
Customer growth 24 0.07

Other (12) (0.04)
Share dilution — (0.04)

Change in net income contribution $(123) $(0.42)

(1) Represents higher interest rates on affiliate borrowings and variable rate debt, prepayment
penalties resulting from the early redemption of debt and the lease financing of Fairless.

(2) Reflects lower gains in 2005 from coal trading and marketing activities and current year
losses related to risk management activities and legacy power transactions.

(3) Primarily represents contributions from Dominion New England and Kewaunee, partially
offset by a lower contribution from the Millstone power station due to an additional planned
outage in 2005.

(4) Higher energy supply margins reflect a benefit related to financial transmission rights
realized in our utility operations.

2004 vs. 2003

Increase (Decrease)

Amount EPS

(millions, except EPS)

Nuclear decommissioning trust investment performance $ 38 $0.12
Purchased electric capacity expense 36 0.11
Coal trading and marketing(1) 31 0.10
Regulated electric sales:

Customer growth 20 0.06
Weather 10 0.03

Fuel expenses in excess of rate recovery (115) (0.36)
Other (7) (0.02)
Share dilution — (0.05)

Change in net income contribution $ 13 $(0.01)

(1) Increased contribution primarily due to higher coal prices and increased sales volumes.

Dominion E&P
Dominion E&P includes our gas and oil exploration, development
and production business. Operations are located in several major
producing basins in the lower 48 states, including the outer conti-
nental shelf and deepwater areas of the Gulf of Mexico, and West-
ern Canada.

Presented below, on an after-tax basis, are the key factors
impacting Dominion E&P’s net income contribution:

2005 vs. 2004

Increase (Decrease)

Amount EPS

(millions, except EPS)

Operations and maintenance(1) $(134) $(0.41)
Gas and oil—production(2) (111) (0.34)
Interest expense(3) (25) (0.08)
Gas and oil—prices 185 0.56
Business interruption insurance—Hurricane Ivan 50 0.15
Other 5 0.02
Share dilution — (0.06)

Change in net income contribution $ (30) $(0.16)

(1) Reflects the impact in 2004 of favorable changes in the fair value of certain oil options, an
increase in hedge ineffectiveness expense in 2005 and the discontinuance of hedge
accounting for certain oil hedges in March 2005 largely resulting from delays in reaching
anticipated production levels in the Gulf of Mexico, and subsequent changes in the fair value
of those hedges, partially offset by a benefit reflecting the impact of a decrease in gas and
oil prices on hedges that were de-designated following Hurricanes Katrina and Rita.

(2) Reflects interruptions caused by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita and the sale of the majority of
our natural gas and oil properties in British Columbia, Canada in December 2004.

(3) Represents the combined impact of an increase in affiliate borrowings and higher interest
rates, as well as prepayment penalties resulting from the early redemption of Canadian debt.

2004 vs. 2003

Increase (Decrease)

Amount EPS

(millions, except EPS)

Gas and oil—prices $ 67 $ 0.21
Business interruption insurance—Hurricane Ivan 61 0.19
Gas and oil—production 40 0.13
Operations and maintenance(1) 26 0.08
DD&A(2) (17) (0.05)
Other 3 0.01
Share dilution — (0.07)

Change in net income contribution $180 $ 0.50

(1) Lower operations and maintenance expenses, primarily due to favorable changes in the fair
value of certain oil options, partially offset by an increase in production costs.

(2) Higher depreciation, depletion and amortization, primarily reflecting higher industry finding
and development costs and increased acquisition costs.

Included below are the volumes and weighted average prices
associated with economic hedges in place as of December 31,
2005 by applicable time period. Prior cash flow hedges for which
hedge accounting was discontinued due to production interruptions
caused by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita, and for which amounts
were reclassified from AOCI to earnings upon the discontinuance of
hedge accounting, are excluded from the following table:

Natural Gas Oil

Hedged Average Hedged Average
Production Hedge Price Production Hedge Price

Year (bcf) (per mcf) (million bbls) (per bbl)

2006 219.8 $4.72 12.7 $25.25
2007 202.2 5.60 10.0 33.41
2008 54.0 6.49 5.0 49.36
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Corporate
Presented below are the Corporate segment’s after-tax results:

2005 2004 2003

(millions, except EPS amounts)

Specific items attributable to operating segments $ (505) $(224) $ (220)
DCI operations (22) (82) (96)
Telecommunications operations(1) 5 (13) (750)
Other corporate operations (179) (208) (342)

Total net expense (701) (527) (1,408)

Earnings per share impact $(2.04) $(1.59) $ (4.41)

(1) $5 million, $(15) million and $(642) million are classified as discontinued operations in 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively.

Specific Items Attributable to Operating Segments—2005
We reported expenses of $505 million in the Corporate segment
attributable to our operating segments. The expenses in 2005 pri-
marily related to the impact of the following:
• A $556 million loss ($357 million after-tax), related to the dis-

continuance of hedge accounting for certain gas and oil hedges
resulting from an interruption of gas and oil production in the
Gulf of Mexico caused by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita, and sub-
sequent changes in the fair value of those hedges, attributable
to Dominion E&P;

• A $77 million ($47 million after-tax) charge resulting from the
termination of a long-term power purchase agreement, attribut-
able to Dominion Generation; and

• A $51 million charge related to credit exposure associated with
the bankruptcy of Calpine Corporation, attributable to Dominion
Generation. We have not recognized any deferred tax benefits
related to the charge, since realization of tax benefits is not
anticipated at this time based on our expected future tax profile.

Specific Items Attributable to Operating Segments—2004
We reported net expenses of $224 million in the Corporate seg-
ment attributable to our operating segments. The net expenses in
2004 primarily related to the impact of the following:

• $96 million of losses ($61 million after-tax) related to the dis-
continuance of hedge accounting for certain oil hedges, result-
ing from an interruption of oil production in the Gulf of Mexico
caused by Hurricane Ivan, and subsequent changes in the fair
value of those hedges during the third quarter, attributable to
Dominion E&P; and

• $71 million of charges ($43 million after-tax) resulting from the
termination of certain long-term power purchase contracts,
attributable to Dominion Generation.

Specific Items Attributable to Operating Segments—2003
We reported net expenses of $220 million in the Corporate seg-
ment attributable to our operating segments. The net expenses in
2003 primarily related to the impact of the following:
• $21 million net after-tax benefit representing the cumulative

effect of adopting new accounting principles, as described in
Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements, including:
• SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations:

a $180 million after-tax benefit attributable to: Dominion
Generation ($188 million after-tax benefit); Dominion E&P

($7 million after-tax charge); and Dominion Delivery ($1 mil-
lion after-tax charge);

• Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 02-3, Issues
Involved in Accounting for Derivative Contracts Held for Trad-
ing Purposes and Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and
Risk Management Activities: a $67 million after-tax charge
attributable to Dominion Energy;

• Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. C20, Interpreta-
tion of the Meaning of ‘Not Clearly and Closely Related’ in
Paragraph 10(b) regarding Contracts with a Price Adjustment
Feature: a $75 million after-tax charge attributable to
Dominion Generation; and

• FIN 46R: a $17 million after-tax charge attributable to
Dominion Generation;

• $197 million of operations and maintenance expense ($122
million after-tax), representing incremental restoration expenses
associated with Hurricane Isabel, attributable primarily to
Dominion Delivery;

• A $105 million charge ($65 million after-tax) for the termination
of power purchase agreements attributable to Dominion Gener-
ation;

• A $64 million charge ($39 million after-tax) for the restructuring
and termination of certain electric sales agreements attributable
to Dominion Generation; and

• $26 million of severance costs ($15 million after-tax) for work-
force reductions during the first quarter of 2003, attributable to:
• Dominion Generation ($8 million after-tax);
• Dominion Energy ($2 million after-tax);
• Dominion Delivery ($4 million after-tax); and
• Dominion E&P ($1 million after-tax).

DCI Operations
DCI’s net loss for 2005 decreased $60 million, primarily due to a
reduction in after-tax charges associated with the impairment and
divestiture of DCI investments.

DCI recognized a net loss of $82 million in 2004; a decrease of
$14 million as compared to 2003. The decrease primarily resulted
from a $20 million reduction in after-tax charges associated with
asset impairments.

Telecommunications Operations
We sold our telecommunications business in May 2004 to Elantic
Telecom, Inc., which subsequently filed for bankruptcy. Due to the
resolution of certain contingencies, we recognized an after-tax ben-
efit of $5 million in 2005 related to the discontinued telecommuni-
cations business.

The loss from our discontinued telecommunications business
decreased $737 million to $13 million in 2004, primarily due to the
impact of certain charges recognized during 2003, which included:
• $566 million associated with the impairment of network assets

and related inventories. We have not recognized any deferred tax
benefits related to the impairment charges, since realization of
tax benefits will be dependent on our expected future tax profile;

• A $48 million increase in deferred tax expense as a result of an
increase in the valuation allowance on deferred tax assets;

• Our purchase of the remaining equity interest in DFV held by
another party for $62 million in December 2003, $60 million of
which was recorded as goodwill and impaired;

• $57 million ($35 million after-tax) for the costs associated with
our acquisition of DFV senior notes; and

• $41 million of after-tax operating losses.

• A $184 million charge ($112 million after-tax) related to the
sale of our interest in a long-term power tolling contract
attributable to Dominion Generation;
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Other Corporate Operations
The net expenses associated with other corporate operations for
2005 decreased by $29 million as compared to 2004, primarily
reflecting an increase in interest income from affiliate advances and
higher income tax benefits. This was partially offset by the impact in
2004 of a $28 million after-tax benefit associated with the disposi-
tion of CNGI’s investment in Australian pipeline assets.

The net expenses associated with other corporate operations for
2004 decreased by $134 million as compared to 2003, predomi-
nantly due to a $28 million after-tax benefit associated with the
sale of CNGI’s investment in Australian pipeline assets in 2004,
lower interest expense and the impact in 2003 of the following
charges:
• A $22 million ($14 million after-tax) impairment related to

CNGI’s generation assets that were sold in December 2003;
• A $62 million ($55 million after-tax) impairment of CNGI’s

investment in Australian pipeline assets that were held for sale;
and

• A $16 million ($10 million after-tax) loss representing the cumu-
lative effect of adopting FIN 46R.

Selected Information—Energy Trading Activities
We engage in energy trading, marketing and hedging activities to
complement our integrated energy businesses and facilitate our risk
management activities. As part of these operations, we enter into
contracts for purchases and sales of energy-related commodities,
including natural gas, electricity, oil and coal. Settlements of con-
tracts may require physical delivery of the underlying commodity or
cash settlement. We also enter into contracts with the objective of
benefiting from changes in prices. For example, after entering into a
contract to purchase a commodity, we typically enter into a sales
contract, or a combination of sales contracts, with quantities and
delivery or settlement terms that are identical or very similar to
those of the purchase contract. When the purchase and sales con-
tracts are settled either by physical delivery of the underlying com-
modity or by net cash settlement, we may receive a net cash margin
(a realized gain), or may pay a net cash margin (a realized loss).
We continually monitor our contract positions, considering location
and timing of delivery or settlement for each energy commodity in
relation to market price activity.

A summary of the changes in the unrealized gains and losses
recognized for our energy-related derivative instruments held for
trading purposes during 2005 follows:

Amount

(millions)

Net unrealized gain at December 31, 2004 $ 146
Contracts realized or otherwise settled during the period (106)
Net unrealized gain at inception of contracts initiated during the period —
Changes in valuation techniques —
Redefinition of trading contracts(1) 2
Other changes in fair value (49)

Net unrealized loss at December 31, 2005 $ (7)

(1) Represents the designation of certain commodity derivative contracts as non-trading that
were previously held for trading purposes as discussed in Note 28 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The balance of net unrealized gains and losses recognized for
our energy-related derivative instruments held for trading purposes
at December 31, 2005, is summarized in the following table based
on the approach used to determine fair value:

Maturity Based on Contract
Settlement or Delivery Date(s)

Less In Excess
Source of than 1-2 2-3 3-5 of
Fair Value 1 Year Years Years Years 5 Years Total

(millions)

Actively quoted(1) $14 $ (7) $(10) $ 2 — $(1)
Other external sources(2) — (4) — (1) $(1) (6)
Models and other valuation

methods — — — — — —

Total $14 $(11) $(10) $ 1 $(1) $(7)

(1) Exchange-traded and over-the-counter contracts.
(2) Values based on prices from over-the-counter broker activity and industry services and,

where applicable, conventional option pricing models.

Sources and Uses of Cash
We depend on both internal and external sources of liquidity to pro-
vide working capital and to fund capital requirements. Short-term
cash requirements not met by cash provided by operations are gen-
erally satisfied with proceeds from short-term borrowings. Long-
term cash needs are met through sales of securities and additional
long-term financing.

At December 31, 2005, we had cash and cash equivalents of
$146 million and $2.0 billion of unused capacity under our credit
facilities.

Operating Cash Flows
As presented on our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, net
cash flows from operating activities were $2.6 billion, $2.8 billion
and $2.4 billion for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003, respectively. We believe that our operations provide a
stable source of cash flow sufficient to contribute to planned levels
of capital expenditures and maintain or grow the dividend on com-
mon shares. The declaration and payment of dividends are subject
to the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend upon our
results of operations, financial condition, capital requirements and
future prospects.

Our operations are subject to risks and uncertainties that may
negatively impact the timing or amounts of operating cash flow,
including:
• Cost-recovery shortfalls due to capped base rates and fixed

fuel recovery provisions in effect in Virginia for our generation
operations;

• The collection of business interruption insurance proceeds asso-
ciated with the recovery of delayed gas and oil production due
to Hurricanes Katrina and Rita;

• Unusual weather and its effect on energy sales to customers
and energy commodity prices;

• Extreme weather events that could disrupt gas and oil produc-
tion or cause catastrophic damage to our electric distribution
and transmission systems;

• Exposure to unanticipated changes in prices for energy com-
modities purchased or sold, including the effect on derivative
instruments that may require the use of funds to post collateral
with counterparties;
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• Effectiveness of our risk management activities and underlying
assessment of market conditions and related factors, including
energy commodity prices, basis, liquidity, volatility, counterparty
credit risk, availability of generation and transmission capacity,
currency exchange rates and interest rates;

• The cost of replacement electric energy in the event of longer-
than-expected or unscheduled generation outages;

• Contractual or regulatory restrictions on transfers of funds
among Dominion and our subsidiaries; and

• Timeliness of recovery for costs subject to cost-of-service utility
rate regulation.

Credit Risk
Exposure to potential concentrations of credit risk results primarily
from our energy marketing and risk management activities and
sales of gas and oil production. Presented below is a summary of
our gross and net credit exposure as of December 31, 2005 for
these activities. We calculate our gross credit exposure for each
counterparty as the unrealized fair value of derivative contracts plus
any outstanding receivables (net of payables, where netting agree-
ments exist), prior to the application of collateral.

Gross Net
Credit Credit Credit

Exposure Collateral Exposure

(millions)

Investment grade(1) $ 931 $143 $ 788
Non-investment grade(2) 26 — 26
No external ratings:

Internally rated—investment grade(3) 46 — 46
Internally rated—non-investment grade(4) 343 — 343

Total $1,346 $143 $1,203

(1) Designations as investment grade are based upon minimum credit ratings assigned by
Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s) and Standard & Poor’s Rating Group, a division of the
McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. (Standard & Poor’s). The five largest counterparty exposures,
combined, for this category represented approximately 19% of the total net credit exposure.

(2) The five largest counterparty exposures, combined, for this category represented
approximately 2% of the total net credit exposure.

(3) The five largest counterparty exposures, combined, for this category represented
approximately 4% of the total net credit exposure.

(4) The five largest counterparty exposures, combined, for this category represented
approximately 7% of the total net credit exposure.

Investing Cash Flows
During 2005, 2004 and 2003, investing activities resulted in net
cash outflows of $3.4 billion, $1.2 billion, and $3.4 billion respec-
tively. Significant investing activities for 2005 included:
• $1.7 billion of capital expenditures for the construction and

expansion of generation facilities, environmental upgrades, pur-
chase of nuclear fuel, construction and improvements of gas
and electric transmission and distribution assets and the cost of
acquiring a nonutility generating facility;

• $1.7 billion of capital expenditures for the purchase and devel-
opment of gas and oil producing properties, drilling and equip-
ment costs and undeveloped lease acquisitions;

• $877 million primarily related to the acquisition of the Dominion
New England power plants and the Kewaunee power station;
and

• $854 million for the purchase of securities; partially offset by
• $754 million of proceeds from the sale of securities;
• $595 million of proceeds from sales of gas and oil mineral

rights and properties; and
• $234 million of proceeds from sales of excess emissions

allowances.

Financing Cash Flows and Liquidity
We rely on banks and capital markets as significant sources of
funding for capital requirements not satisfied by cash provided by
the companies’ operations. As discussed further in the Credit Rat-
ings section below, our ability to borrow funds or issue securities
and the return demanded by investors are affected by the issuing
company’s credit ratings. In addition, the raising of external capital
is subject to certain regulatory approvals, including registration with
the SEC and, in the case of Virginia Electric and Power Company
(Virginia Power), approval by the Virginia State Corporation Com-
mission (Virginia Commission).

In December 2005, the SEC adopted rules that modify the reg-
istration, communications and offering processes under the Securi-
ties Act of 1933. The rules streamline the shelf registration process
to provide registrants with more timely access to capital. Under the
new rules, Dominion and Virginia Power meet the definition of a
well-known seasoned issuer. This allows them to use an automatic
shelf registration statement to register any offering of securities,
other than those for business combination transactions.

During 2005 and 2003, net cash flows from financing activities
were $522 million and $853 million, respectively. During 2004 net
cash used in financing activities was $1.3 billion. Significant financ-
ing activities in 2005 included:
• $2.3 billion from the issuance of long-term debt;
• $1.0 billion from the net issuance of short-term debt;
• $664 million from the issuance of common stock; partially

offset by
• $2.2 billion for the repayment of long-term debt;
• $923 million of common dividend payments; and
• $276 million for the repurchase of common stock.

Credit Facilities and Short-Term Debt
We use short-term debt, primarily commercial paper, to fund work-
ing capital requirements, as a bridge to long-term debt financing
and as bridge financing for acquisitions, if applicable. The level of
our borrowings may vary significantly during the course of the year,
depending upon the timing and amount of cash requirements not
satisfied by cash from operations. In addition, we utilize cash and
letters of credit to fund collateral requirements under our commodi-
ties hedging program. Collateral requirements are impacted by com-
modity prices, hedging levels and our credit quality and the credit
quality of our counterparties. In May 2005, we entered into a $2.5
billion five-year revolving credit facility that replaced our $1.5 billion
three-year facility dated May 2004 and our $750 million three-year
facility dated May 2002. In August 2005, CNG entered into a $1.75
billion five-year facility that replaced its $1.5 billion three-year facil-
ity dated August 2004. At December 31, 2005, we had committed
lines of credit totaling $4.25 billion. Although there were no loans
outstanding, these lines of credit support commercial paper borrow-
ings and letter of credit issuances. At December 31, 2005, we had
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the following commercial paper and letters of credit outstanding
and capacity available under credit facilities:

Outstanding Outstanding Facility
Facility Commercial Letters of Capacity

Limit Paper Credit Available

(millions)

Five-year revolving
credit facility(1) $2,500 $1,401 $ 892 $207

Five-year CNG
credit facility(2) 1,750 187 1,227 336

Totals $4,250 $1,588 $2,119 $543

(1) The $2.5 billion five-year credit facility was entered into in May 2005 and terminates in May
2010. This credit facility can also be used to support up to $1.25 billion of letters of credit. In
February 2006, this facility was replaced by a $3.0 billion five-year credit facility that
terminates in February 2011.

(2) The $1.75 billion five-year credit facility is used to support the issuance of letters of credit and
commercial paper by CNG to fund collateral requirements under its gas and oil hedging
program. The facility was entered into in August 2005 and terminates in August 2010. In
February 2006, the facility limit was reduced to $1.70 billion.

We have also entered into several bilateral credit facilities in
addition to the facilities above in order to provide collateral required
on derivative contracts used in our risk management strategies for
merchant generation and gas and oil production operations,
respectively. Collateral requirements have increased significantly in
2005 as a result of escalating commodity prices. At December 31,
2005, we had the following letter of credit facilities:

(1) In February 2006, the facility limit was reduced to $150 million.
(2) In February 2006, CNG replaced this facility with a $1.05 billion 364-day credit facility.
(3) This facility can also be used to support commercial paper borrowings.
(4) In February 2006, the facility limit was reduced to $215 million.

In connection with our commodity hedging activities, we are
required to provide collateral to counterparties under some circum-
stances. Under certain collateral arrangements, we may satisfy
these requirements by electing to either deposit cash, post letters
of credit or, in some cases, utilize other forms of security. From time
to time, we vary the form of collateral provided to counterparties
after weighing the costs and benefits of various factors associated
with the different forms of collateral. These factors include short-
term borrowing and short-term investment rates, the spread over

these short-term rates at which we can issue commercial paper,
balance sheet impacts, the costs and fees of alternative collateral
postings with these and other counterparties and overall liquidity
management objectives.

Our financial policy precludes issuing commercial paper in
excess of our supporting lines of credit. At December 31, 2005, the
total amount of commercial paper outstanding was $1.6 billion and
the total amount of letter of credit issuances was $4.1 billion, leav-
ing approximately $2.0 billion available for issuance. We are
required to pay minimal annual commitment fees to maintain the
credit facilities.

In addition, these credit agreements contain various terms and
conditions that could affect our ability to borrow under these facili-
ties. They include maximum debt to total capital ratios, material
adverse change clauses and cross-default provisions.

All of the credit facilities include a defined maximum total debt
to total capital ratio. As of December 31, 2005, the calculated ratio
for our companies, pursuant to the terms of the agreements, was
as follows:

Maximum Actual
Company Ratio Ratio(1)

Dominion Resources, Inc. 65% 59%
Virginia Power 65% 46%
CNG 65% 55%

(1) Indebtedness as defined by the bank agreements excludes certain junior subordinated notes
payable to affiliated trusts and mandatorily convertible securities that are reflected as long-
term debt on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

These provisions apply separately to Dominion Resources, Inc.,
Virginia Power and CNG (the Dominion Companies). If any one of
the Dominion Companies or any of that specific company’s material
subsidiaries fail to make payment on various debt obligations in
excess of $25 million, the lenders could require that respective
company to accelerate its repayment of any outstanding borrowings
under the credit facility and the lenders could terminate their com-
mitment to lend funds to that company. Accordingly, any defaults
on indebtedness by CNG or any of its material subsidiaries would
not affect the lenders’ commitment to Virginia Power. Similarly, any
defaults on indebtedness by Virginia Power or any of its material
subsidiaries would not affect the lenders’ commitment to CNG.
However, any default by either CNG or Virginia Power would also
affect in like manner the lenders’ commitment to Dominion
Resources, Inc. under the joint credit agreements.

Although the joint credit agreements contain material adverse
change clauses, the participating lenders, under those specific pro-
visions, cannot refuse to advance funds to any of the Dominion
Companies for the repurchase of our outstanding commercial
paper.

Long-Term Debt
During 2005, Dominion Resources, Inc. issued the following long-
term debt:

Type Principal Rate Maturity

(millions)

Senior notes $1,000 Variable 2007
Senior notes 300 4.75% 2010
Senior notes 500 5.15% 2015
Senior notes 500 5.95% 2035

Total long-term debt issued $2,300

Outstanding Facility Facility Facility
Facility Letters Capacity Inception Maturity

Company Limit of Credit Remaining Date Date

(millions)

CNG $ 100 $ 100 $ — June June
2004 2007

CNG 100 100 — August August
2004 2009

CNG(1) 550 550 — October April
2004 2006

CNG(2) 1,900 625 1,275 August February
2005 2006

CNG(3) 200 — 200 December December
2005 2010

Dominion Resources, Inc. 150 150 — September March
2005 2006

Dominion Resources, Inc. 200 200 — August February
2005 2006

Dominion Resources, Inc.(4) 290 290 — October April
2005 2006

$3,490 $2,015 $1,475
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In February 2005, in connection with the acquisition of a non-
utility generating facility from Panda-Rosemary LP (Rosemary), Vir-
ginia Power assumed $62 million of Rosemary’s 8.625% senior
notes that mature in 2016. In addition, in February and April of
2005, Virginia Power issued $2 million and $6 million, respectively,
of 7.25% promissory notes, which mature in 2025 and 2032,
respectively, in exchange for electric distribution facilities at certain
military bases in connection with their privatization.

In January 2006, Virginia Power issued $450 million of 5.4%
senior notes that mature in 2016 and $550 million of 6.0% senior
notes that mature in 2036.

In February 2006, Dominion Energy Brayton Point, LLC borrowed
$47 million in connection with the Massachusetts Development
Finance Agency’s issuance of its Solid Waste Disposal Revenue
Bonds (Dominion Energy Brayton Point Issue) Series 2006, which
mature in 2036 and bear a coupon rate of 5%, in order to finance
certain improvements to our Brayton Point Station located in
Somerset, Massachusetts.

During 2005, we repaid $2.2 billion of long-term debt securities.

Issuance of Common Stock
During 2005, we received proceeds of $345 million for 5.8 million
shares issued through Dominion Direct® (a dividend reinvestment
and open enrollment direct stock purchase plan), employee savings
plans and the exercise of employee stock options. In February
2005, Dominion Direct® and the Dominion employee savings plans
began purchasing Dominion common stock on the open market
with the proceeds received through these programs, rather than
having additional new common shares issued.

Repurchases of Common Stock
In February 2005, we were authorized by our Board of Directors to
repurchase up to the lesser of 25 million shares or $2.0 billion of
our outstanding common stock. During 2005, we repurchased 3.7
million shares for approximately $276 million.

Forward Equity Transaction
In September 2004, we entered into a forward equity sale agree-
ment (forward agreement) with Merrill Lynch International (MLI), as
forward purchaser, relating to 10 million shares of our common
stock. The forward agreement provided for the sale of two tranches
of our common stock, each with stated maturity dates and settle-
ment prices. In connection with the forward agreement, MLI bor-
rowed an equal number of shares of our common stock from stock
lenders and, at our request, sold the borrowed shares to J.P. Mor-
gan Securities Inc. (JPM) under a purchase agreement among
Dominion, MLI and JPM. JPM subsequently offered the borrowed
shares to the public. We accounted for the forward agreement as
equity at its initial fair value but did not receive any proceeds from
the sale of the borrowed shares.

The use of a forward agreement allowed us to avoid equity mar-
ket uncertainty by pricing a stock offering under then existing mar-
ket conditions, while mitigating share dilution by postponing the
issuance of stock until funds were needed. Except in specified cir-
cumstances or events that would have required physical share set-
tlement, we were able to elect to settle the forward agreement by
means of a physical share, cash or net share settlement and were
also able to elect to settle the agreement in whole, or in part, ear-
lier than the stated maturity date at fixed settlement prices. Under
either a physical share or net share settlement, the maximum num-
ber of shares that were deliverable under the terms of the forward
agreement was limited to the 10 million shares specified in the two

tranches. Assuming gross share settlement of all shares under the
forward agreement, we would have received aggregate proceeds of
approximately $644 million, based on maturity forward prices of
$64.62 per share for the 2 million shares included in the first
tranche and $64.34 per share for the 8 million shares included in
the second tranche.

We elected to cash settle the first tranche in December 2004
and paid MLI $5.8 million, representing the difference between our
share price and the applicable forward sale price, multiplied by the
2 million shares. Additionally, we elected to cash settle 3 million
shares of the second tranche in February 2005 and paid MLI $17.4
million. We recorded the settlement payments as a reduction to
common stock in our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

In April 2005, we entered into an agreement with MLI that
extended the settlement date for the remaining 5 million shares of
the second tranche to August 2005. In August 2005, we delivered
5 million newly issued shares of our common stock to MLI, and
received proceeds of $319.7 million as final settlement of the for-
ward agreement.

Credit Ratings
Credit ratings are intended to provide banks and capital market par-
ticipants with a framework for comparing the credit quality of securi-
ties and are not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities. We
believe that the current credit ratings of the Dominion Companies
provide sufficient access to the capital markets. However, disruptions
in the banking and capital markets not specifically related to us may
affect the Dominion Companies’ ability to access these funding
sources or cause an increase in the return required by investors.

Both quantitative (financial strength) and qualitative (business
or operating characteristics) factors are considered by the credit
rating agencies in establishing an individual company’s credit rating.
Credit ratings should be evaluated independently and are subject to
revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating organiza-
tion. The credit ratings for the Dominion Companies are most
affected by each company’s financial profile, mix of regulated and
nonregulated businesses and respective cash flows, changes in
methodologies used by the rating agencies and “event risk,” if
applicable, such as major acquisitions.

Credit ratings for the Dominion Companies as of February 1,
2006 follow:

Standard
Fitch Moody’s & Poor’s

Dominion Resources, Inc.
Senior unsecured debt securities BBB+ Baa1 BBB
Preferred securities of affiliated trusts BBB Baa2 BB+
Commercial paper F2 P-2 A-2

Virginia Power
Mortgage bonds A A2 A–
Senior unsecured (including tax-exempt)

debt securities BBB+ A3 BBB
Preferred securities of affiliated trust BBB Baa1 BB+
Preferred stock BBB Baa2 BB+
Commercial paper F2 P-1 A-2

CNG
Senior unsecured debt securities BBB+ A3 BBB
Preferred securities of affiliated trust BBB Baa1 BB+
Commercial paper F2 P-2 A-2

These credit ratings reflect Standard & Poor’s December 2005
downgrade of its credit ratings for the Dominion Companies’ senior
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unsecured debt securities. Standard & Poor’s concluded that fuel
expenses in excess of rate recovery at Virginia Power and delays in
gas and oil production at CNG have caused a deterioration in
Dominion’s financial performance to a level more commensurate
with a BBB rating and that there will be no material improvement in
Dominion’s credit profile before midyear 2007. In January 2006,
Moody’s announced that it had placed the credit ratings of the
Dominion Companies under review for possible downgrade, citing
recent financial performance that was weaker than expected, a
decline in funds from operations and higher than expected lever-
age. Moody’s review is expected to be completed within three
months and will focus on the Dominion Companies’ expected finan-
cial profile over the next 12-18 months. As of February 1, 2006,
Fitch Ratings Ltd. (Fitch) and Standard & Poor’s maintain a stable
outlook for their ratings of the Dominion Companies.

Generally, a downgrade in an individual company’s credit rating
would not restrict its ability to raise short-term and long-term financ-
ing as long as its credit rating remains “investment grade,” but it
would increase the cost of borrowing. We work closely with Fitch,
Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s with the objective of maintaining our
current credit ratings. In order to maintain our current ratings, we
may find it necessary to modify our business plans and such
changes may adversely affect our growth and earnings per share.

Debt Covenants
As part of borrowing funds and issuing debt (both short-term and
long-term) or preferred securities, the Dominion Companies must
enter into enabling agreements. These agreements contain
covenants that, in the event of default, could result in the accelera-
tion of principal and interest payments; restrictions on distributions
related to our capital stock, including dividends, redemptions, repur-
chases, liquidation payments or guarantee payments; and in some
cases, the termination of credit commitments unless a waiver of
such requirements is agreed to by the lenders/security holders.
These provisions are customary, with each agreement specifying
which covenants apply. These provisions are not necessarily unique
to the Dominion Companies. Some of the typical covenants include:
• The timely payment of principal and interest;
• Information requirements, including submitting financial reports

filed with the SEC to lenders;
• Performance obligations, audits/inspections, continuation of the

basic nature of business, restrictions on certain matters related
to merger or consolidation, restrictions on disposition of sub-
stantial assets;

• Compliance with collateral minimums or requirements related to
mortgage bonds; and

• Limitations on liens.
We monitor the covenants on a regular basis in order to ensure

that events of default will not occur. As of December 31, 2005,
there were no events of default under the Dominion Companies’
covenants.

Dividend Restrictions
The Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 (1935 Act) and
related regulations issued by the SEC impose restrictions on the
transfer and receipt of funds by a registered holding company from
its subsidiaries, including a general prohibition against loans or
advances being made by the subsidiaries to benefit the registered
holding company. Under the 1935 Act, registered holding compa-
nies and their subsidiaries may pay dividends only from retained
earnings, unless the SEC specifically authorizes payments from

other capital accounts. Our ability to pay dividends on our common
stock at declared rates was not impacted by these restrictions dur-
ing 2005, 2004 and 2003. We will not be bound by the foregoing
restrictions on dividends imposed by the 1935 Act after February 8,
2006, the effective date on which the 1935 Act was repealed
under the Energy Policy Act of 2005.

Future Cash Payments for Contractual Obligations and
Planned Capital Expenditures
We are party to numerous contracts and arrangements obligating
us to make cash payments in future years. These contracts include
financing arrangements such as debt agreements and leases, as
well as contracts for the purchase of goods and services and finan-
cial derivatives. Presented below is a table summarizing cash pay-
ments that may result from contracts to which we are a party as of
December 31, 2005. For purchase obligations and other liabilities,
amounts are based upon contract terms, including fixed and mini-
mum quantities to be purchased at fixed or market-based prices.
Actual cash payments will be based upon actual quantities pur-
chased and prices paid and will likely differ from amounts pre-
sented below. The table excludes all amounts classified as current
liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets, other than current
maturities of long-term debt, interest payable, and certain deriva-
tive instruments. The majority of our current liabilities will be paid
in cash in 2006.

Less More
than 1 1-3 3-5 than 5

Year Years Years Years Total

(millions)

Long-term debt(1) $2,330 $ 3,661 $1,900 $ 9,179 $17,070
Interest payments(2) 1,004 1,557 1,294 7,056 10,911
Leases 131 284 238 345 998
Purchase obligations(3):

Purchased electric capacity
for utility operations 441 805 718 2,536 4,500

Fuel to be used for utility
operations 772 819 501 640 2,732

Fuel to be used for
nonregulated operations 256 44 17 — 317

Production handling 54 87 36 13 190
Pipeline transportation

and storage 92 145 106 93 436
Energy commodity purchases

for resale(4) 1,076 283 9 1 1,369
Other 316 198 40 15 569

Other long-term liabilities(5):
Financial derivatives—

commodities(4) 2,566 2,070 2 — 4,638
Other contractual obligations(6) 74 103 49 32 258

Total cash payments $9,112 $10,056 $4,910 $19,910 $43,988

(1) Based on stated maturity dates rather than the earlier redemption dates that could be
elected by instrument holders.

(2) Does not reflect our ability to defer distributions related to our junior subordinated notes
payable to affiliated trusts.

(3) Amounts exclude open purchase orders for services that are provided on demand, the timing
of which cannot be determined.

(4) Represents the summation of settlement amounts, by contracts, due from us if all physical or
financial transactions among our counterparties and us were liquidated and terminated.

(5) Excludes regulatory liabilities, AROs and employee benefit plan obligations that are not
contractually fixed as to timing and amount. See Notes 14, 15 and 22 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements. Deferred income taxes are also excluded since cash payments are
based primarily on taxable income for each discrete fiscal year.

(6) Includes interest rate swap agreements.
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Our planned capital expenditures during 2006 and 2007 are
expected to total approximately $3.8 billion and $3.9 billion,
respectively. These expenditures are expected to include construc-
tion and expansion of generation and LNG facilities, environmental
upgrades, construction improvements and expansion of gas and
electric transmission and distribution assets, purchases of nuclear
fuel and expenditures to explore for and develop natural gas and oil
properties. We expect to fund our capital expenditures with cash
from operations and a combination of securities issuances and
short-term borrowings.

We may choose to postpone or cancel certain planned capital
expenditures in order to mitigate the need for future debt financings.

Use of Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Forward Equity Transaction
As described in Financing Cash Flows and Liquidity—Forward Equity
Transaction, in September 2004 we entered into a forward equity
sale agreement relating to 10 million shares of our common stock.
The use of a forward agreement allowed us to avoid equity market
uncertainty by pricing a stock offering under then current market
conditions, while mitigating share dilution by postponing the
issuance of stock until funds were needed.

Guarantees
We primarily enter into guarantee arrangements on behalf of our
consolidated subsidiaries. These arrangements are not subject to
the recognition and measurement provisions of FASB Interpretation
No. 45, Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Oth-
ers. See Note 23 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for fur-
ther discussion of these guarantees.

At December 31, 2005, we have issued $37 million of guaran-
tees to support third parties, equity method investees and employ-
ees affected by Hurricane Katrina. In addition, in 2005, we, along
with two other gas and oil exploration and production companies,
entered into a four-year drilling contract related to a new, ultra-
deepwater drilling rig that is expected to be delivered in mid-2008.
The contract has a four-year primary term, plus four one-year
extension options. Our minimum commitment under the agreement
is for approximately $99 million over the four-year term; however,
we are jointly and severally liable for up to $394 million to the con-
tractor if the other parties fail to pay the contractor for their obliga-
tions under the primary term of the agreement. We view this
scenario as highly unlikely and have not recognized any significant
liabilities related to any of these arrangements.

Leasing Arrangement
We have an agreement with a voting interest entity (lessor) to lease
the Fairless power station in Pennsylvania, which began commer-
cial operations in June 2004. During construction, we acted as the
construction agent for the lessor, controlled the design and con-
struction of the facility and have since been reimbursed for all pro-
ject costs ($898 million) advanced to the lessor. We make annual
lease payments of $53 million. The lease expires in 2013 and at
that time, we may renew the lease at negotiated amounts based on
original project costs and current market conditions, subject to
lessor approval; purchase Fairless at its original construction cost;
or sell Fairless, on behalf of the lessor, to an independent third
party. If Fairless is sold and the proceeds from the sale are less
than its original construction cost, we would be required to make a
payment to the lessor in an amount up to 70.75% of original project
costs adjusted for certain other costs as specified in the lease. The

lease agreement does not contain any provisions that involve credit
rating or stock price trigger events.

Benefits of this arrangement include:
• Certain tax benefits as we are considered the owner of the

leased property for tax purposes. As a result, we are entitled to
tax deductions for depreciation not recognized for financial
accounting purposes; and

• As an operating lease for financial accounting purposes, the
asset and related borrowings used to finance the construction of
the asset are not included on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Although this improves measures of leverage calculated using
amounts reported in our Consolidated Financial Statements,
credit rating agencies view lease obligations as debt equivalents
in evaluating our credit profile.

Securitizations of Mortgages and Loans
As of December 31, 2005, we held $285 million of retained inter-
ests from securitizations of mortgage and commercial loans com-
pleted in prior years. We did not securitize or originate any loans in
2005 or 2004. Investors in the securitization trusts have no
recourse to our other assets for failure of debtors to repay principal
and interest on the underlying loans when due. Therefore, our expo-
sure to any future losses from this activity is limited to our invest-
ment in the retained interests.

Future Issues and Other Matters

Gas and Oil Production
Due to Hurricanes Katrina and Rita, our production assets in the
Gulf of Mexico and, to a lesser extent, South Louisiana were tem-
porarily shut in. Prior to the hurricanes, these assets were produc-
ing approximately 435 million cubic feet of natural gas equivalent
per day (mmcfed). We had forecasted production increases to
approximately 700 mmcfed during October with the addition of four
previously announced deepwater projects, plus other planned com-
pletion activity. As of mid-January 2006, our Gulf of Mexico and
South Louisiana assets were producing approximately 500
mmcfed, however 330 mmcfed of this production was accom-
plished via temporary measures. The production delays are primar-
ily the result of damage to third-party downstream facilities. The
majority of the third-party downstream facilities are projected to
become operational by the second quarter of 2006, with the
remainder estimated to be on stream by year-end. We expect that
the financial impacts of delays in production will be mitigated by
business interruption insurance that we maintain for hurricane-
related delays in natural gas and oil production. Our business inter-
ruption insurance covers delays caused both by damage to our own
production facilities and by damage to third-party facilities down-
stream. Our policy coverage for Hurricane Katrina has a 30-day
deductible period and an event limit of $700 million, while our pol-
icy for Hurricane Rita has a 45-day deductible period and an event
limit of $350 million.

Status of Electric Deregulation in Virginia
The Virginia Electric Utility Restructuring Act (Virginia Restructuring
Act) was enacted in 1999 and established a plan to restructure the
electric utility industry in Virginia. The Virginia Restructuring Act
addressed, among other things: capped base rates, RTO participa-
tion, retail choice, the recovery of stranded costs, and the func-
tional separation of a utility’s electric generation from its electric
transmission and distribution operations.
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Retail choice has been available to all of our Virginia regulated
electric customers since January 1, 2003. We have also separated
our generation, distribution and transmission functions through the
creation of divisions. State regulatory requirements ensure that our
generation and other divisions operate independently and prevent
cross-subsidies between generation and other divisions.

In 2004, the Virginia Restructuring Act and the Virginia fuel fac-
tor statute were amended. The amendments extend capped base
rates to December 31, 2010, unless modified or terminated earlier
under the Virginia Restructuring Act. The amendments also:
• Lock in our fuel factor provisions until the earlier of July 1,

2007 or the termination of capped rates under the Virginia
Restructuring Act, with no adjustment for previously incurred
over-recovery or under-recovery of fuel costs, thus eliminating
deferred fuel accounting for the Virginia jurisdiction;

• Provide for a one-time adjustment of our fuel factor, effective
July 1, 2007 through December 31, 2010 (unless capped rates
are terminated earlier under the Virginia Restructuring Act),
with no adjustment for previously incurred over-recovery or
under-recovery of fuel costs; and

• End wires charges on the earlier of July 1, 2007, or the
termination of capped rates.
Fuel prices have increased considerably since our Virginia fuel

factor provisions were frozen, which has resulted in our fuel
expenses being significantly in excess of our rate recovery. We
expect that fuel expenses will continue to exceed rate recovery until
our fuel factor is adjusted in July 2007.

When our fuel factor is adjusted in July 2007, we will remain
subject to the risk that fuel factor-related cost recovery shortfalls
may adversely affect our margins. Conversely, we could experience
a positive economic impact to the extent that we can reduce our
fuel factor-related costs for our electric utility generation-related
operations.

We anticipate that our unhedged natural gas and oil production
will act as a natural internal hedge for fuel used in electric genera-
tion. If gas and oil prices rise, it is expected that our exploration and
production operations will earn greater profits that will help mitigate
higher fuel costs and lower profits in our electric utility generation
operations. Conversely, if gas and oil prices fall, it is expected that
our electric utility generation operations will incur lower fuel costs
and earn higher profits that will help mitigate lower profits in our
exploration and production operations. We also anticipate that the
fixed fuel rate will lessen the impact of weather on our electric utility
generation operations. During periods of mild weather it is expected
that our electric utility generation operations will burn less high-cost
fuel because customers will use less electricity, thereby mitigating
decreased revenues. Alternatively, in periods of extreme weather,
our higher fuel costs from running costlier plants are expected to be
mitigated by additional revenues as customers use more electricity.

Other amendments to the Virginia Restructuring Act were also
enacted in 2004 with respect to a minimum stay exemption program,
a wires charge exemption program and the development of a coal-
fired generating plant in southwest Virginia for serving default service
needs. Under the minimum stay exemption program, large customers
with a load of 500 kilowatts or greater would be exempt from the
twelve-month minimum stay obligation under capped rates if they
return to supply service from the incumbent utility at market-based
pricing after they have switched to supply service with a competitive
service provider. The wires charge exemption program would allow
large industrial and commercial customers, as well as aggregated

customers in all rate classes, to avoid paying wires charges when
selecting electricity supply service from a competitive service provider
by agreeing to market-based pricing upon return to the incumbent
utility. For 2006, our wires charges are set at zero for all rate classes.
In February 2005, we joined a consortium to explore the develop-
ment of a coal-fired electric power station in southwest Virginia.

Stranded costs are generation-related costs incurred or commit-
ments made by utilities under cost-based regulation that may not
reasonably be expected to be recovered in a competitive market. At
December 31, 2005, our exposure to potential stranded costs
included long-term power purchase contracts that could ultimately
be determined to be above market; generating plants that could
possibly become uneconomical in a deregulated environment; and
unfunded obligations for nuclear plant decommissioning and
postretirement benefits not yet recognized in the financial state-
ments. We believe capped electric retail rates will provide an oppor-
tunity to recover our potential stranded costs, depending on market
prices of electricity and other factors. Recovery of our potential
stranded costs remains subject to numerous risks even in the
capped-rate environment. These include, among others, exposure
to long-term power purchase commitment losses, future environ-
mental compliance requirements, changes in certain tax laws,
nuclear decommissioning costs, increased fuel costs, inflation,
increased capital costs and recovery of certain other items.

The generation-related cash flows provided by the Virginia
Restructuring Act are intended to compensate us for continuing to
provide generation services and to allow us to incur costs to restruc-
ture our operations during the transition period. As a result, during
the transition period, our earnings may increase to the extent that
we can reduce operating costs for our utility generation-related oper-
ations. Conversely, the same risks affecting the recovery of our
stranded costs, may also adversely impact our margins during the
transition period. Accordingly, we could realize the negative eco-
nomic impact of any such adverse event. Using cash flows from
operations during the transition period, we may further alter our cost
structure or choose to make additional investment in our business.

Ohio Energy Choice Pilot Program
In April 2005, we filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio
(Ohio Commission) a proposal for a two-year pilot program to
improve and expand our Energy Choice Program. Under the current
structure, non-Energy Choice customers purchase gas directly from
us at a monthly gas cost recovery, or GCR, rate that includes true-
up adjustments that can change significantly from one quarter to
the next. We propose to replace the GCR with a monthly market
price that eliminates those adjustments, making it easier for cus-
tomers to compare and switch to competitive suppliers. A ruling on
this proposal is expected by the end of the first quarter of 2006. By
the end of the transition period, and subject to Ohio Commission
approval, we plan to exit the gas merchant function in Ohio entirely
and have all customers select an alternate gas supplier. We will
continue to remain the provider of last resort in the event of default
by a supplier.

Energy Policy Act of 2005 (EPACT)
In August 2005, the President of the United States signed EPACT.
Key provisions of the Act include the following:
• Repeal of the 1935 Act in February 2006;
• Establishment of a self-regulating electric reliability organization

governed by an independent board with FERC oversight;
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• Provision for greater regulatory oversight by other federal and
state authorities;

• Extension of the Price Anderson Act for 20 years until 2025;
• Provision for standby financial support and production tax

credits for new nuclear plants;
• Grant of enhanced merger approval authority to FERC;
• Provision of authority to FERC for the siting of certain electric

transmission facilities if states cannot or will not act in a
timely manner;

• Grant of exclusive authority to FERC to approve applications for
construction of LNG facilities; and

• Improvement of the process for approval and permitting of
interstate pipelines.
Many of the changes Congress enacted must be implemented

through public notice and proposed rule making by the federal
agencies affected and this process is ongoing. We will continue to
evaluate the effects that EPACT may have on our business.

Common Stock Dividend Increase
In February 2005, our quarterly dividend rate increased from 66.5
cents per share to 67 cents per share for an annual rate in 2005 of
$2.68 per share. Our quarterly dividend rate increased again in Jan-
uary 2006, from 67 cents per share to 69 cents per share for an
annual rate in 2006 of $2.76. Our expected cash flow and earnings
should enable us to make future annual increases when our Board
of Directors deems it financially prudent. The Board of Directors
declares common stock dividends on a quarterly basis.

Environmental Matters
We are subject to costs resulting from a number of federal, state
and local laws and regulations designed to protect human health
and the environment. These laws and regulations affect future plan-
ning and existing operations. They can result in increased capital,
operating and other costs as a result of compliance, remediation,
containment and monitoring obligations. Historically, we recovered
such costs arising from regulated electric operations through utility
rates. However, to the extent that environmental costs are incurred
in connection with operations regulated by the Virginia Commission,
during the period ending December 31, 2010, in excess of the level
currently included in the Virginia jurisdictional electric retail rates,
our results of operations will decrease. After that date, recovery
through regulated rates may be sought for only those environmental
costs related to regulated electric transmission and distribution
operations and recovery, if any, through the generation component
of rates will be dependent upon the market price of electricity. We
also may seek recovery through regulated rates for environmental
expenditures related to regulated gas transmission and distribution
operations.

Environmental Protection and Monitoring Expenditures
We incurred approximately $205 million, $132 million and $113
million of expenses (including depreciation) during 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively, in connection with environmental protection
and monitoring activities and expect these expenses to be approxi-
mately $201 million and $202 million in 2006 and 2007, respec-
tively. In addition, capital expenditures related to environmental
controls were $140 million, $94 million and $210 million for 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively. These expenditures are expected to
be approximately $307 million and $278 million for 2006 and
2007, respectively.

Clean Air Act Compliance
We are required by the Clean Air Act (the Act) to reduce air emis-
sions of various air pollutants that are the by-products of fossil fuel
combustion. The Act’s new Clean Air Interstate Rule and Clean Air
Mercury Rule will require significant reductions in future SO2, NOX

and mercury emissions from our electric generating facilities and
will require capital expenditures. The Act’s existing SO2 and NOX

reduction programs already include:
• The issuance of a limited number of SO2 emissions allowances.

Each allowance permits the emission of one ton of SO2 into the
atmosphere;

• NOX emission limitations applicable during the ozone season
months of May through September and on an annual average
basis; and

• SO2 and NOX allowances may be transacted with a third party.
Implementation of projects to comply with these SO2, NOX and

mercury limitations, and other state emission control programs are
ongoing and will be influenced by changes in the regulatory environ-
ment, availability of allowances and emission control technology. In
response to these requirements, we estimate that we will make
capital expenditures at our affected generating facilities of
approximately $1.1 billion during the period 2006 through 2010.

Other
As part of its review of our request related to the reissuance of a
pollution discharge elimination permit for the Millstone Power Sta-
tion, the Connecticut Department of Environmental Protection is
evaluating the ecological impacts of the cooling water intake sys-
tem. Until the permit is reissued, it is not possible to predict the
financial impact that may result.

In October 2003, the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
and the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection
(DEP) each issued new National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System permits for the Brayton Point Power Station. The new per-
mits contained identical conditions that in effect require the instal-
lation of cooling towers to address concerns over the withdrawal
and discharge of cooling water. In November 2003, appeals were
filed with the EPA Environmental Appeals Board (EAB) and the Divi-
sion of Administrative Law Appeals in Massachusetts, and both per-
mits were stayed. In February 2006 the EAB remanded a portion of
EPA’s permit to EPA for reconsideration. The DEP permit is still
stayed pending the outcome of the EPA process. Until the remand
and any resulting appeals are completed, the outcome cannot be
predicted.

Future Environmental Regulations
The U.S. Congress is considering various legislative proposals that
would require generating facilities to comply with more stringent air
emissions standards. Emission reduction requirements under con-
sideration would be phased in under a variety of periods of up to 15
years. If these new proposals are adopted, additional significant
expenditures may be required.

In 1997, the United States signed an international Protocol to
limit man-made greenhouse emissions under the United Nations
Framework Convention on Climate Change. However, the Protocol
will not become binding unless approved by the U.S. Senate. Cur-
rently, the Bush Administration has indicated that it will not pursue
ratification of the Protocol and has set a voluntary goal of reducing
the nation’s greenhouse gas emission intensity by 18% over the
period 2002-2012. Several legislative proposals that include provi-
sions seeking to impose mandatory reductions of greenhouse gas
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emissions are under consideration in the United States Congress.
The cost of compliance with the Protocol or other mandatory green-
house gas reduction obligations could be significant. Given the
highly uncertain outcome and timing of future action, if any, by
the U.S. federal government on this issue, we cannot predict the
financial impact of future climate change actions on our operations
at this time.

Restructuring of Contracts with Nonutility Generator
In October 2005, we reached an agreement in principle to restruc-
ture three long-term power purchase contracts. The restructured
contracts expire between 2015 and 2017 and are expected to
reduce capacity and energy payments by approximately $44 million
and $6 million, respectively, over the remaining term of the con-
tracts. The transaction became effective in February 2006 and did
not result in a cash outlay or charge to earnings.

Sale of Gas Distribution Subsidiaries
On March 1, 2006 we entered into an agreement with Equitable
Resources, Inc. to sell two of our wholly-owned regulated gas distri-
bution subsidiaries, The Peoples Natural Gas Company and Hope
Gas, Inc., for $969.6 million plus adjustments to reflect capital
expenditures and changes in working capital. We expect to com-
plete the transaction by the first quarter of 2007, subject to state
regulatory approvals in Pennsylvania and West Virginia, as well as
approval under the federal Hart-Scott-Rodino Act.

Market Risk Sensitive Instruments and Risk
Management
Our financial instruments, commodity contracts and related finan-
cial derivative instruments are exposed to potential losses due to
adverse changes in commodity prices, interest rates, foreign cur-
rency exchange rates and equity security prices as described below.
Commodity price risk is present in our electric operations, gas and
oil production and procurement operations, and energy marketing
and trading operations due to the exposure to market shifts in
prices received and paid for natural gas, oil, electricity and other
commodities. We use derivative commodity contracts to manage
price risk exposures for these operations. Interest rate risk is gener-
ally related to our outstanding debt. We are exposed to foreign cur-
rency exchange rate risks related to our purchase of fuel services
denominated in a foreign currency. In addition, we are exposed to
equity price risk through various portfolios of equity securities.

As discussed in Note 28 to our Consolidated Financial State-
ments, we performed an evaluation of our Clearinghouse trading
and marketing operations, which resulted in a decision to exit cer-
tain trading activities and instead focus on the optimization of com-
pany assets. In connection with the reorganization, certain
commodity derivative contracts previously designated as held for
trading purposes are now held for non-trading purposes.

The following sensitivity analysis estimates the potential loss of
future earnings or fair value from market risk sensitive instruments
over a selected time period due to a 10% unfavorable change in
commodity prices, interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates.

Commodity Price Risk
As part of our strategy to market energy and to manage related risks,
we hold commodity-based financial derivative instruments for trading
purposes. We also manage price risk associated with purchases and

sales of natural gas, oil, electricity and certain other commodities
using commodity-based financial derivative instruments held for
non-trading purposes.

The derivatives used to manage risk are executed within estab-
lished policies and procedures and include instruments such as
futures, forwards, swaps and options that are sensitive to changes
in the related commodity prices. For sensitivity analysis purposes,
the fair value of commodity-based financial derivative instruments
is determined based on models that consider the market prices of
commodities in future periods, the volatility of the market prices in
each period, as well as the time value factors of the derivative
instruments. Prices and volatility are principally determined based
on actively quoted market prices.

A hypothetical 10% unfavorable change in commodity prices
would have resulted in a decrease of approximately $3 million and
$23 million in the fair value of our commodity-based financial deriv-
ative instruments held for trading purposes as of December 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively. A hypothetical 10% unfavorable
change in market prices of our non-trading commodity-based finan-
cial derivative instruments would have resulted in a decrease in
fair value of approximately $691 million and $576 million as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The impact of a change in energy commodity prices on our non-
trading commodity-based financial derivative instruments at a point
in time is not necessarily representative of the results that will be
realized when such contracts are ultimately settled. Net losses from
derivative commodity instruments used for hedging purposes, to
the extent realized, will generally be offset by recognition of the
hedged transaction, such as revenue from sales.

Interest Rate Risk
We manage our interest rate risk exposure predominantly by main-
taining a balance of fixed and variable rate debt. We also enter into
interest rate sensitive derivatives, including interest rate swaps and
interest rate lock agreements. For financial instruments outstanding
at December 31, 2005, a hypothetical 10% increase in market
interest rates would decrease annual earnings by approximately
$20 million. A hypothetical 10% increase in market interest rates,
as determined at December 31, 2004, would have resulted in a
decrease in annual earnings of approximately $10 million.

In addition, we retain ownership of mortgage investments,
including subordinated bonds and interest-only residual assets
retained from securitizations of mortgage loans originated and pur-
chased in prior years. Note 27 to our Consolidated Financial State-
ments discusses the impact of changes in value of these
investments.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk
Our Canadian natural gas and oil exploration and production activi-
ties are relatively self-contained within Canada. As a result, our
exposure to foreign currency exchange risk for these activities is
limited primarily to the effects of translation adjustments that arise
from including that operation in our Consolidated Financial State-
ments. We monitor this exposure and believe it is not material. In
addition, we manage our foreign exchange risk exposure associated
with anticipated future purchases of nuclear fuel processing ser-
vices denominated in foreign currencies by utilizing currency for-
ward contracts. As a result of holding these contracts as hedges,
our exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal. A hypothetical 10%
unfavorable change in relevant foreign exchange rates would have
resulted in a decrease of approximately $8 million and $13 million
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in the fair value of currency forward contracts held at December
31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Investment Price Risk
We are subject to investment price risk due to marketable securi-
ties held as investments in decommissioning trust funds. These
marketable securities are reported on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets at fair value. We recognized net realized gains (net of invest-
ment income) on nuclear decommissioning trust investments of
$67 million in 2005 and $51 million in 2004. We recorded, in
AOCI, net unrealized gains on decommissioning trust investments
of $27 million and $84 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

We also sponsor employee pension and other postretirement ben-
efit plans that hold investments in trusts to fund benefit payments. To
the extent that the values of investments held in these trusts decline,
the effect will be reflected in our recognition of the periodic cost of
such employee benefit plans and the determination of the amount of
cash to be contributed to the employee benefit plans. Our pension
plans experienced net realized and unrealized gains of $433 million
and $453 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Risk Management Policies
We have operating procedures in place that are administered by
experienced management to help ensure that proper internal con-
trols are maintained. In addition, we have established an indepen-
dent function at the corporate level to monitor compliance with the
risk management policies of all subsidiaries. We maintain credit
policies that include the evaluation of a prospective counterparty’s
financial condition, collateral requirements where deemed neces-
sary, and the use of standardized agreements that facilitate the
netting of cash flows associated with a single counterparty. In addi-
tion, we also monitor the financial condition of existing counterpar-
ties on an ongoing basis. Based on our credit policies and the
December 31, 2005 provision for credit losses, management
believes that it is unlikely that a material adverse effect on our
financial position, results of operations or cash flows would occur
as a result of counterparty nonperformance.

Risk Factors
Our business is influenced by many factors that are difficult to pre-
dict, involve uncertainties that may materially affect actual results
and are often beyond our control. We have identified a number of
these factors below. For other factors that may cause actual results
to differ materially from those indicated in any forward-looking
statement or projection contained in this report, see
Forward-Looking Statements.

Our operations are weather sensitive. Our results of opera-
tions can be affected by changes in the weather. Weather condi-
tions directly influence the demand for electricity and natural gas
and affect the price of energy commodities. In addition, severe
weather, including hurricanes, winter storms and droughts, can be
destructive, causing outages, production delays and property dam-
age that require us to incur additional expenses.

We are subject to complex governmental regulation that
could adversely affect our operations. Our operations are sub-
ject to extensive federal, state and local regulation and may require
numerous permits, approvals and certificates from various govern-
mental agencies. We must also comply with environmental legisla-
tion and associated regulations. Management believes the
necessary approvals have been obtained for our existing operations

and that our business is conducted in accordance with applicable
laws. However, new laws or regulations, or the revision or reinter-
pretation of existing laws or regulations, may require us to incur
additional expenses.

Costs of environmental compliance, liabilities and litiga-
tion could exceed our estimates, which could adversely affect
our results of operations. Compliance with federal, state and
local environmental laws and regulations may result in increased
capital, operating and other costs, including remediation and con-
tainment expenses and monitoring obligations. In addition, we may
be a responsible party for environmental clean-up at a site identi-
fied by a regulatory body. Management cannot predict with cer-
tainty the amount and timing of all future expenditures related to
environmental matters because of the difficulty of estimating clean-
up and compliance costs, and the possibility that changes will be
made to the current environmental laws and regulations. There is
also uncertainty in quantifying liabilities under environmental laws
that impose joint and several liability on all potentially responsible
parties.

We are exposed to cost-recovery shortfalls because of
capped base rates and amendments to the fuel factor statute
in effect in Virginia for our regulated electric utility. Under the
Virginia Restructuring Act, as amended in 2004, our base rates
(excluding, generally, a fuel factor with limited adjustment provi-
sions, and certain other allowable adjustments) remain capped
through December 31, 2010 unless modified or terminated consis-
tent with the Virginia Restructuring Act. Although the Virginia
Restructuring Act allows for the recovery of certain generation-
related costs during the capped rates period, we remain exposed to
numerous risks of cost-recovery shortfalls. These include exposure
to stranded costs, future environmental compliance requirements,
certain tax law changes, costs related to hurricanes or other
weather events, inflation, the cost of obtaining replacement power
during unplanned plant outages and increased capital costs.

In addition, under the 2004 amendments to the Virginia fuel
factor statute, our current Virginia fuel factor provisions are locked-
in until the earlier of July 1, 2007 or the termination of capped
rates by order of the Virginia Commission, with no deferred fuel
accounting. The amendments provide for a one-time adjustment of
our fuel factor, effective July 1, 2007 through December 31, 2010
(unless capped rates are terminated earlier), with no adjustment for
previously incurred over-recovery or under-recovery. As a result of
the current locked-in fuel factor and the uncertainty of what the
one-time adjustment will be, we are exposed to fuel price and other
risks. These risks include exposure to increased costs of fuel,
including purchased power costs, differences between our pro-
jected and actual power generation mix and generating unit perfor-
mance (which affects the types and amounts of fuel we use), and
differences between fuel price assumptions and actual fuel prices.

Under the Virginia Restructuring Act, the generation por-
tion of our electric utility operations is open to competition
and resulting uncertainty. Under the Virginia Restructuring Act,
the generation portion of our electric utility operations in Virginia is
open to competition and is no longer subject to cost-based regula-
tion. To date, a competitive retail market has been slow to develop.
Consequently, it is difficult to predict the pace at which a competi-
tive environment will evolve and the extent to which we will face
increased competition and be able to operate profitably within this
competitive environment.
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Our merchant power business is operating in a challenging
market, which could adversely affect our results of operations
and future growth. The success of our merchant power business
depends upon favorable market conditions as well as our ability to
find buyers willing to enter into power purchase agreements at
prices sufficient to cover operating costs. We attempt to manage
these risks by entering into both short-term and long-term fixed
price sales and purchase contracts and locating our assets in active
wholesale energy markets. However, high fuel and commodity costs
and excess capacity in the industry could adversely impact results
of operations.

There are risks associated with the operation of nuclear
facilities. We operate nuclear facilities that are subject to risks,
including the threat of terrorist attack and ability to dispose of spent
nuclear fuel, the disposal of which is subject to complex federal and
state regulatory constraints. These risks also include the cost of
and our ability to maintain adequate reserves for decommissioning,
costs of replacement power, costs of plant maintenance and expo-
sure to potential liabilities arising out of the operation of these facil-
ities. We maintain decommissioning trusts and external insurance
coverage to manage the financial exposure to these risks. However,
it is possible that costs arising from claims could exceed the
amount of any insurance coverage.

The use of derivative instruments could result in financial
losses and liquidity constraints. We use derivative instruments,
including futures, forwards, financial transmission rights, options
and swaps, to manage our commodity and financial market risks. In
addition, we purchase and sell commodity-based contracts in the
natural gas, electricity and oil markets for trading purposes. We
could recognize financial losses on these contracts as a result of
volatility in the market values of the underlying commodities or if a
counterparty fails to perform under a contract. In the absence of
actively quoted market prices and pricing information from external
sources, the valuation of these contracts involves management’s
judgment or use of estimates. As a result, changes in the underly-
ing assumptions or use of alternative valuation methods could
affect the reported fair value of these contracts.

In addition, we use financial derivatives to hedge future sales of
our merchant generation and gas and oil production, which may
limit the benefit we would otherwise receive from increases in com-
modity prices. These hedge arrangements generally include collat-
eral requirements that require us to deposit funds or post letters of
credit with counterparties to cover the fair value of covered con-
tracts in excess of agreed upon credit limits. When commodity
prices rise to levels substantially higher than the levels where we
have hedged future sales, we may be required to use a material
portion of our available liquidity and obtain additional liquidity to
cover these collateral requirements. In some circumstances, this
could have a compounding effect on our financial liquidity and
results.

Derivatives designated under hedge accounting to the extent
not offset by the hedged transaction can result in ineffectiveness
losses. These losses primarily result from differences in the location
and specifications of the derivative hedging instrument and the
hedged item and could adversely affect our results of operations.

Our operations in regards to these transactions are subject
to multiple market risks including market liquidity, counterparty
credit strength and price volatility. These market risks are beyond
our control and could adversely affect our results of operations
and future growth.

For additional information concerning derivatives and commod-
ity-based trading contracts, see Market Risk Sensitive Instruments
and Risk Management and Notes 2 and 8 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Our exploration and production business is dependent on
factors that cannot be predicted or controlled and that could
damage facilities, disrupt production or reduce the book
value of our assets. Factors that may affect our financial results
include damage to or suspension of operations caused by weather,
fire, explosion or other events to our or third-party gas and oil facili-
ties, fluctuations in natural gas and crude oil prices, results of
future drilling and well completion activities, and our ability to
acquire additional land positions in competitive lease areas, as well
as inherent operational risks that could disrupt production.

Short-term market declines in the prices of natural gas and oil
could adversely affect our financial results by causing a permanent
write-down of our natural gas and oil properties as required by the
full cost method of accounting. Under the full cost method, all
direct costs of property acquisition, exploration and development
activities are capitalized. If net capitalized costs exceed the present
value of estimated future net revenues based on hedge-adjusted
period-end prices from the production of proved gas and oil
reserves (the ceiling test) in a given country at the end of any quar-
terly period, then a permanent write-down of the assets must be
recognized in that period.

We maintain business interruption insurance for offshore opera-
tions associated with our exploration and production business. We
have placed our insurers on notice that we have suffered substan-
tial property damage and business interruption loss related to Hurri-
canes Katrina and Rita. Failure to realize the full value of our claims
could adversely affect our results of operations. Additionally, the
increased level of hurricane activity in the Gulf of Mexico is likely to
significantly increase the cost of business interruption insurance
and could make it unavailable on commercially reasonable terms.
Inability to insure our offshore Gulf of Mexico operations could
adversely affect our results of operations.

An inability to access financial markets could affect the
execution of our business plan. Dominion and our Virginia Power
and CNG subsidiaries rely on access to short-term money markets,
longer-term capital markets and banks as significant sources of liq-
uidity for capital requirements and collateral requirements related
to hedges of future gas and oil production not satisfied by the cash
flows from our operations. Management believes that Dominion
and our subsidiaries will maintain sufficient access to these finan-
cial markets based upon current credit ratings. However, certain
disruptions outside of our control may increase our cost of borrow-
ing or restrict our ability to access one or more financial markets.
Such disruptions could include an economic downturn, the bank-
ruptcy of an unrelated energy company or changes to our credit rat-
ings. Restrictions on our ability to access financial markets may
affect our ability to execute our business plan as scheduled.

Changing rating agency requirements could negatively
affect our growth and business strategy. As of February 1,
2006, Dominion’s senior unsecured debt is rated BBB, stable out-
look, by Standard & Poor’s Rating Group (Standard & Poor’s); Baa1,
under review for potential downgrade, by Moody’s Investors Ser-
vices (Moody’s); and BBB+, stable outlook, by Fitch Ratings Ltd.
(Fitch). In order to maintain our current credit ratings in light of
existing or future requirements, we may find it necessary to take
steps or change our business plans in ways that may adversely
affect our growth and earnings per share. A reduction in Dominion’s
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Selected Financial Data

2005(1) 2004(2) 2003(3) 2002 2001(4)

(millions, except per share amounts)

Operating revenue $18,041 $13,991 $12,095 $10,215 $10,560
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of changes in

accounting principles 1,034 1,264 949 1,362 544
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax(5) 5 (15) (642) — —
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, net of tax (6) — 11 — —
Net income 1,033 1,249 318 1,362 544

Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of changes in accounting
principles per common share—basic 3.02 3.84 2.99 4.85 2.17

Net income per common share—basic 3.02 3.80 1.00 4.85 2.17

Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of changes in accounting
principles per common share—diluted 3.00 3.82 2.98 4.82 2.15

Net income per common share—diluted 3.00 3.78 1.00 4.82 2.15

Dividends paid per share 2.68 2.60 2.58 2.58 2.58

Total assets 52,660 45,418 43,546 39,239 36,044
Long-term debt(6) 14,653 15,507 15,776 12,060 12,119
Preferred securities of subsidiary trusts(6) — — — 1,397 1,132

(1) Includes a $272 million after-tax loss related to the discontinuance of hedge accounting for certain gas and oil hedges, resulting from an interruption of gas and oil production in the Gulf of Mexico
caused by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita. Also in 2005, we adopted a new accounting standard that resulted in the recognition of the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. See Note 3 to
our Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) Includes a $112 million after-tax charge related to our interest in a long-term power tolling contract that was divested in 2005 and a $61 million after-tax loss related to the discontinuance of hedge
accounting for certain oil hedges, resulting from an interruption of oil production in the Gulf of Mexico caused by Hurricane Ivan, and subsequent changes in the fair value of those hedges during the
third quarter.

(3) Includes $122 million of after-tax incremental restoration expenses associated with Hurricane Isabel. Also in 2003, we adopted accounting standards that resulted in the recognition of the cumulative
effect of changes in accounting principles. See Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

(4) Includes a $97 million after-tax charge representing exposure to the Enron Corp. bankruptcy and $68 million of after-tax charges associated with a senior management restructuring initiative.
(5) Reflects the net impact of our discontinued telecommunications operations that were sold in May 2004. See Note 9 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.
(6) Upon adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 2003), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, on December 31, 2003 with respect to special

purpose entities, we began reporting as long-term debt our junior subordinated notes held by five capital trusts, rather than the trust preferred securities issued by those trusts. See Note 3 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements.

credit ratings or the credit ratings of our Virginia Power and CNG
subsidiaries by Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s or Fitch could increase
our borrowing costs and adversely affect operating results and
could require us to post additional collateral in connection with
some of our trading and marketing activities.

Potential changes in accounting practices may adversely
affect our financial results. We cannot predict the impact that
future changes in accounting standards or practices may have on
public companies in general, the energy industry or our operations
specifically. New accounting standards could be issued that could

change the way we record revenues, expenses, assets and liabili-
ties. These changes in accounting standards could adversely affect
our reported earnings or could increase reported liabilities.

Failure to retain and attract key executive officers and
other skilled professional and technical employees could
have an adverse effect on our operations. Implementation of
our growth strategy is dependent on our ability to recruit, retain and
motivate employees. Competition for skilled employees in some
areas is high and the inability to retain and attract these employees
could adversely affect our business and future financial condition.
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Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of Dominion Resources, Inc. (Dominion) understands
and accepts responsibility for our financial statements and related
disclosures and the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting (internal control). We continuously strive to identify opportu-
nities to enhance the effectiveness and efficiency of internal control,
just as we do throughout all aspects of our business.

We maintain a system of internal control designed to provide rea-
sonable assurance, at a reasonable cost, that our assets are safe-
guarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that
transactions are executed and recorded in accordance with estab-
lished procedures. This system includes written policies, an organi-
zational structure designed to ensure appropriate segregation of
responsibilities, careful selection and training of qualified personnel
and internal audits.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of Dominion,
composed entirely of independent directors, meets periodically with
the independent registered public accounting firm, the internal
auditors and management to discuss auditing, internal control, and
financial reporting matters of Dominion and to ensure that each is
properly discharging its responsibilities. Both the independent regis-
tered public accounting firm and the internal auditors periodically
meet alone with the Audit Committee and have free access to the
Committee at any time.

SEC rules implementing Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 require our 2005 Annual Report to contain a manage-
ment’s report and a report of the independent registered public
accounting firm regarding the effectiveness of internal control. As a
basis for our report, we tested and evaluated the design and oper-
ating effectiveness of internal controls. Based on our assessment
as of December 31, 2005, we make the following assertion:

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting of Dominion.

There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any internal
control, including the possibility of human error and the circumven-
tion or overriding of controls. Accordingly, even effective internal
controls can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to
financial statement preparation. Further, because of changes in
conditions, the effectiveness of internal control may vary over time.

On December 31, 2003, we adopted Financial Accounting Stan-
dards Board Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 2003), Con-
solidation of Variable Interest Entities, for our interests in special
purpose entities, referred to as SPEs. As a result, we have included
in our consolidated financial statements certain SPEs. Our Consoli-
dated Balance Sheet, as of December 31, 2005, reflects $598
million of net property, plant and equipment and deferred charges
and $688 million of related debt attributable to these SPEs. As
these SPEs are owned by unrelated parties, we do not have the
authority to dictate or modify, and therefore could not assess the
internal controls in place at these entities. Our conclusion regarding
the effectiveness of Dominion’s internal control does not extend to
the internal controls of these SPEs.

We evaluated Dominion’s internal control over financial report-
ing as of December 31, 2005. This assessment was based on crite-
ria for effective internal control over financial reporting described in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on
this assessment, we believe that Dominion maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005.

The independent registered public accounting firm that audited
the financial statements has issued an attestation report on our
assessment of the internal control over financial reporting.

March 2, 2006
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
Dominion Resources, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
Dominion Resources, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated state-
ments of income, common shareholders’ equity and comprehen-
sive income, and of cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2005. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state-
ments are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examin-
ing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Dominion
Resources, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and
2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for

each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Company changed its methods of accounting to adopt new
accounting standards for: conditional asset retirement obligations
in 2005 and asset retirement obligations, contracts involved in
energy trading, derivative contracts not held for trading purposes,
derivative contracts with a price adjustment feature, and the
consolidation of variable interest entities in 2003.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our
report dated March 2, 2006, expressed an unqualified opinion
on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Com-
pany’s internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Richmond, Virginia
March 2, 2006
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
Dominion Resources, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in para-
graphs 5-8 of the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting, that Dominion Resources,
Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Spon-
soring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. As described in
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting, management excluded from their assessment the inter-
nal control over financial reporting at certain special purpose enti-
ties consolidated under Financial Accounting Standards Board
Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 2003), Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities. The Company’s Consolidated Balance
Sheet, as of December 31, 2005, reflects $598 million of net
property, plant and equipment and deferred charges and $688 mil-
lion of related debt attributable to these special purpose entities.
Accordingly, our audit did not include the internal control over finan-
cial reporting at those special purpose entities. The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal con-
trol over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effective-
ness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opin-
ion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain rea-
sonable assurance about whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process
designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing sim-
ilar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with gen-
erally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reason-
able assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautho-
rized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the inter-
nal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to
the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based
on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Frame-
work issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, the Company main-
tained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on the
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission.

Richmond, Virginia
March 2, 2006

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2005 of the Company and our reports dated March
2, 2006, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial state-
ments and included an explanatory paragraph referring to a change
in accounting principle.





Consolidated Balance Sheets

At December 31, 2005 2004

(millions)

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 146 $ 361
Accounts receivable:

Customer (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $38 and $43) 3,335 2,585
Other (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $9 and $17) 226 320

Inventories:
Materials and supplies 392 328
Fossil fuel 314 180
Gas stored 461 385

Derivative assets 3,429 1,713
Deferred income taxes 928 594
Prepayments 161 157
Other 737 471

Total current assets 10,129 7,094

Investments
Nuclear decommissioning trust funds 2,534 2,023
Available-for-sale securities 287 335
Other 680 810

Total investments 3,501 3,168

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment 42,063 38,663
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization (13,123) (11,947)

Total property, plant and equipment, net 28,940 26,716

Deferred Charges and Other Assets
Goodwill 4,298 4,298
Prepaid pension cost 1,915 1,947
Derivative assets 1,915 705
Regulatory assets 758 788
Other 1,204 702

Total deferred charges and other assets 10,090 8,440

Total assets $ 52,660 $ 45,418
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At December 31, 2005 2004

(millions)

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities

Securities due within one year $ 2,330 $ 1,368
Short-term debt 1,618 573
Accounts payable 2,756 1,956
Accrued interest, payroll and taxes 694 578
Derivative liabilities 6,087 2,858
Other 995 695

Total current liabilities 14,480 8,028

Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt 13,237 14,078
Junior subordinated notes payable to affiliated trusts 1,416 1,429

Total long-term debt 14,653 15,507

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities
Deferred income taxes 4,926 5,424
Deferred investment tax credits 58 75
Asset retirement obligations 2,249 1,705
Derivative liabilities 3,971 1,583
Regulatory liabilities 607 610
Other 1,062 803

Total deferred credits and other liabilities 12,873 10,200

Total liabilities 42,006 33,735

Commitments and Contingencies (see Note 23)

Subsidiary Preferred Stock Not Subject To Mandatory Redemption 257 257

Common Shareholders’ Equity
Common stock—no par (1) 11,286 10,888
Other paid-in capital 125 92
Retained earnings 1,550 1,442
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (2,564) (996)

Total common shareholders’ equity 10,397 11,426

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 52,660 $45,418

(1) 500 million shares authorized; 347 million shares and 340 million shares outstanding at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of our Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Common Shareholders’ Equity and
Comprehensive Income

Accumulated
Other Other

Common Stock Paid-In Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Total

(millions)

Balance at December 31, 2002 308 $ 9,051 $ 47 $1,561 $ (446) $10,213
Comprehensive income:

Net income 318 318
Net deferred derivative losses—hedging activities,

net of $479 tax benefit (791) (791)
Unrealized gains on investment securities,

net of $78 tax expense 112 112
Foreign currency translation adjustments 68 68
Amounts reclassified to net income:

Net realized losses on investment securities,
net of $29 tax benefit 49 49

Net derivative losses—hedging activities,
net of $225 tax benefit 379 379

Total comprehensive income 318 (183) 135
Issuance of stock—public offering 11 683 683
Issuance of stock—employee and direct stock purchase plans 3 206 206
Stock awards and stock options exercised (net of change in

unearned compensation) 3 112 112
Tax benefit from stock awards and stock options exercised 14 14
Dividends (825) (825)

Balance at December 31, 2003 325 10,052 61 1,054 (629) 10,538
Comprehensive income:

Net income 1,249 1,249
Net deferred derivative losses—hedging activities,

net of $632 tax benefit (1,118) (1,118)
Unrealized gains on investment securities,

net of $18 tax expense 37 37
Foreign currency translation adjustments 30 30
Amounts reclassified to net income:

Net realized losses on investment securities,
net of $12 tax benefit 23 23

Net derivative losses—hedging activities,
net of $407 tax benefit 705 705

Foreign currency translation adjustments (44) (44)
Total comprehensive income 1,249 (367) 882

Issuance of stock—equity-linked securities 7 413 413
Issuance of stock—employee and direct stock purchase plans 3 206 206
Stock awards and stock options exercised (net of change in

unearned compensation) 5 223 223
Cash settlement—forward equity transaction — (6) (6)
Tax benefit from stock awards and stock options exercised 31 31
Dividends (861) (861)

Balance at December 31, 2004 340 10,888 92 1,442 (996) 11,426
Comprehensive income:

Net income 1,033 1,033
Net deferred derivative losses—hedging activities,

net of $1,648 tax benefit (2,846) (2,846)
Unrealized gains on investment securities,

net of $19 tax expense 27 27
Minimum pension liability adjustment,

net of $3 tax expense 4 4
Foreign currency translation adjustments 10 10
Amounts reclassified to net income:

Net realized gains on investment securities,
net of $8 tax expense (11) (11)

Net derivative losses—hedging activities,
net of $723 tax benefit 1,250 1,250

Foreign currency translation adjustments (2) (2)
Total comprehensive income 1,033 (1,568) (535)

Issuance of stock—employee and direct stock purchase plans — 9 9
Stock awards and stock options exercised (net of change in

unearned compensation) 6 363 363
Issuance of stock—forward equity transaction 5 319 319
Stock repurchase and retirement (4) (276) (276)
Cash settlement—forward equity transaction — (17) (17)
Tax benefit from stock awards and stock options exercised 31 31
Dividends and other adjustments 2 (925) (923)
Balance at December 31, 2005 347 $11,286 $125 $1,550 $(2,564) $10,397

The accompanying notes are an integral part of our Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003

(millions)

$ 1,033 $ 1,249 $ 318

— — 566
35 72 85
— (18) 84

335 (63) 50
1,538 1,433 1,334

64 554 452
(139) (35) (5)
180 9 22

Changes in:
Accounts receivable (791) (288) (507)
Inventories (220) (30) (234)
Deferred fuel and purchased gas costs, net (57) 89 (244)
Prepaid pension cost 31 (8) (229)
Accounts payable 686 27 372
Accrued interest, payroll and taxes 147 (9) 42
Deferred revenue (323) (223) (43)
Margin deposit assets and liabilities 124 (6) (18)
Other operating assets and liabilities (20) 17 305

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,623 2,770 2,350

Investing Activities
Plant construction and other property additions (1,683) (1,451) (2,138)
Additions to gas and oil properties, including acquisitions (1,675) (1,299) (1,300)
Proceeds from sales of gas and oil properties 595 729 305
Acquisition of businesses (877) — —
Proceeds from sales of loans and securities 754 466 912
Purchases of securities (854) (490) (777)
Proceeds from sale of emissions allowances 234 41 5
Escrow release for debt refunding — — 500
Purchase of Dominion Fiber Ventures senior notes — — (633)
Advances to lessor for project under construction — (132) (385)
Reimbursement from lessor for project under construction — 806 —
Other 146 115 143

Net cash used in investing activities (3,360) (1,215) (3,368)

Financing Activities
Issuance (repayment) of short-term debt, net 1,045 (879) 259
Issuance of long-term debt 2,300 877 3,393
Repayment of long-term debt (2,237) (1,283) (2,922)
Issuance of common stock 664 839 990
Repurchase of common stock (276) — —
Common dividend payments (923) (861) (825)
Other (51) (13) (42)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 522 (1,320) 853

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (215) 235 (165)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 361 126 291

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 146 $ 361 $ 126

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid (received) during the year for:

Interest and related charges, excluding capitalized amounts $ 1,007 $ 926 $ 941
Income taxes 399 (8) (32)

Noncash investing and financing activities:
Assumption of debt related to acquisitions of nonutility generating facilities 62 213 —
Proceeds held in escrow from sale of gas and oil properties — 156 —
Dominion Capital Inc. exchange of notes 258 — —
Exchange of debt securities — 325 500

The accompanying notes are an integral part of our Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Operating Activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:

Impairment of telecommunications assets
Dominion Capital Inc. impairment losses
Impairment (recovery) of CNG International assets
Net realized and unrealized derivative (gains)/losses
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits, net
Gain on sale of emissions allowances
Other adjustments to net income





• Other energy-related commodity sales consist primarily of
sales of coal, emissions allowances held for resale and
extracted products and sales activity related to agreements
used to facilitate the marketing of oil production (buy/sell
arrangements) described in Note 4;

• Gas transportation and storage consists primarily of
regulated sales of gathering, transmission, distribution and
storage services. Also included are regulated gas distribution
charges to retail distribution service customers opting for
alternate suppliers;

• Gas and oil production consists primarily of sales of natural
gas, oil and condensate produced by us including the recogni-
tion of revenue previously deferred in connection with the
volumetric production payment (VPP) transactions described
in Note 12. Gas and oil production revenue is reported net of
royalties; and

• Other revenue consists primarily of miscellaneous service rev-
enue from electric and gas distribution operations; gas and oil
processing and handling revenue; and business interruption
insurance revenue associated with delayed gas and oil produc-
tion caused by Hurricane Ivan.
See Derivative Instruments for a discussion of accounting

changes we adopted October 1, 2003 that impacted the recogni-
tion and classification of changes in fair value, including settle-
ments, of contracts held for energy trading and other purposes.

Electric Fuel, Purchased Energy and Purchased
Gas—Deferred Costs
Where permitted by regulatory authorities, the differences between
actual electric fuel, purchased energy and purchased gas expenses
and the levels of recovery for these expenses in current rates are
deferred and matched against recoveries in future periods. The
deferral of costs in excess of current period fuel rate recovery is
recognized as a regulatory asset, while the recovery of fuel rate rev-
enue in excess of current period expenses is recognized as a regu-
latory liability.

As for electric fuel and purchased energy expenses, effective
January 1, 2004, the fuel factor provisions for our Virginia retail
customers are locked in until the earlier of July 1, 2007 or the ter-
mination of capped rates, with a one-time adjustment of the fuel
factor, effective July 1, 2007 through December 31, 2010, with no
deferred fuel accounting. As a result, approximately 12% of the
cost of fuel used in electric generation and energy purchases used
to serve utility customers is subject to deferral accounting. Prior to
the amendments to the Virginia Electric Utility Restructuring Act
(Virginia Restructuring Act) and the Virginia fuel factor statute in
2004, approximately 93% of the cost of fuel used in electric gener-
ation and energy purchases used to serve utility customers had
been subject to deferral accounting. Deferred costs associated with
the Virginia jurisdictional portion of expenditures incurred through
2003 continue to be reported as regulatory assets, and are subject
to recovery through future rates.

Income Taxes
We file a consolidated federal income tax return for Dominion and
its subsidiaries. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, requires an asset
and liability approach to accounting for income taxes. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are provided, representing future
effects on income taxes for temporary differences between the
bases of assets and liabilities for financial reporting and tax

purposes. Where permitted by regulatory authorities, the treatment
of temporary differences may differ from the requirements of
SFAS No. 109. Accordingly, a regulatory asset is recognized if it is
probable that future revenues will be provided for the payment of
deferred tax liabilities. We establish a valuation allowance when it is
more likely than not that all or a portion of a deferred tax asset will
not be realized. Deferred investment tax credits are amortized over
the service lives of the properties giving rise to the credits.

Stock-based Compensation
We measure compensation expense for stock-based awards issued
to our employees using the intrinsic value method prescribed by
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations. Under this
method, compensation expense for restricted stock awards equals
the fair value of our common stock on the date of grant. Stock
option awards generally do not result in compensation expense
since their exercise price is typically equal to the market price of our
common stock on the date of grant. Compensation expense, if any,
for both types of awards is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the stated vesting period of the award.

The following table illustrates the pro forma effect on net
income and earnings per share (EPS) if we had applied the fair
value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation, to stock-based employee compensation:

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003

(millions, except per share amounts)

Net income—as reported $1,033 $1,249 $ 318
Add: actual stock-based compensation expense,

net of tax(1) 15 10 10
Deduct: pro forma stock-based compensation expense,

net of tax (16) (20) (36)

Net income—pro forma $1,032 $1,239 $ 292

Basic EPS—as reported $ 3.02 $ 3.80 $1.00
Basic EPS—pro forma 3.02 3.77 0.92
Diluted EPS—as reported 3.00 3.78 1.00
Diluted EPS—pro forma 3.00 3.75 0.92

(1) Actual stock-based compensation expense primarily relates to restricted stock.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Current banking arrangements generally do not require checks to
be funded until actually presented for payment. At December 31,
2005 and 2004, accounts payable includes $150 million and
$129 million, respectively, of checks outstanding but not yet pre-
sented for payment. For purposes of our Consolidated Statements
of Cash Flows, we consider cash and cash equivalents to include
cash on hand, cash in banks and temporary investments purchased
with a remaining maturity of three months or less.

Inventories
Materials and supplies and fossil fuel inventories are valued primar-
ily using the weighted-average cost method. Stored gas inventory
used in local gas distribution operations is valued using the last-in-
first-out (LIFO) method. Under the LIFO method, those inventories
were valued at $128 million at December 31, 2005 and $59 mil-
lion at December 31, 2004. Based on the average price of gas pur-
chased during 2005, the cost of replacing the current portion of
stored gas inventory exceeded the amount stated on a LIFO basis
by approximately $392 million. Stored gas inventory held by certain
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

nonregulated gas operations is valued using the weighted-average
cost method.

Gas Imbalances
Natural gas imbalances occur when the actual amount of natural
gas delivered from or received by a pipeline system or storage facility
differs from the contractual amount of natural gas delivered or
received. We value these imbalances due to or from shippers and
operators at an appropriate index price, subject to the terms of our
tariff for regulated entities. Imbalances are primarily settled in-kind.
Imbalances due from others are reported in other current assets and
imbalances owed to others are reported in other current liabilities
on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Derivative Instruments
We use derivative instruments such as futures, swaps, forwards,
options and financial transmission rights to manage the
commodity, currency exchange and financial market risks
of our business operations.

SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities, requires all derivatives, except those for which
an exception applies, to be reported on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets at fair value. Derivative contracts representing unrealized
gain positions and purchased options are reported as derivative
assets. Derivative contracts representing unrealized losses and
options sold are reported as derivative liabilities. One of the excep-
tions to fair value accounting—normal purchases and normal
sales—may be elected when the contract satisfies certain criteria,
including a requirement that physical delivery of the underlying
commodity is probable. Expenses and revenue resulting from
deliveries under normal purchase contracts and normal sales
contracts, respectively, are included in earnings at the time of
contract performance.

As part of our overall strategy to market energy and manage
related risks, we manage a portfolio of commodity-based derivative
instruments held for trading purposes. We use established policies
and procedures to manage the risks associated with the price fluc-
tuations in these energy commodities and use various derivative
instruments to reduce risk by creating offsetting market positions.

We also hold certain derivative instruments that are not held for
trading purposes and are not designated as hedges for accounting
purposes. However, to the extent we do not hold offsetting posi-
tions for such derivatives, we believe these instruments represent
economic hedges that mitigate exposure to fluctuations in com-
modity prices, interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

Statement of Income Presentation:
• Derivatives Held for Trading Purposes: All changes in fair

value, including amounts realized upon settlement, are
presented in revenue on a net basis as nonregulated electric
sales, nonregulated gas sales and other energy-related
commodity sales.

• Financially-Settled Derivatives—Not Held for Trading Pur-
poses and Not Designated as Hedging Instruments: All unreal-
ized changes in fair value and settlements are presented in
other operations and maintenance expense on a net basis.

• Physically-Settled Derivatives—Not Held for Trading
Purposes and Not Designated as Hedging Instruments: Effective
October 1, 2003, all unrealized changes in fair value and settle-
ments for physical derivative sales contracts are presented
in revenue, while all unrealized changes in fair value and
settlements for physical derivative purchase contracts are

reported in expenses. For periods prior to October 1, 2003,
unrealized changes in fair value for physically settled derivative
contracts are presented in other operations and maintenance
expense on a net basis.
We recognize revenue or expense from all non-derivative

energy-related contracts on a gross basis at the time of contract
performance, settlement or termination.

Derivative Instruments Designated as Hedging Instruments
We designate a substantial portion of our derivative instruments as
cash flow or fair value hedges for accounting purposes. For all deriva-
tives designated as hedges, the relationship between the hedging
instrument and the hedged item is formally documented, as well as
the risk management objective and strategy for using the hedging
instrument. We assess whether the hedging relationship between
the derivative and the hedged item is highly effective at offsetting
changes in cash flows or fair values both at the inception of the hedg-
ing relationship and on an ongoing basis. Any change in fair value of
the derivative that is not effective at offsetting changes in the cash
flows or fair values of the hedged item is recognized currently in earn-
ings. Also, we may elect to exclude certain gains or losses on hedging
instruments from the measurement of hedge effectiveness, such as
gains or losses attributable to changes in the time value of options or
changes in the difference between spot prices and forward prices,
thus requiring that such changes be recorded currently in earnings.
We discontinue hedge accounting prospectively for derivatives that
have ceased to be highly effective hedges.
• Cash Flow Hedges—A significant portion of our hedge strate-

gies represents cash flow hedges of the variable price risk asso-
ciated with the purchase and sale of electricity, natural gas and
oil. We also use foreign currency forward contracts to hedge the
variability in foreign exchange rates and interest rate swaps to
hedge our exposure to variable interest rates on long-term debt.
For transactions in which we are hedging the variability of cash
flows, changes in the fair value of the derivative are reported in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)(AOCI), to the
extent effective at offsetting changes in the hedged item, until
earnings are affected by the hedged item. For cash flow hedge
transactions, we discontinue hedge accounting if the occur-
rence of the forecasted transaction is determined to be no
longer probable. We reclassify any derivative gains or losses
reported in AOCI to earnings when the forecasted item is
included in earnings, if it should occur, or earlier, if it becomes
probable that the forecasted transaction will not occur.

• Fair Value Hedges—We also use fair value hedges to mitigate
the fixed price exposure inherent in certain firm commodity
commitments and natural gas inventory. In addition, we have
designated interest rate swaps as fair value hedges to manage
our interest rate exposure on certain fixed rate long-term debt.
For fair value hedge transactions, changes in the fair value of
the derivative are generally offset currently in earnings by the
recognition of changes in the hedged item’s fair value.

• Statement of Income Presentation—Gains and losses on
derivatives designated as hedges, when recognized, are
included in operating revenue, operating expenses or interest
and related charges in our Consolidated Statements of Income.
Specific line item classification is determined based on the
nature of the risk underlying individual hedge strategies. The
portion of gains or losses on hedging instruments determined to
be ineffective and the portion of gains or losses on hedging
instruments excluded from the measurement of the hedging

62 Dominion 2005



relationship’s effectiveness, such as gains or losses attributable
to changes in the time value of options or changes in the differ-
ence between spot prices and forward prices, are included in
other operations and maintenance expense.

Valuation Methods
Fair value is based on actively quoted market prices, if available.
In the absence of actively quoted market prices, we seek indicative
price information from external sources, including broker quotes
and industry publications. If pricing information from external
sources is not available, we must estimate prices based on avail-
able historical and near-term future price information and certain
statistical methods, including regression analysis.

For options and contracts with option-like characteristics where
pricing information is not available from external sources, we gener-
ally use a modified Black-Scholes Model that considers time value,
the volatility of the underlying commodities and other relevant
assumptions when estimating fair value. We use other option mod-
els under special circumstances, including a Spread Approximation
Model, when contracts include different commodities or commodity
locations and a Swing Option Model, when contracts allow either
the buyer or seller the ability to exercise within a range of quantities.
For contracts with unique characteristics, we estimate fair value
using a discounted cash flow approach deemed appropriate in the
circumstances and applied consistently from period to period. If
pricing information is not available from external sources, judgment
is required to develop the estimates of fair value. For individual con-
tracts, the use of different valuation models or assumptions could
have a material effect on the contract’s estimated fair value.

Investment Securities
We account for and classify investments in marketable equity and
debt securities in two categories. Debt and equity securities pur-
chased and held with the intent of selling them in the near-term are
classified as trading securities. Trading securities are reported at
fair value with net realized and unrealized gains and losses included
in earnings. All other debt and equity securities, including all invest-
ments held by our nuclear decommissioning trusts, are classified
as available-for-sale securities.

Available-for-sale securities are reported at fair value with real-
ized gains and losses and any other-than-temporary declines in fair
value included in earnings and unrealized gains and losses reported
as a component of AOCI, net of tax.

We analyze all securities classified as available-for-sale to deter-
mine whether a decline in fair value should be considered other-
than-temporary. Retained interests from securitizations of financial
assets are evaluated in accordance with Emerging Issues Task
Force (EITF) Issue No. 99-20, Recognition of Interest Income and
Impairments of Purchased and Retained Beneficial Interests in
Securitized Financial Assets. For other securities, we use several
criteria to evaluate other-than-temporary declines, including length
of time over which the market value has been lower than its cost,
the percentage of the decline as compared to its average cost and
the expected fair value of the security. If the market value of the
security has been less than cost for more than eight months and
the decline in value is greater than 50% of its average cost, the
security is written down to fair value at the end of the reporting
period. If only one of the above criteria is met, a further analysis is
performed to evaluate the expected recovery value based on third-
party price targets. If the third-party price targets are below the
security’s average cost and one of the other criteria has been met,

the decline is considered other-than-temporary and the security is
written down to fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, including additions and replace-
ments, is recorded at original cost, including labor, materials, asset
retirement costs and other direct and indirect costs including capi-
talized interest. The cost of repairs and maintenance, including
minor additions and replacements, is charged to expense as
incurred. In 2005, 2004 and 2003, we capitalized interest costs of
$99 million, $70 million and $96 million, respectively.

For electric distribution and transmission property and natural
gas property subject to cost-of-service rate regulation, the depre-
ciable cost of such property, less salvage value, is charged to accu-
mulated depreciation at retirement. Cost of removal collections
from utility customers and expenditures not representing asset
retirement obligations (AROs) are recorded as regulatory liabilities
or regulatory assets.

For generation-related and nonutility property, cost of removal
not associated with AROs is charged to expense as incurred. We
record gains and losses upon retirement of generation-related and
nonutility property based upon the difference between proceeds
received, if any, and the property’s undepreciated basis at the
retirement date.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is computed on
the straight-line method based on projected service lives. Our
depreciation rates on utility property, plant and equipment are
as follows:

2005 2004 2003

(percent)

Generation 2.04 1.97 1.83
Transmission 2.25 2.21 2.22
Distribution 3.19 3.19 3.18
Storage 3.15 3.04 2.81
Gas gathering and processing 2.21 2.31 2.39
General and other 5.80 6.03 5.73

Our nonutility property, plant and equipment, excluding explo-
ration and production properties, is depreciated using the straight-
line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated
Asset Useful Lives

Merchant generation—nuclear 29–44 years
Merchant generation—other 6–65 years
General and other 3–25 years

Nuclear fuel used in electric generation is amortized over its
estimated service life on a units-of-production basis.

We follow the full cost method of accounting for gas and oil
exploration and production activities prescribed by the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC). Under the full cost method,
all direct costs of property acquisition, exploration and development
activities are capitalized. These capitalized costs are subject to a
quarterly ceiling test. Under the ceiling test, amounts capitalized
are limited to the present value of estimated future net revenues
to be derived from the anticipated production of proved gas and oil
reserves, assuming period-end pricing adjusted for cash flow
hedges in place. If net capitalized costs exceed the ceiling test at
the end of any quarterly period, then a permanent write-down of
the assets must be recognized in that period. The ceiling test is
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performed separately for each cost center, with cost centers estab-
lished on a country-by-country basis. Approximately 10% of our
anticipated production is hedged by qualifying cash flow hedges,
for which hedge-adjusted prices were used to calculate estimated
future net revenue. Whether period-end market prices or hedge-
adjusted prices were used for the portion of production that is
hedged, there was no ceiling test impairment as of December 31,
2005. Future cash flows associated with settling AROs that have
been accrued on our Consolidated Balance Sheets pursuant to
SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, are
excluded from our calculations under the full cost ceiling test.

Depreciation of gas and oil producing properties is computed
using the units-of-production method. Under the full cost method,
the depreciable base of costs subject to amortization also includes
estimated future costs to be incurred in developing proved gas and
oil reserves, as well as capitalized asset retirement costs, net of
projected salvage values. The costs of investments in unproved
properties are initially excluded from the depreciable base. Until the
properties are evaluated, a ratable portion of the capitalized costs
is periodically reclassified to the depreciable base, determined on a
property by property basis, over terms of underlying leases. Once a
property has been evaluated, any remaining capitalized costs are
then transferred to the depreciable base. In addition, gains or
losses on the sale or other disposition of gas and oil properties
are not recognized, unless the gain or loss would significantly alter
the relationship between capitalized costs and proved reserves of
natural gas and oil attributable to a country.

Emissions Allowances
Emissions allowances are issued by the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) and permit the holder of the allowance to emit certain
gaseous by-products of fossil fuel combustion, including sulfur diox-
ide (SO2) and nitrogen oxide (NOx). Allowances may be transacted
with third parties or consumed as these emissions are generated.
Allowances allocated to or acquired by our generation and LNG
operations are held primarily for consumption. Allowances acquired
by our trading and risk management operations are held primarily
for the purpose of resale to third parties.

Allowances Held for Consumption
Allowances held for consumption are classified as intangible assets
which are included in other assets on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets. Carrying amounts are based upon our cost to acquire the
allowances, or in the case of a business combination, the fair val-
ues assigned to them in our allocation of the purchase price of the
acquired business. Allowances issued directly to us by the EPA are
carried at zero cost.

These allowances are amortized in the periods they are con-
sumed with the amortization reflected in depreciation, depletion
and amortization expense on our Consolidated Statements of
Income. We report purchases and sales of these allowances as
investing activities on our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
and gains or losses resulting from sales in other operations and
maintenance expense on our Consolidated Statements of Income.

Allowances Held for Resale
Allowances held for resale are classified as materials and supplies
inventory on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Carrying amounts
are based upon our cost to acquire the allowances.

These allowances are not consumed and therefore are not sub-
ject to amortization. We report purchases and sales of these
allowances as operating activities on our Consolidated Statements
of Cash Flows. Sales of these allowances are reported in operating
revenue and purchases of allowances are reported in other energy-
related commodity purchases expense on our Consolidated State-
ments of Income.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets
We evaluate goodwill for impairment annually, as of April 1st, and
whenever an event occurs or circumstances change in the interim
that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting
unit below its carrying amount. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortized over their estimated useful lives or as consumed.

Impairment of Long-Lived and Intangible Assets
We perform an evaluation for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
long-lived assets or intangible assets with finite lives may not be
recoverable. These assets are written down to fair value if the sum
of the expected future undiscounted cash flows is less than the
carrying amounts.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities
For utility operations subject to federal or state cost-of-service rate
regulation, regulatory practices that assign costs to accounting
periods may differ from accounting methods generally applied by
nonregulated companies. When it is probable that regulators will
permit the recovery of current costs through future rates charged to
customers, we defer these costs as regulatory assets that other-
wise would be expensed by nonregulated companies. Likewise, we
recognize regulatory liabilities when it is probable that regulators will
require customer refunds through future rates and when revenue is
collected from customers for expenditures that are not yet incurred.
Regulatory assets are amortized into expense and regulatory liabili-
ties are amortized into income over the recovery period authorized
by the regulator.

Asset Retirement Obligations
We recognize AROs at fair value as incurred or when sufficient infor-
mation becomes available to determine a reasonable estimate of
the fair value of the retirement activities to be performed. These
amounts are capitalized as costs of the related tangible long-lived
assets. Since relevant market information is not available, we esti-
mate fair value using discounted cash flow analyses. We report the
accretion of the AROs due to the passage of time in other opera-
tions and maintenance expense.

Amortization of Debt Issuance Costs
We defer and amortize debt issuance costs and debt premiums or
discounts over the expected lives of the respective debt issues,
considering maturity dates and, if applicable, redemption rights
held by others. As permitted by regulatory authorities, gains or
losses resulting from the refinancing of debt allocable to utility
operations subject to cost-based rate regulation have also been
deferred and are amortized over the lives of the new issues.
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Note 3. Newly Adopted Accounting Standards

2005
SFAS No. 153
On July 1, 2005, we adopted SFAS No. 153, Exchanges of Non-
monetary Assets—an amendment of APB Opinion No. 29, which
requires that all commercially substantive exchange transactions,
for which the fair value of the assets exchanged are reliably
determinable, be recorded at fair value, whether or not they are
exchanges of similar productive assets. This amends the exception
from fair value measurements in APB Opinion No. 29, Accounting
for Nonmonetary Transactions, for nonmonetary exchanges of simi-
lar productive assets and replaces it with an exception for only
those exchanges that do not have commercial substance. There
was no impact on our results of operations or financial condition
related to our adoption of SFAS No. 153 and we do not expect the
ongoing application of SFAS No. 153 to have a material impact
on our results of operations or financial condition.

FIN 47
We adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpre-
tation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obliga-
tions (FIN 47) on December 31, 2005. FIN 47 clarifies that an
entity is required to recognize a liability for the fair value of a condi-
tional asset retirement obligation when the obligation is incurred—
generally upon acquisition, construction, or development and/or
through the normal operation of the asset, if the fair value of the
liability can be reasonably estimated. A conditional asset retirement
obligation is a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activ-
ity in which the timing and/or method of settlement are conditional
on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the
entity. Uncertainty about the timing and/or method of settlement is
required to be factored into the measurement of the liability when
sufficient information exists. Our adoption of FIN 47 resulted in the
recognition of an after-tax charge of $6 million, representing the
cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle.

Presented below are our pro forma net income and earnings per
share as if we had applied the provisions of FIN 47 as of January 1,
2003.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003

(millions, except per share amounts)

Net income—as reported $1,033 $1,249 $ 318
Net income—pro forma 1,038 1,248 317
Basic EPS—as reported 3.02 3.80 1.00
Basic EPS—pro forma 3.03 3.79 1.00
Diluted EPS—as reported 3.00 3.78 1.00
Diluted EPS—pro forma 3.02 3.78 1.00

If we had applied the provisions of FIN 47 as of January 1, 2003,
our asset retirement obligations would have increased by $124 mil-
lion, $131 million and $140 million as of January 1, 2003,
December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2004, respectively.

2004
FIN 46R
We adopted FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 2003),
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (FIN 46R), for our inter-
ests in VIEs that are not considered special purpose entities on
March 31, 2004. FIN 46R addresses the identification and consoli-
dation of VIEs, which are entities that are not controllable through
voting interests or in which the VIEs’ equity investors do not bear

the residual economic risks and rewards in proportion to voting
rights. There was no impact on our results of operations or financial
position related to this adoption. See Note 16.

EITF 04-8
On December 31, 2004, we adopted EITF Issue No. 04-8, The
Effect of Contingently Convertible Instruments on Diluted Earnings
per Share, which requires the shares issuable under contingently
convertible instruments to be included in the diluted EPS calcula-
tion regardless of whether the market price trigger (or other contin-
gent feature) has been met. Prior to adoption, we exchanged
$219 million of outstanding contingent convertible senior notes for
new notes with a conversion feature that requires that the principal
amount of each note be repaid in cash. The new notes outstanding
on December 31, 2004 were included in the diluted EPS calcula-
tion retroactive to the date of issuance using the method described
in EITF 04-8. Under this method, the number of shares included in
the denominator of the diluted EPS calculation is calculated as the
net shares issuable for the reporting period based upon the average
market price for the period. This did not result in an increase to the
average shares outstanding used in the 2004 calculation of our
diluted EPS since the conversion price included in the notes was
greater than the average market price. In 2005, we exchanged an
additional $1 million of outstanding contingent convertible senior
notes for new notes with a conversion feature that requires that the
principal amount of each note be repaid in cash.

2003
SFAS No. 143
Effective January 1, 2003, we adopted SFAS No. 143, which pro-
vides accounting requirements for the recognition and measure-
ment of liabilities associated with the retirement of tangible
long-lived assets. The effect of adopting SFAS No. 143 for 2003, as
compared to an estimate of net income reflecting the continuation
of former accounting policies, was to increase net income by
$201 million. The increase is comprised of a $180 million after-tax
benefit, representing the cumulative effect of a change in account-
ing principle and an increase in income before the cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle of $21 million.

EITF 02-3
On January 1, 2003, we adopted EITF Issue No. 02-3, Issues
Involved in Accounting for Derivative Contracts Held for Trading Pur-
poses and Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk Manage-
ment Activities, that rescinded EITF Issue No. 98-10, Accounting for
Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk Management Activi-
ties. Adopting EITF 02-3 resulted in the discontinuance of fair value
accounting for non-derivative contracts held for trading purposes.
Those contracts are recognized as revenue or expense at the time
of contract performance, settlement or termination. The EITF 98-10
rescission was effective for non-derivative energy trading contracts
initiated after October 25, 2002. For all non-derivative energy trad-
ing contracts initiated prior to October 25, 2002, we recognized a
charge of $67 million ($43 million after-tax) as the cumulative
effect of this change in accounting principle on January 1, 2003.

EITF 03-11
We adopted EITF Issue No. 03-11, Reporting Realized Gains and
Losses on Derivative Instruments That Are Subject to FASB State-
ment No. 133 and Not “Held for Trading Purposes” as Defined in
EITF Issue No. 02-3, on October 1, 2003. EITF 03-11 addresses
classification of income statement related amounts for derivative
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contracts. Income statement amounts related to periods prior to
October 1, 2003 are presented as originally reported. See Note 2.

Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. C20
In connection with a request to reconsider an interpretation of SFAS
No. 133, the FASB issued Statement 133 Implementation Issue
No. C20, Interpretation of the Meaning of ‘Not Clearly and Closely
Related’ in Paragraph 10(b) regarding Contracts with a Price
Adjustment Feature. Issue C20 establishes criteria for determining
whether a contract’s pricing terms that contain broad market
indices (e.g., the consumer price index) could qualify as a normal
purchase or sale and, therefore, not be subject to fair value
accounting. We had several contracts that qualified as normal pur-
chase and sales contracts under the Issue C20 guidance. However,
the adoption of Issue C20 required those contracts to be initially
recorded at fair value as of October 1, 2003, resulting in the recog-
nition of an after-tax charge of $75 million, representing the cumu-
lative effect of the change in accounting principle. As normal
purchase and sales contracts, no further changes in fair value
were recognized.

FIN 46R
On December 31, 2003, we adopted FIN 46R for our interests in
special purpose entities, resulting in the consolidation of several
special purpose lessor entities through which we had constructed,
financed and leased several new power generation projects, as well
as our corporate headquarters and aircraft. As a result, our Consoli-
dated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2003 reflected an addi-
tional $644 million in net property, plant and equipment and
deferred charges and $688 million of related debt. This resulted in
additional depreciation expense of approximately $20 million in
both 2005 and 2004. The cumulative effect in 2003 of adopting
FIN 46R for our interests in special purpose entities was an after-
tax charge of $27 million, representing depreciation expense and
amortization associated with the consolidated assets.

From 1997 through 2002, we established five capital trusts that
sold trust preferred securities to third-party investors. We received
the proceeds from the sale of the trust preferred securities in
exchange for various junior subordinated notes issued to be held by
the trusts. Upon adoption of FIN 46R, we began reporting as long-
term debt our junior subordinated notes held by the trusts rather
than the trust preferred securities. As a result, in 2005 and
2004, we reported interest expense on the junior subordinated
notes rather than preferred distribution expense on the trust
preferred securities.

Note 4. Recently Issued Accounting Standards

SFAS No. 123R
SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (SFAS No.
123R), requires that compensation cost relating to share-based
payment transactions be recognized in the financial statements
based on the fair value of the equity or liability instruments issued.
SFAS No. 123R covers a wide range of share-based compensation
arrangements, including share options, restricted share plans, per-
formance-based awards, share appreciation rights and employee
share purchase plans. In addition, SFAS No. 123R clarifies the tim-
ing of expense recognition for share-based awards with terms that
accelerate vesting upon retirement.

Our restricted stock awards contain terms that accelerate vest-
ing upon retirement. Under current practice, compensation cost for

these awards is recognized over the stated vesting term unless
vesting is actually accelerated by retirement. Upon adoption of
SFAS No. 123R, we will continue to recognize compensation cost
over the stated vesting term for existing restricted stock awards, but
will be required to recognize compensation cost over the shorter of
the stated vesting term or period from the date of grant to the date
of retirement eligibility for newly issued or modified restricted stock
awards. At December 31, 2005, unrecognized compensation cost
for restricted stock awards held by retirement eligible employees
totaled $9 million.

SFAS No. 123R also requires the benefits of tax deductions in
excess of recognized share-based compensation expense to be
classified as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating cash
flow. This requirement will reduce net operating cash flow and
increase net financing cash flow in periods after adoption.

We adopted SFAS No. 123R and related guidance on January 1,
2006, using the modified prospective transition method. Under this
transition method, compensation cost will be recognized (a) based
on the requirements of SFAS No. 123R for all share-based awards
granted subsequent to January 1, 2006 and (b) based on the
original provisions of SFAS No. 123 for all awards granted prior to
January 1, 2006, but not vested as of this date. Results for prior
periods will not be restated. The ongoing application of SFAS No.
123R is not expected to have a material impact on our results of
operations or financial condition.

SFAS No. 154
In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes
and Error Corrections. SFAS No. 154 applies to all voluntary
changes in accounting principle and requires retrospective applica-
tion to prior periods’ financial statements of a voluntary change
in accounting principle unless it is impracticable to determine either
the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change.
We will apply the provisions of SFAS No. 154 to voluntary account-
ing changes on or after January 1, 2006.

EITF 04-5
In June 2005, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the
EITF on Issue No. 04-5, Determining Whether a General Partner,
or the General Partners as a Group, Controls a Limited Partnership
or Similar Entity When the Limited Partners Have Certain Rights.
EITF 04-5 provides guidance in assessing when a general partner
should consolidate its investment in a limited partnership or similar
entity. The provisions of EITF 04-5 were required to be applied
beginning June 30, 2005 by general partners of all newly formed
limited partnerships and for existing limited partnerships for which
the partnership agreements are modified and is effective for gen-
eral partners in all other limited partnerships beginning January 1,
2006. There was no impact on our results of operations or financial
condition related to our adoption of EITF 04-5.

EITF 04-13
We enter into buy/sell and related agreements primarily as a means
to reposition our offshore Gulf of Mexico crude oil production to
more liquid marketing locations onshore. We typically enter into
either a single or a series of buy/sell transactions in which we sell
our crude oil production at the offshore field delivery point and buy
similar quantities at Cushing, Oklahoma for sale to third parties. We
are able to enhance profitability by selling to a wide array of refiners
and/or trading companies at Cushing, one of the largest crude oil
markets in the world, versus restricting sales to a limited number of
refinery purchasers in the Gulf of Mexico.
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Under the primary guidance of EITF Issue No. 99-19, Reporting
Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent, we present the
sales and purchases related to our crude oil buy/sell arrangements on
a gross basis in our Consolidated Statements of Income. These trans-
actions require physical delivery of the crude oil and the risks and
rewards of ownership are evidenced by title transfer, assumption of
environmental risk, transportation scheduling and counterparty non-
performance risk. Sale activity included in operating revenue was
$377 million, $290 million and $181 million in 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively. Purchase activity included in other energy-related
commodity purchases expense was $362 million, $271 million and
$163 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

In September 2005, the FASB ratified the EITF’s consensus on
Issue No. 04-13, Accounting for Purchases and Sales of Inventory
with the Same Counterparty, that will require buy/sell and related
agreements to be presented on a net basis in the Consolidated
Statements of Income if they are entered into in contemplation of
one another. This new guidance is required to be applied to all new
arrangements entered into, and modifications or renewals of exist-
ing arrangements, beginning April 1, 2006. We are currently
assessing the impact that this new guidance may have on our
income statement presentation of these transactions; however,
there will be no impact on our results of operations or cash flows.

Note 5. Acquisitions

USGen Power Plants
In January 2005, we completed the acquisition of three fossil fired
generation facilities from USGen New England, Inc. for $642 million
in cash. The plants, collectively referred to as Dominion New
England, include the 1,560-megawatt Brayton Point Station in
Somerset, Massachusetts; the 754-megawatt Salem Harbor
Station in Salem, Massachusetts; and the 432-megawatt
Manchester Street Station in Providence, Rhode Island. The
operations of Dominion New England are included in the Dominion
Generation operating segment.

Kewaunee Power Station
In July 2005, we completed the acquisition of the 556-megawatt
Kewaunee nuclear power station (Kewaunee), located in northeast-
ern Wisconsin, from Wisconsin Public Service Corporation, a sub-
sidiary of WPS Resources Corporation (WPS), and Wisconsin Power
and Light Company (WP&L), a subsidiary of Alliant Energy Corpora-
tion for approximately $192 million in cash. We sell 100% of
the facility’s output to WPS (59%) and WP&L (41%) under two
power purchase agreements that will expire in 2013. The opera-
tions of Kewaunee are included in the Dominion Generation
operating segment.

The purchase price was allocated to the assets acquired and lia-
bilities assumed based on their estimated fair values as of the date
of the acquisition. We may make adjustments to the initial purchase
price allocation to reflect the receipt of additional information.

Note 6. Operating Revenue
Our operating revenue consists of the following:

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003

(millions)

Electric sales:
Regulated $ 5,543 $ 5,180 $ 4,876
Nonregulated 3,113 1,249 1,130

Gas sales:
Regulated 1,763 1,422 1,258
Nonregulated 2,945 2,082 1,718

Other energy-related commodity sales 1,672 1,272 588
Gas transportation and storage 900 802 740
Gas and oil production 1,704 1,636 1,503
Other 401 348 282

Total operating revenue $18,041 $13,991 $12,095

Note 7. Income Taxes
Income from continuing operations before provision for income
taxes (pre-tax income), classified by source of income, and the
details of income tax expense for continuing operations were
as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003

(millions)

Income from continuing operations before
income tax expense:
U.S. $1,587 $1,938 $1,506
Non-U.S. 29 26 40

Total 1,616 1,964 1,546

Income tax expense:
Current

Federal 410 62 121
State 104 82 22
Non-U.S. — (3) 1

Total current 514 141 144

Deferred
Federal 88 580 433
State (18) (16) 32
Non-U.S. 15 12 6

Total deferred 85 576 471

Amortization of deferred investment tax credits—net (17) (17) (18)

Total income tax expense $ 582 $ 700 $ 597

For continuing operations, the statutory U.S. federal income tax
rate reconciles to our effective income tax rates as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003

U.S. statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Increases (reductions) resulting from:

Valuation allowance 1.2 (0.3) 4.0
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 3.4 2.2 2.2
Utility plant differences — 0.1 (0.4)
Preferred dividends 0.3 0.3 0.4
Amortization of investment tax credits (0.8) (0.7) (0.9)
Other benefits and taxes/foreign operations (0.4) — (0.5)
Employee pension and other benefits (1.2) (0.5) (0.7)
Employee stock ownership plan and restricted

stock dividends (0.8) (0.5) (0.7)
Other, net (0.7) — 0.2

Effective tax rate 36.0% 35.6% 38.6%
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax
purposes. Our net deferred income taxes consist of the following:

At December 31, 2005 2004

(millions)

Deferred income tax assets:
Other comprehensive income $1,505 $ 594
Other 644 520
Loss and credit carryforwards 893 798
Valuation allowance (339) (328)

Total deferred income tax assets 2,703 1,584

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Depreciation method and plant basis differences 2,798 2,959
Partnership basis differences 181 167
Pension benefits 677 754
Gas and oil exploration and production related differences 1,956 1,607
Deferred state income taxes 465 471
Other 624 456

Total deferred income tax liabilities 6,701 6,414

Total net deferred income tax liabilities $3,998 $4,830

At December 31, 2005, we had the following loss and credit
carryforwards:
• Federal loss carryforwards of $1.3 billion that expire if unutilized

during the period 2007 through 2024. A valuation allowance on
$783 million in carryforwards has been established due to the
uncertainty of realizing these future deductions;

• State loss carryforwards of $1.9 billion that expire if unutilized
during the period 2006 through 2025. A valuation allowance on
$844 million has been established for these carryforwards; and

• Federal and state minimum tax credits of $316 million that do
not expire and other federal and state income tax credits of
$74 million that will expire if unutilized during the period 2006
through 2011.

Other
We have not provided for U.S. deferred income taxes or foreign
withholding taxes on remaining undistributed earnings of $146 mil-
lion from our non-U.S. subsidiaries since we do not intend to repa-
triate those earnings.

We are routinely audited by federal and state tax authorities.
The interpretation of tax laws involves uncertainty, since tax authori-
ties may interpret them differently. We establish liabilities for tax-
related contingencies in accordance with SFAS No. 5, Accounting
for Contingencies, and review them in light of changing facts and
circumstances. Ultimate resolution of income tax matters may
result in favorable or unfavorable adjustments that could be mate-
rial. Our estimated income tax payments for 2005 were reduced by
deducting a calendar year 2003 net operating loss, a substantial
portion of which resulted from a write-off related to our discontin-
ued telecommunications business, Dominion Fiber Ventures, LLC
(DFV). The DFV deduction reduced our 2005 income tax payments
by approximately $116 million. We have not yet recognized in net
income any tax benefits related to the deduction. If our tax deduc-
tion is challenged and ultimately not sustained, we will have to pay
$116 million plus accrued interest. At December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004, our Consolidated Balance Sheets reflect
$144 million and $52 million, respectively, of income tax-related
contingent liabilities.

American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the Jobs Act)
The Jobs Act has several provisions for energy companies, including
a deduction related to taxable income derived from qualified pro-
duction activities. Our electric generation and oil and gas extraction
activities qualify as production activities under the Jobs Act. The
Jobs Act limits the deduction to the lesser of taxable income
derived from qualified production activities or our consolidated
federal taxable income. Our qualified production activities deduc-
tion for 2005 is limited to a minimal amount.

Also, under the Jobs Act, United States companies could have
repatriated foreign earnings at a substantially reduced tax rate
until December 2005. We did not repatriate any funds under
this provision.

Note 8. Hedge Accounting Activities
We are exposed to the impact of market fluctuations in the price
of natural gas, electricity and other energy-related products mar-
keted and purchased as well as currency exchange and interest
rate risks of our business operations. We use derivative instruments
to manage our exposure to these risks and designate certain deriv-
ative instruments as fair value or cash flow hedges for accounting
purposes as allowed by SFAS No. 133. Selected information about
our hedge accounting activities follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003

(millions)

Portion of gains (losses) on hedging instruments
determined to be ineffective and included in net income:
Fair value hedges $ 18 $ (2) $(3)
Cash flow hedges(1) (79) 10 7

Net ineffectiveness $(61) $ 8 $ 4

Portion of gains (losses) on hedging instruments excluded from
measurement of effectiveness and included in net income:
Fair value hedges(2) $ 4 $ 3 $ 1
Cash flow hedges(3) (2) 101 7

Total $ 2 $104 $ 8

(1) Represents an increase in hedge ineffectiveness expense primarily due to an increase in the
fair value differential between the delivery location and commodity specifications of
derivative contracts held by our exploration and production operations and the delivery
location and commodity specifications of our forecasted gas and oil sales.

(2) Amounts relate to changes in the difference between spot prices and forward prices for 2005
and 2004 and to changes in options’ time value for 2003.

(3) Amounts relate to changes in options’ time value.
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The following table presents selected information related to
cash flow hedges included in AOCI in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet at December 31, 2005:

Portion
Expected to

be Reclassified
to Earnings

During the Next
AOCI 12 Months Maximum

After Tax After Tax Term

(millions)

Commodities:
Gas $(1,495) $ (821) 60 months
Oil (548) (313) 36 months
Electricity (743) (413) 36 months

Interest rate (15) 8 246 months
Foreign currency 24 11 23 months

Total $(2,777) $(1,528)

The amounts that will be reclassified from AOCI to earnings will
generally be offset by the recognition of the hedged transactions
(e.g., anticipated sales) in earnings, thereby achieving the realiza-
tion of prices contemplated by the underlying risk management
strategies and will vary from the expected amounts presented
above as a result of changes in market prices, interest rates and
foreign exchange rates.

Due to interruptions in the Gulf of Mexico oil production caused
by Hurricane Ivan, we discontinued hedge accounting for certain
cash flow hedges in September 2004 since it became probable
that the forecasted sales of oil would not occur. In connection with
the discontinuance of hedge accounting for these contracts we
reclassified $71 million of pre-tax losses from AOCI to earnings in
September 2004.

As a result of a delay in reaching anticipated production levels in
the Gulf of Mexico, we discontinued hedge accounting for certain
cash flow hedges in March 2005 since it became probable that the
forecasted sales of oil would not occur. In connection with the dis-
continuance of hedge accounting for these contracts, we reclassi-
fied $30 million ($19 million after-tax) of losses from AOCI to
earnings in March 2005. Through December 31, 2005, we have
recognized additional losses of $29 million ($19 million after-tax)
due to subsequent changes in the fair value of these contracts.

Additionally, due to interruptions in Gulf of Mexico and southern
Louisiana gas and oil production caused by Hurricanes Katrina and
Rita, we discontinued hedge accounting for certain cash flow
hedges in August and September 2005 since it became probable
that the forecasted sales of gas and oil would not occur. In connec-
tion with the discontinuance of hedge accounting for these con-
tracts, we reclassified $423 million ($272 million after-tax) of
losses from AOCI to earnings in the third quarter of 2005. Through
December 31, 2005, we have recognized additional losses of
$12 million ($8 million after-tax) due to subsequent changes in the
fair value of these contracts. Losses related to the discontinuance
of hedge accounting are reported in other operations and mainte-
nance expense in our Consolidated Statements of Income.

Note 9. Discontinued Operations—
Telecommunications Operations
DFV was a joint venture originally formed by Dominion and a third-
party investor trust (Investor Trust) to fund the development of its
principal subsidiary, Dominion Telecom, Inc. (Dominion Telecom).
Dominion Telecom was a facilities-based interchange and emerging
local carrier, providing broadband solutions to wholesale customers
throughout the eastern United States. Due to a weak pricing envi-
ronment resulting from excess capacity in the telecommunications
industry and the markets for these services not growing at rates
originally contemplated, we approved a strategy to sell our interest
in the telecommunications business and began reporting Dominion
Telecom as a discontinued operation in the fourth quarter of 2003.

In connection with its formation, DFV issued $665 million of
7.05% senior secured notes due March 2005 that were secured in
part by Dominion convertible preferred stock held in trust. We were
the beneficial owner of the trust and thus did not present the con-
vertible preferred stock in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. During
2004, as a result of the retirement of DFV’s senior notes, the trust
was dissolved and the convertible preferred stock was retired.

2005 and 2004—Sale of Dominion Telecom
In May 2004, we completed the sale of our discontinued telecom-
munication operations to Elantic Telecom, Inc. (ETI), realizing a loss
of $11 million ($7 million after-tax, $0.02 per share) related to the
sale. The results of telecommunications operations, including rev-
enue of $8 million and a loss before income taxes of $19 million,
are presented as discontinued operations, on a net basis, in our
Consolidated Statement of Income for 2004. In July 2004, ETI filed
a voluntary petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code, which was subsequently approved by the U.S.
Bankruptcy Court. ETI’s plan of reorganization became effective in
May 2005, and ETI emerged from bankruptcy. In September 2005,
ETI, its parent and various Dominion entities reached a comprehen-
sive settlement of various issues that was subsequently approved
by the U.S. Bankruptcy Court. We recognized a benefit of $8 million
($5 million after-tax) in 2005, from the revaluation of an outstand-
ing guarantee associated with the sale transaction. In addition to
this $8 million outstanding guarantee, we have several potential
indemnification obligations related to our discontinued telecommu-
nications operations.

2003—Asset Impairments
The change in strategy in 2003 included a review of Dominion
Telecom’s network assets and related inventories for impairment.
As a result, we recognized a $566 million impairment of network
assets and related inventories, reflecting the excess of the assets’
carrying amount over their estimated fair values. This amount
included the allocation of $16 million to the Investor Trust,
representing the minority interest’s share of these charges. We
determined the estimated fair values with the assistance of an
independent appraiser and subsequently updated the fair values
based on preliminary bids received in connection with the sale of
Dominion Telecom.

Since realization of tax benefits related to the impairment
charges will be dependent upon our expected future tax profile,
we established a valuation allowance that completely offsets the
deferred tax benefits. In addition, we increased the valuation
allowance on deferred tax assets previously recognized, resulting
in a $48 million increase in deferred income tax expense.
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2003—Additional Investments in DFV
The DFV senior notes contained certain stock price and credit
downgrade triggers that could have resulted in the issuance of the
convertible preferred stock held in trust. In the first quarter of
2003, we purchased $633 million of DFV senior notes to reduce
the likelihood that the remarketing of the Dominion convertible pre-
ferred stock held in trust would ever occur and, in connection with
the purchase, obtained consent to remove the triggers from the
indenture. We paid a total of $664 million for the notes acquired
and recognized a pre-tax charge of $57 million, reported in other
expenses on our Consolidated Statement of Income. The charge
consisted of the premium paid to acquire the notes, the consent
fee paid to the note holders and the recognition of previously
unamortized debt costs. After the transaction, we owned a total of
$644 million of DFV senior notes with the remaining $21 million of
outstanding notes held by third parties.

We began consolidating the results of DFV in our Consolidated
Financial Statements in February 2003, as a result of acquiring
substantially all of DFV’s outstanding senior notes. Prior to this
acquisition, we accounted for DFV as an equity-method investment,
due to the Investor Trust’s equity investment and veto rights.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, we purchased the Investor Trust’s
interest in DFV for $62 million, including $2 million for accrued divi-
dends. This transaction was accounted for as a purchase of a
minority interest and $60 million was recognized as goodwill and
impaired. The purchase enabled us to proceed with our strategy to
sell Dominion Telecom and, accordingly, classify the business as
discontinued operations as of December 31, 2003. The results of
telecommunications operations, including revenue of $18 million
and a loss before income taxes of $627 million, were presented as
discontinued operations, on a net basis, on the Consolidated State-
ment of Income for 2003.

2003—Other
Also early in 2003, we recognized a $27 million charge for the
reallocation of DFV’s equity losses between the Investor Trust and
Dominion. Based on updated projections of DFV’s expected net
losses, Dominion and the Investor Trust revised the allocation of
equity losses, using cash allocations and liquidation provisions of
the underlying limited liability company agreement rather than
voting interests.

Note 10. Earnings Per Share
The following table presents the calculation of our basic and
diluted EPS:

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003

(millions, except per share amounts)

Income from continuing operations before cumulative
effect of changes in accounting principles $1,034 $1,264 $ 949

Income (loss) from discontinued operations 5 (15) (642)
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles (6) — 11

Net income $1,033 $1,249 $ 318

Basic EPS
Average shares of common stock outstanding—basic 342.3 329.1 317.5
Income from continuing operations before cumulative

effect of changes in accounting principles $ 3.02 $ 3.84 $ 2.99
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 0.02 (0.04) (2.02)
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles (0.02) — .03

Net income $ 3.02 $ 3.80 $ 1.00

Diluted EPS
Average shares of common stock outstanding 342.3 329.1 317.5
Net effect of potentially dilutive securities(1) 2.1 1.4 1.3

Average shares of common stock outstanding—diluted 344.4 330.5 318.8

Income from continuing operations before cumulative
effect of changes in accounting principles $ 3.00 $ 3.82 $ 2.98

Income (loss) from discontinued operations 0.02 (0.04) (2.01)
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles (0.02) — .03

Net income $ 3.00 $ 3.78 $ 1.00

(1) Potentially dilutive securities consist of options, restricted stock, equity-linked securities,
contingently convertible senior notes and shares that were issuable under a forward equity
sale agreement.

Potentially dilutive securities with the right to purchase approxi-
mately 3 million, 5 million and 10 million common shares for the
years ended 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, were not
included in the respective period’s calculation of diluted EPS
because the exercise or purchase prices included in those
instruments were greater than the average market price of the
common shares.

70 Dominion 2005



Note 11. Investment Securities
We hold marketable debt and equity securities in nuclear decom-
missioning trust funds, retained interests from prior securitizations
of financial assets and subordinated notes related to certain collat-
eralized debt obligations, all of which are classified as available-
for-sale. In addition, we hold marketable debt and equity securities,
which are classified as trading, in rabbi trusts associated with
certain deferred compensation plans.

Available-for-sale securities as of December 31, 2005 and
2004 are summarized below:

Total Total
Unrealized Unrealized

Gains Losses
Fair Included Included

Value in AOCI in AOCI

(millions)

2005
Equity securities $1,598 $296 $25
Debt securities 1,157 11 8

Total $2,755 $307 $33

2004
Equity securities $1,229 $240 $12
Debt securities 1,044 20 1

Total $2,273 $260 $13

The following table presents the fair value and gross unrealized
losses of our available-for-sale securities, aggregated by investment
category and the length of time the securities have been in a con-
tinuous loss position, at December 31, 2005:

Equity Securities Debt Securities

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses

(millions)

Less than 12 months $168 $17 $430 $7
12 months or more 38 8 40 1

Total $206 $25 $470 $8

Debt securities backed by mortgages and loans do not have
stated contractual maturities as borrowers have the right to call or
repay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. At
December 31, 2005, these debt securities totaled $285 million.
The fair value of all other debt securities at December 31, 2005 by
contractual maturity are as follows:

Amount

(millions)

Due in one year or less $ 40
Due after one year through five years 260
Due after five years through ten years 290
Due after ten years 282

Total $872

Presented below is selected information regarding the sales
of investment securities. In determining realized gains and losses,
the cost of these securities was determined on a specific identifica-
tion basis.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003

(millions)

Available-for-sale securities:
Proceeds from sales $754 $463 $832
Realized gains 46 57 62
Realized losses 49 90 102

Trading securities:
Net unrealized gain 6 4 12

Note 12. Property, Plant and Equipment
Major classes of property, plant and equipment and their respective
balances are:

At December 31, 2005 2004

(millions)

Total utility 26,161 25,307

Nonutility
Exploration and production properties being amortized:

Proved 9,929 8,246
Unproved 753 653

Unproved exploration and production properties
not being amortized 1,022 970

Merchant generation—nuclear 1,109 997
Merchant generation—other 1,612 1,268
Nuclear fuel 361 271
Other—including plant under construction 1,116 951

Total nonutility 15,902 13,356

Total property, plant and equipment $42,063 $38,663

Costs of unproved properties capitalized under the full cost
method of accounting that were excluded from amortization
at December 31, 2005 and the years in which such excluded
costs were incurred, are as follows:

Years
Total 2005 2004 2003 Prior

(millions)

Property acquisition costs $ 637 $ 89 $ 33 $22 $493
Exploration costs 221 93 67 20 41
Capitalized interest 164 44 39 45 36

Total $1,022 $226 $139 $87 $570

Dominion 2005 71

Utility
Generation $10,243 $10,135
Transmission 3,570 3,464
Distribution 8,408 8,024
Storage 947 1,023
Nuclear fuel 870 795
Gas gathering and processing 433 418
General and other 736 774
Plant under construction 954 674
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There were no significant properties under development, as
defined by the SEC, excluded from amortization at December 31,
2005. As gas and oil reserves are proved through drilling or as
properties are deemed to be impaired, excluded costs and any
related reserves are transferred on an ongoing, well-by-well basis
into the amortization calculation.

Amortization rates for capitalized costs under the full cost
method of accounting for our United States and Canadian cost
centers were as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003

(Per Mcf Equivalent)

United States cost center $1.41 $1.28 $1.20
Canadian cost center 1.82 1.18 1.00

Volumetric Production Payment Transactions
In 2005, we received $424 million in cash for the sale of a fixed-
term overriding royalty interest in certain of our natural gas reserves
for the period March 2005 through February 2009. The sale
reduced our proved natural gas reserves by approximately 76 billion
cubic feet (bcf). While we are obligated under the agreement to
deliver to the purchaser its portion of future natural gas production
from the properties, we retain control of the properties and rights to
future development drilling. If production from the properties sub-
ject to the sale is inadequate to deliver the approximately 76 bcf of
natural gas scheduled for delivery to the purchaser, we have no
obligation to make up the shortfall. Cash proceeds received from
this VPP transaction were recorded as deferred revenue. We will
recognize revenue from the transaction as natural gas is produced
and delivered to the purchaser. We previously entered into VPP
transactions in 2004 and 2003 for approximately 83 bcf for the
period May 2004 through April 2008 and 66 bcf for the period
August 2003 through July 2007, respectively.

Sale of British Columbia Assets
In December 2004, we sold the majority of our natural gas and oil
assets in British Columbia, Canada, for $476 million, which was
credited to our Canadian full cost pool. We received cash proceeds
of $320 million in December 2004 and $156 million in January
2005. The properties sold produced about 30 bcf equivalent net of
natural gas annually. We recorded expenses of $10 million in other
operations and maintenance expense related to the sale.

Jointly-Owned Utility Plants
Our proportionate share of jointly-owned utility plants at December
31, 2005 is as follows:

Bath
County North

Pumped Anna Clover
Storage Power Power
Station Station Station

(millions, except percentages)

Ownership interest 60.0% 88.4% 50.0%
Plant in service $1,007 $2,075 $553
Accumulated depreciation (395) (930) (122)
Nuclear fuel — 393 —
Accumulated amortization of nuclear fuel — (312) —
Plant under construction 34 59 1

The co-owners are obligated to pay their share of all future con-
struction expenditures and operating costs of the jointly—owned
facilities in the same proportion as their respective ownership inter-
est. We report our share of operating costs in the appropriate oper-
ating expense (electric fuel and energy purchases, other operations
and maintenance, depreciation, depletion and amortization and
other taxes, etc.) in our Consolidated Statements of Income.

Note 13. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill
There was no impairment of or material change to the carrying
amount or segment allocation of goodwill in 2005 or 2004.

In 2003, we recorded goodwill impairment charges of $18 mil-
lion related to our DCI reporting unit. During 2003, a DCI subsidiary
received an unfavorable arbitration ruling that resulted in lower
margins for services provided. Another DCI subsidiary experienced
delays in expanding marketing and stabilizing production efforts. As
a result of these unfavorable developments, we performed goodwill
impairment tests, using discounted cash flow analyses, which indi-
cated that the goodwill associated with those entities was impaired.

Also in 2003, as described in Note 9, we purchased the remain-
ing equity interest in DFV for $62 million, including $2 million for
accrued dividends. This transaction was accounted for as a pur-
chase of a minority interest and $60 million was recognized as
goodwill and immediately impaired. The purchase enabled us to
proceed with our strategy to sell Dominion Telecom.

Other Intangible Assets
All of our intangible assets, other than goodwill, are subject to
amortization. Amortization expense for intangible assets was $130
million, $62 million and $54 million for 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The acquisition of Dominion New England included
certain emissions allowances that are classified as intangible
assets. Approximately $245 million of the purchase price was allo-
cated to these allowances. There were no other material acquisi-
tions of intangible assets in 2005. In 2005, we sold certain
Dominion New England emissions allowances with a carrying
amount of $92 million. The components of our intangible assets
are as follows:

At December 31, 2005 2004

Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

(millions)

Software and software licenses $ 613 $308 $579 $269
Emissions allowances 169 50 12 4
Other 225 30 106 26

Total $1,007 $388 $697 $299

Annual amortization expense for intangible assets is estimated
to be $104 million for 2006, $92 million for 2007, $73 million
for 2008, $64 million for 2009 and $38 million for 2010.
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Note 14. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities
Our regulatory assets and liabilities include the following:

At December 31, 2005 2004

(millions)

Regulatory assets:
Unrecovered gas costs $179 $ 52

Regulatory assets—current(1) 179 52

Income taxes recoverable through future rates(2) 260 250
Deferred cost of fuel used in electric generation(3) 171 248
Other postretirement benefit costs(4) 80 96
Customer bad debts(5) 70 73
RTO start-up costs and administration fees(6) 47 41
Termination of certain power purchase agreements(7) 24 —
Other 106 80

Regulatory assets—non-current 758 788

Total regulatory assets $937 $840

Regulatory liabilities:
Provision for future cost of removal(8) 567 595
Other(9) 48 30

Total regulatory liabilities $615 $625

(1) Reported in other current assets.
(2) Income taxes recoverable through future rates resulting from the recognition of additional

deferred income taxes, not recognized under ratemaking practices.
(3) In connection with the settlement of the 2003 Virginia fuel rate proceeding, we agreed

to recover previously incurred costs through June 30, 2007 without a return on a portion
of the unrecovered balance. Remaining costs to be recovered totaled $139 million at
December 31, 2005.

(4) Costs recognized in excess of amounts included in regulated rates charged by our regulated
gas operations before rates were updated to reflect a new method of accounting and the
cost related to the accrued benefit obligation recognized as part of accounting for our
acquisition of CNG.

(5) Instead of recovering bad debt costs through our base rates, the Public Utilities Commission
of Ohio (Ohio Commission) allows us to recover all eligible bad debt expenses through a bad
debt tracker. Annually, we assess the need to adjust the tracker based on the preceding year’s
unrecovered deferred bad debt expense. The Ohio Commission also has authorized the
collection of previously deferred costs associated with certain uncollectible customer
accounts from 2001 over five years through the tracker rider. Remaining costs to be recovered
totaled $35 million at December 31, 2005.

(6) The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) has conditionally authorized our deferral
of start-up costs incurred in connection with joining an RTO and ongoing administrative fees
paid to PJM. We have deferred $41 million in start-up costs and administration fees and
$6 million of associated carrying costs. We expect recovery from Virginia jurisdictional
retail customers to commence at the end of the Virginia retail rate cap period, subject to
regulatory approval.

(7) The North Carolina Utilities Commission has authorized the deferral of previously incurred
costs associated with the termination of certain long-term power purchase agreements
with nonutility generators. The related costs are being amortized over the original term of
each agreement.

(8) Rates charged to customers by our regulated businesses include a provision for the cost of
future activities to remove assets that are expected to be incurred at the time of retirement.

(9) Includes $8 million and $15 million reported in other current liabilities in 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

At December 31, 2005, approximately $471 million of our regu-
latory assets represented past expenditures on which we do not
earn a return. These expenditures consist primarily of unrecovered
gas costs, RTO start-up costs and administration fees, customer
bad debts and a portion of deferred fuel costs. Unrecovered gas
costs, the ongoing portion of bad debts and deferred fuel are recov-
ered within two years. The previously deferred bad debts will be
recovered over a 3-year period.

Note 15. Asset Retirement Obligations
Our AROs are primarily associated with the decommissioning of our
nuclear generation facilities and dismantlement and removal of gas
and oil wells and platforms. However, in 2005 we recognized addi-
tional AROs due to the adoption of FIN 47, which clarified when
sufficient information is available to reasonably estimate the fair
value of conditional AROs. These additional AROs totaled $161 mil-
lion and relate to interim retirements of natural gas gathering,
transmission, distribution and storage pipeline components; the
retirement of certain nonutility off-shore natural gas pipelines; and
the future abatement of asbestos in our generation facilities. These
obligations result from certain safety and environmental activities
we are required to perform when any pipeline is abandoned or
asbestos is disturbed.

We also have AROs related to the retirement of the approxi-
mately 2,300 gas storage wells in our underground natural gas
storage network, certain electric transmission and distribution
assets located on property that we do not own, hydroelectric gener-
ation facilities and LNG processing and storage facilities. We cur-
rently do not have sufficient information to estimate a reasonable
range of expected retirement dates for any of these assets. Thus,
AROs for these assets will not be reflected in our Consolidated
Financial Statements until sufficient information becomes available
to determine a reasonable estimate of the fair value of the activities
to be performed. Generally, this will occur when the expected retire-
ment or abandonment dates are determined by our operational
planning. The changes to our AROs during 2005 were as follows:

Amount

(millions)

Asset retirement obligations at December 31, 2004(1) $1,707
Obligations incurred during the period(2) 337
Obligations settled during the period (15)
Accretion expense 102
Revisions in estimated cash flows (29)
Obligations recognized upon adoption of FIN 47 161
Other (8)

Asset retirement obligations at December 31, 2005(1) $2,255

(1) Includes $2 million and $6 million reported in other current liabilities in 2004 and 2005,
respectively.

(2) Approximately $309 million of the obligations incurred relate to the acquisition of Kewaunee.

We have established trusts dedicated to funding the future
decommissioning of our nuclear plants. At December 31, 2005
and 2004 the aggregate fair value of these trusts, consisting
primarily of debt and equity securities, totaled $2.5 billion and
$2.0 billion, respectively.
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Note 16. Variable Interest Entities
FIN 46R addresses the consolidation of VIEs. An entity is consid-
ered a VIE under FIN 46R if it does not have sufficient equity to
finance its activities without assistance from variable interest hold-
ers or if its equity investors lack any of the following characteristics
of a controlling financial interest:
• control through voting rights,
• the obligation to absorb expected losses, or
• the right to receive expected residual returns.

FIN 46R requires the primary beneficiary of a VIE to consolidate
the VIE and to disclose certain information about its significant vari-
able interests in the VIE. The primary beneficiary of a VIE is the
entity that receives the majority of a VIE’s expected losses,
expected residual returns, or both.

Certain variable pricing terms in some of our long-term power
and capacity contracts cause them to be considered potential vari-
able interests in the counterparties. Six potential VIEs, with which
we have existing power purchase agreements (signed prior to
December 31, 2003), have not provided sufficient information for
us to perform our FIN 46R evaluation.

We have since determined that our interest in two of the poten-
tial VIEs is not significant. In addition, in May 2005, we paid $215
million to divest our interest in a long-term power tolling contract
with a 551 megawatt combined cycle facility located in Batesville,
Mississippi, which was considered to be a potential VIE. We
decided to divest our interest in the long-term power tolling con-
tract in connection with our reconsideration of the scope of certain
trading activities, including those conducted on behalf of our busi-
ness segments, and our ongoing strategy to focus on business
activities within the energy intensive Northeast, Mid-Atlantic and
Midwest regions of the United States.

As of December 31, 2005, no further information has been
received from the three remaining potential VIEs. We will continue
our efforts to obtain information and will complete an evaluation of
our relationship with each of these potential VIEs if sufficient infor-
mation is ultimately obtained. We have remaining purchase commit-
ments with these three potential VIE supplier entities of $2.0 billion
at December 31, 2005. We paid $196 million, $199 million and
$199 million for electric generation capacity and $243 million,
$149 million and $134 million for electric energy to these entities for
the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

In October 2005, we reached an agreement in principle to
restructure three long-term power purchase contracts with two
potential variable interest entities. The restructured contracts expire
between 2015 and 2017 and are expected to reduce capacity and
energy payments by approximately $44 million and $6 million,
respectively, over the remaining term of the contracts. The transac-
tion became effective in February 2006 and did not result in a cash
outlay or charge to earnings. Total debt held by the entities is
approximately $320 million. After completing our FIN 46R analysis,
we concluded that although our interest in the contracts, as a result
of their pricing terms, represent variable interests in these potential
variable interest entities, we are not the primary beneficiary.

During 2005, we entered into four long-term contracts with unre-
lated limited liability corporations (LLCs) to purchase synthetic fuel
produced from coal. Certain variable pricing terms in the contracts
protect the equity holders from variability in the cost of their coal
purchases, and therefore, the LLCs were determined to be VIEs.
After completing our FIN 46R analysis, we concluded that although
our interests in the contracts, as a result of their pricing terms, rep-
resent variable interests in the LLCs, we are not the primary benefi-
ciary. We paid $205 million to the LLCs for coal and synthetic fuel
produced from coal in 2005. We are not subject to any risk of loss
from the contractual arrangements, as our only obligation to the
VIEs is to purchase the synthetic fuel that the VIEs produce
according to the terms of the applicable purchase contracts.

In accordance with FIN 46R, we consolidate certain variable
interest lessor entities through which we have financed and leased
several power generation projects. Our Consolidated Balance Sheets
as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 reflect net property, plant
and equipment of $943 million and $963 million, respectively
and $1.1 billion of debt related to these entities. The debt is
nonrecourse to us and is secured by the entities’ property, plant
and equipment.
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Note 17. Short-Term Debt and Credit Agreements

Joint Credit Facility
We use short-term debt, primarily commercial paper, to fund work-
ing capital requirements, as a bridge to long-term debt financing
and as bridge financing for acquisitions, if applicable. The level of
our borrowings may vary significantly during the course of the year,
depending upon the timing and amount of cash requirements not
satisfied by cash from operations. In addition, we utilize cash and
letters of credit to fund collateral requirements under our commodi-
ties hedging program. Collateral requirements are impacted by
commodity prices, hedging levels and the credit quality of our com-
panies and their counterparties. In May 2005, we entered into a
$2.5 billion five-year revolving credit facility that replaced our
$1.5 billion three-year facility dated May 2004 and our $750 mil-
lion three-year facility dated May 2002. This credit facility can also
be used to support up to $1.25 billion of letters of credit. In Febru-
ary 2006, this facility was replaced by a $3.0 billion five-year credit
facility that terminates in February 2011.

At December 31, 2005, total outstanding commercial paper
supported by the joint credit facility was $1.6 billion, with a
weighted average interest rate of 4.47%. At December 31, 2004,
total outstanding commercial paper supported by previous credit
agreements was $573 million, with a weighted average interest
rate of 2.39%.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, total outstanding letters of
credit supported by joint credit facilities were $892 million and
$183 million, respectively.

In January 2006, Virginia issued $450 million of 5.4% senior
notes that mature in 2016 and $550 million of 6.0% senior notes
that mature in 2036. Virginia Power used the proceeds from the
issuance to repay short-term debt.

CNG Credit Facilities
In August 2005, CNG entered into a $1.75 billion five-year revolving
credit facility that replaced its $1.5 billion three-year facility dated
August 2004. The credit facility supports CNG’s issuance of com-
mercial paper and letters of credit to provide collateral required by
counterparties on derivative financial contracts used by CNG in its
risk management strategies for its gas and oil production. In Febru-
ary 2006, the facility limit was reduced to $1.70 billion. At Decem-
ber 31, 2005 and 2004, outstanding letters of credit under the
facilities totaled $1.2 billion and $555 million, respectively.

We have also entered into several bilateral credit facilities in
addition to the facilities previously discussed in order to provide col-
lateral required on derivative contracts used in our risk manage-
ment strategies for merchant generation and gas and oil production
operations, respectively. Collateral requirements have increased
significantly in 2005 as a result of escalating commodity prices. At
December 31, 2005, we had the following letter of credit facilities:
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Outstanding Facility Facility Facility
Facility Letters of Capacity Inception Maturity

Company Limit Credit Remaining Date Date

(millions)

$ 100 $ 100 $ — June 2004 June 2007
100 100 — August 2004 August 2009
550 550 — October 2004 April 2006

1,900 625 1,275 August 2005 February 2006
200 — 200 December 2005 December 2010
150 150 — September 2005 March 2006
200 200 — August 2005 February 2006
290 290 — October 2005 April 2006

$3,490 $2,015 $1,475

(1) In February 2006, the facility limit was reduced to $150 million.
(2) In February 2006, CNG replaced this facility with a $1.05 billion 364-day credit facility.
(3) This facility can also be used to support commercial paper borrowings.
(4) In February 2006, the facility limit was reduced to $215 million.

CNG
CNG
CNG(1)

CNG(2)

CNG(3)

Dominion Resources, Inc.
Dominion Resources, Inc.
Dominion Resources, Inc.(4)
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Note 18. Long-Term Debt

2005
Weighted

Average
At December 31, Coupon(1) 2005 2004

(millions, except percentages)

Dominion Resources, Inc.:
Unsecured Senior and Medium-Term Notes:

2.25% to 8.125%, due 2005 to 2010 5.13% $ 3,212 $ 3,002
5.0% to 7.82%, due 2012 to 2035(2) 5.82% 3,880 2,880

Unsecured Equity-Linked Senior Notes, 5.75%, due 2008 330 330
Unsecured Convertible Senior Notes, 2.125%, due 2023(3) 220 220
Unsecured Junior Subordinated Notes Payable to Affiliated Trusts, 7.83% to 8.4%, due 2027 to 2041 8.22% 825 825

Consolidated Natural Gas Company:
Unsecured Debentures and Senior Notes:

5.375% to 7.375%, due 2005 to 2010 5.96% 1,050 1,200
5.0% to 6.875%, due 2011 to 2027(2) 6.19% 2,150 2,150

Secured Bank Debt, Variable Rate, due 2006(4) 3.87% 234 234
Unsecured Junior Subordinated Notes Payable to Affiliated Trust, 7.8%, due 2041 206 206

Virginia Electric and Power Company:
Secured First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds:(5)

7.625%, due 2007 215 215
7.0% to 8.625%, due 2024 to 2025 — 512

Secured Bank Debt, Variable Rate, due 2007(4) 3.76% 370 370
Unsecured Senior and Medium-Term Notes:

4.50% to 5.75%, due 2006 to 2010 5.42% 1,600 1,600
4.75% to 8.625%, due 2013 to 2032 5.51% 762 706

225 225

2.62% 60 60
2.61% 137 137
5.54% 237 242
5.02% 263 263

Unsecured Junior Subordinated Notes Payable to Affiliated Trust, 7.375%, due 2042 412 412
Dominion Energy, Inc.:

Unsecured Medium-Term Notes, 4.92% to 6.1%, due 2005 to 2009(8) — 453
Secured Senior Note, 7.33%, due 2020 222 231
Secured Bank Debt, Variable Rates, due 2006(4) 3.87% 347 347

Dominion Capital, Inc.:
Notes, 12.5%, due 2006 to 2008 6 6

Dominion Resources Services, Inc., Secured Bank Debt, Variable Rate, due 2006(4) 4.20% 107 107

17,070 16,933

Fair value hedge valuation(9) (52) 11
Amounts due within one year 4.69% (2,330) (1,368)
Unamortized discount and premium, net (35) (69)

Total long-term debt $14,653 $15,507

(1) Represents weighted-average coupon rates for debt outstanding as of December 31, 2005.
(2) At the option of holders in October 2006 and August 2015, $150 million of CNG’s 6.875% senior notes due 2026 and $510 million of Dominion’s 5.25% senior notes due 2033, respectively, are subject to

redemption at 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest. In the event of an early redemption, we have the intent and ability to refinance CNG’s 6.875% senior notes under our long-term credit
facilities. Accordingly, CNG’s 6.875% senior notes remain classified as long-term debt on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

(3) Convertible into a combination of cash and shares of our common stock at any time after March 31, 2004 when the average closing price of our common stock reaches $88.32 per share for a specified
period. At the option of holders on December 15, 2006, December 15, 2008, December 15, 2013, or December 15, 2018, these securities are subject to redemption at 100% of the principal amount plus
accrued interest. In the event of an early redemption, we have the intent and ability to refinance this security under our long-term credit facilities. Accordingly, this security remains classified as long-
term debt on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

(4) Represents debt associated with certain special purpose lessor entities that are consolidated in accordance with FIN 46R. The debt is nonrecourse to us and is secured by the entities’ property, plant
and equipment, which totaled $943 million and $963 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

(5) Substantially all of Virginia Power’s property ($12.3 billion at December 31, 2005) is subject to the lien of the mortgage, securing its mortgage bonds. Due to the early redemption of $512 million of First
and Refunding Mortgage Bonds in 2005, we incurred $25 million of prepayment penalties and related charges that were recognized in interest expense on our Consolidated Statement of Income.

(6) On December 15, 2008, $225 million of the 4.10% Callable and Puttable Enhanced SecuritiesSM due 2038 are subject to redemption at par plus accrued interest, unless holders of related options
exercise rights to purchase and remarket the notes.

(7) Certain pollution control equipment at Virginia Power’s generating facilities has been pledged to support these financings. The variable rate tax-exempt financings are supported by a stand-alone $200
million three-year credit facility that terminates in May 2006. In February 2006 this facility was replaced with a five-year credit facility that terminates in February 2011.

(8) Aggregate principal amount of CAD$545 million of securities denominated in Canadian dollars and presented in US dollars, based on exchange rates as of year-end.
(9) Represents changes in fair value of certain fixed-rate long-term debt associated with fair value hedging relationships.

. .
Unsecured Callable and Puttable Enhanced SecuritiesSM, 4.10%, due 2038(6)

Tax-Exempt Financings:(7)

Variable Rate, due 2008
Variable Rates, due 2015 to 2027
4.95% to 9.62%, due 2005 to 2010
2.30% to 7.55%, due 2014 to 2031
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Based on stated maturity dates rather than early redemption dates that could be elected by instrument holders, the scheduled principal
payments of long-term debt at December 31, 2005 were as follows:

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter Total

(millions, except percentages)

Secured First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds — $ 215 — — — — $ 215
Secured Senior Notes $ 9 9 $ 10 $ 11 $ 12 $ 171 222
Unsecured Callable and Puttable Enhanced SecuritiesSM — — — — — 225 225
Tax-Exempt Financings 5 20 157 115 5 396 698
Secured Bank Debt 688 370 — — — — 1,058
Unsecured Junior Subordinated Notes Payable to Affiliated Trusts — — — — — 1,443 1,443
Unsecured Senior Notes (including Medium-Term Notes) 1,626 1,863 1,013 313 1,444 6,944 13,203
Other 2 — 4 — — — 6

Total $2,330 $2,477 $1,184 $439 $1,461 $9,179 $17,070

Weighted average coupon 4.69% 5.05% 5.18% 5.38% 6.56% 6.02%

Our short-term credit facilities and long-term debt agreements
contain customary covenants and default provisions. As of
December 31, 2005, there were no events of default under
these covenants.

Convertible Securities
As described in Note 3, we entered into an exchange transaction
with respect to $219 million of our outstanding contingent convert-
ible senior notes in contemplation of the transition method provided
by EITF 04-8. We exchanged the outstanding notes for new notes
with a conversion feature that requires that the principal amount of
each note be repaid in cash. The notes are valued at a conversion
rate of 13.5865 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal
amount of senior notes, which represents a conversion price of
$73.60. Amounts payable in excess of the principal amount will be
paid in common stock. The conversion rate is subject to adjustment
upon certain events such as subdivisions, splits, combinations of
common stock or the issuance to all common stock holders of
certain common stock rights, warrants or options and certain
dividend increases.

The new notes outstanding on December 31, 2004 were
included in the diluted EPS calculation retroactive to the date of
their issuance using the method described in EITF 04-8. Under this
method, the number of shares included in the denominator of the
diluted EPS calculation is calculated as the net shares issuable for
the reporting period based upon the average market price for the
period. This did not result in an increase to the average shares out-
standing used in the calculation of our diluted EPS since the con-
version price of $73.60 included in the notes was greater than the
average market price of the shares.

The senior notes are convertible by holders into a combina-
tion of cash and shares of our common stock under any of the
following circumstances:
(1) the price of our common stock reaches $88.32 per share for a

specified period;
(2) the senior notes are called for redemption by us on or after

December 20, 2006;
(3) the occurrence of specified corporate transactions; or

Since none of the conditions have been met, the senior notes
are not yet subject to conversion. In 2007, we will also begin to pay
contingent interest if the average trading price as defined in the
indenture equals or exceeds 120% of the principal amount of the
senior notes. Holders have the right to require us to purchase our
senior notes for cash at 100% of the principal amount plus accrued
interest in December 2006, 2008, 2013 or 2018, or if we undergo
certain fundamental changes.

Equity-Linked Securities
In 2002 and 2000, we issued equity-linked debt securities, con-
sisting of stock purchase contracts and senior notes. The stock pur-
chase contracts obligate the holders to purchase shares of our
common stock from us by a settlement date, two years prior to the
senior notes’ maturity date. The purchase price is $50 and the
number of shares to be purchased will be determined under a for-
mula based upon the average closing price of our common stock
near the settlement date. The senior notes, or treasury securities in
some instances, are pledged as collateral to secure the purchase of
common stock under the related stock purchase contracts. The
holders may satisfy their obligations under the stock purchase con-
tracts by allowing the senior notes to be remarketed with the pro-
ceeds being paid to us as consideration for the purchase of stock.
Alternatively, holders may choose to continue holding the senior
notes and use other resources as consideration for the purchase of
stock under the stock purchase contracts.

We make quarterly interest payments on the senior notes and
quarterly payments on the stock purchase contracts at the rates
presented in the following table. We have recorded the present value
of the stock purchase contract payments as a liability, offset by a
charge to common stock in shareholders’ equity. Interest payments
on the senior notes are recorded as interest expense and stock pur-
chase contract payments are charged against the liability. Accretion
of the stock purchase contract liability is recorded as interest
expense. In calculating diluted EPS, we apply the treasury stock
method to the equity-linked debt securities. These securities did not
have a significant effect on diluted EPS for 2005, 2004 or 2003.

Under the terms of the stock purchase contracts, we issued
6.7 million shares of our common stock in November 2004 and will
issue between 4.1 million and 5.5 million shares of our common
stock in May 2006. Sufficient shares of our common stock have
been reserved for issuance in connection with the May 2006 stock
purchase contracts.

(4) the credit rating assigned to the senior notes by Moody’s
Investors Service is below Baa3 and by Standard & Poor’s Rat-
ing Group, a division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., is
below BBB- or the ratings are discontinued for any reason.
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Junior Subordinated Notes Payable to Affiliated Trusts
From 1997 through 2002, we established five subsidiary capital
trusts, each as a finance subsidiary of the respective parent com-
pany, which holds 100% of the voting interests. The capital trusts
sold trust preferred securities representing preferred beneficial
interests and 97% beneficial ownership in the assets held by the
capital trusts. In exchange for the funds realized from the sale of
the trust preferred securities and common securities that represent
the remaining 3% beneficial ownership interest in the assets held
by the capital trusts, we issued various junior subordinated notes.
The junior subordinated notes constitute 100% of each capital
trust’s assets. Each trust must redeem its trust preferred securities

when their respective junior subordinated notes are repaid at matu-
rity or if redeemed prior to maturity.

Under previous accounting guidance, we consolidated the trusts
in the preparation of our Consolidated Financial Statements. In
accordance with FIN 46R, we ceased to consolidate the trusts as of
December 31, 2003 and instead report as long-term debt on our
Consolidated Balance Sheet the junior subordinated notes issued
by us and held by the trusts.

The following table provides summary information about the
trust preferred securities and junior subordinated notes outstanding
as of December 31, 2005:
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Selected information about our equity-linked debt securities is presented below:

Senior Stock
Total Notes Purchase Stock

Total Long- Annual Contract Total Purchase Maturity
Date of Units Net term Interest Annual Equity Settlement of Senior
Issuance Issued Proceeds Debt Rate Rate Charge Date Notes

(millions, except percentages)

2000 8.3 $400.1 $412.5 3.66%(1) —%(2) $20.7 11/04 11/06
2002 6.6 $320.1 $330.0 5.75% 3.00% $36.3 5/06 5/08

(1) Prior to their remarketing in November 2004, the senior notes carried an annual interest rate of 8.05%.
(2) The stock purchase contracts carried an annual interest rate of 1.45% prior to their settlement in November 2004.

Trust
Preferred Common

Date Securities Securities
Established Capital Trusts Units Rate Amount Amount

(thousands) (millions)

December 1997 Dominion Resources Capital Trust I (1) 250 7.83% $250 $ 8
January 2001 Dominion Resources Capital Trust II (2) 12,000 8.4% 300 9
January 2001 Dominion Resources Capital Trust III (3) 250 8.4% 250 8
October 2001 Dominion CNG Capital Trust I (4) 8,000 7.8% 200 6
August 2002 Virginia Power Capital Trust II (5) 16,000 7.375% 400 12

Junior subordinated notes/debentures held as assets by each capital trust were as follows:
(1) $258 million—Dominion Resources, Inc. 7.83% Debentures due 12/1/2027.
(2) $309 million—Dominion Resources, Inc. 8.4% Debentures due 1/30/2041.
(3) $258 million—Dominion Resources, Inc. 8.4% Debentures due 1/15/2031.
(4) $206 million—CNG 7.8% Debentures due 10/31/2041.
(5) $412 million—Virginia Power 7.375% Debentures due 7/30/2042.

Distribution payments on the trust preferred securities are con-
sidered to be fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the respective
parent company that issued the debt instruments held by each
trust, when all of the related agreements are taken into considera-
tion. Each guarantee agreement only provides for the guarantee of
distribution payments on the relevant trust preferred securities to
the extent that the trust has funds legally and immediately available
to make distributions. The trust’s ability to pay amounts when they
are due on the trust preferred securities is solely dependent upon

the payment of amounts by Dominion, Virginia Power or CNG when
they are due on the junior subordinated debt instruments. If the
payment on the junior subordinated notes is deferred, the company
that issued them may not make distributions related to its capital
stock, including dividends, redemptions, repurchases, liquidation
payments or guarantee payments. Also, during the deferral period,
the company that issued them may not make any payments on or
redeem or repurchase any debt securities that are equal in right of
payment with, or subordinated to, the junior subordinated notes.



Note 19. Subsidiary Preferred Stock
Dominion is authorized to issue up to 20 million shares of
preferred stock. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, none were
issued and outstanding.

Virginia Power is authorized to issue up to 10 million shares of
preferred stock, $100 liquidation preference. At December 31,
2005 and 2004, Virginia Power had 2.59 million preferred shares
issued and outstanding. Upon involuntary liquidation, dissolution or
winding-up of Virginia Power, each share would be entitled to
receive $100 plus accrued dividends. Dividends are cumulative.

Holders of Virginia Power’s outstanding preferred stock are not
entitled to voting rights except under certain provisions of the
amended and restated articles of incorporation and related provi-
sions of Virginia law restricting corporate action, or upon default in
dividends, or in special statutory proceedings and as required by
Virginia law (such as mergers, consolidations, sales of assets, disso-
lution and changes in voting rights or priorities of preferred stock).

Presented below are the series of Virginia Power preferred stock
not subject to mandatory redemption that were outstanding as of
December 31, 2005:

Issued and
Outstanding Entitled Per Share

Dividend Shares Upon Liquidation

(thousands)

$5.00 107 $112.50
4.04 13 102.27
4.20 15 102.50
4.12 32 103.73
4.80 73 101.00
7.05 500 102.82(1)

6.98 600 102.80(2)

Flex MMP 12/02, Series A 1,250 100.00(3)

Total 2,590

(1) Through 7/31/06; $102.47 commencing 8/1/06; amounts decline in steps thereafter to
$100.00 by 8/1/13.

(2) Through 8/31/06; $102.45 commencing 9/1/06; amounts decline in steps thereafter to
$100.00 by 9/1/13.

(3) Dividend rate is 5.50% through 12/20/07; after which the rate will be determined according
to periodic auctions for periods established by Virginia Power at the time of the auction
process. This series is not callable prior to 12/20/07.

Note 20. Shareholders’ Equity

Issuance of Common Stock
In 2005, we received proceeds of $345 million for 5.8 million
shares issued through Dominion Direct® (a dividend reinvestment
and open enrollment direct stock purchase plan), employee savings
plans and the exercise of employee stock options. In February
2005, Dominion Direct® and the Dominion employee savings plans
began purchasing our common stock on the open market with the
proceeds received through these programs, rather than having
additional new common shares issued.

Repurchases of Common Stock
In February 2005, we were authorized by our Board of Directors to
repurchase up to the lesser of 25 million shares, or $2.0 billion of
our outstanding common stock. As of December 31, 2005, we had
repurchased approximately 3.7 million shares for approximately
$276 million.

Forward Equity Transaction
In September 2004, we entered into a forward equity sale agree-
ment (forward agreement) with Merrill Lynch International (MLI), as
forward purchaser, relating to 10 million shares of our common
stock. The forward agreement provided for the sale of two tranches
of our common stock, each with stated maturity dates and settle-
ment prices. In connection with the forward agreement, MLI
borrowed an equal number of shares of our common stock from
stock lenders and, at our request, sold the borrowed shares to
J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. (JPM) under a purchase agreement
among Dominion, MLI and JPM. JPM subsequently offered the
borrowed shares to the public. We accounted for the forward
agreement as equity at its initial fair value but did not receive
any proceeds from the sale of the borrowed shares.

The use of a forward agreement allowed us to avoid equity
market uncertainty by pricing a stock offering under then existing
market conditions, while mitigating share dilution by postponing
the issuance of stock until funds were needed. Except in specified
circumstances or events that would have required physical share
settlement, we were able to elect to settle the forward agreement
by means of a physical share, cash or net share settlement and
were also able to elect to settle the agreement in whole, or in part,
earlier than the stated maturity date at fixed settlement prices.
Under either a physical share or net share settlement, the maxi-
mum number of shares that were deliverable under the terms of
the forward agreement was limited to the 10 million shares speci-
fied in the two tranches. Assuming gross share settlement of all
shares under the forward agreement, we would have received
aggregate proceeds of approximately $644 million, based on matu-
rity forward prices of $64.62 per share for the 2 million shares
included in the first tranche and $64.34 per share for the 8 million
shares included in the second tranche.

We elected to cash settle the first tranche in December 2004
and paid MLI $5.8 million, representing the difference between our
share price and the applicable forward sale price, multiplied by the
2 million shares. Additionally, we elected to cash settle 3 million
shares of the second tranche in February 2005 and paid MLI
$17.4 million. We recorded the settlement payments as a reduction
to common stock in our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

In April 2005, we entered into an agreement with MLI that
extended the settlement date for the remaining 5 million shares of
the second tranche to August 2005. In August 2005, we delivered
5 million newly issued shares of our common stock to MLI, and
received proceeds of $319.7 million as final settlement of the
forward agreement.

Shares Reserved for Issuance
At December 31, 2005, we had a total of 37 million shares
reserved and available for issuance for the following: Dominion
Direct®, employee stock awards, employee savings plans, director
stock compensation plans, and stock purchase contracts associ-
ated with equity-linked debt securities.
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Presented in the table below is a summary of AOCI by component:

At December 31, 2005 2004

(millions)

Net unrealized losses on derivatives—hedging activities $(2,777) $(1,181)
Net unrealized gains on investment securities 165 149
Minimum pension liability adjustment (10) (14)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 58 50

Total accumulated other comprehensive loss $(2,564) $ (996)

Stock-Based Awards
In April 2005, shareholders approved the 2005 Incentive Compen-
sation Plan (2005 Incentive Plan) for employees and the Non-
Employee Directors Compensation Plan (Non-Employee Directors
Plan). Both plans permit stock-based awards that include restricted
stock, goal-based stock, stock options and stock appreciation
rights under the 2005 Incentive Plan and restricted stock and stock
options under the Non-Employee Directors Plan. Under provisions
of both plans, employees and non-employee directors may be
granted options to purchase common stock at a price not less than
its fair market value at the date of grant with a maximum term of
eight years. Option terms would be set at the discretion of either
the Organization, Compensation and Nominating Committee of the
Board of Directors or the Board of Directors itself, as provided
under each individual plan. At December 31, 2005, approximately
15.3 million shares were available for future grants under these

plans. Prior to April 2005, we had an incentive compensation plan
that provided stock options and restricted stock awards to direc-
tors, executives and other key employees with vesting periods from
one to five years. Stock options generally had contractual terms
from six and one half to ten years.

The following table provides a summary of changes in amounts
of stock options outstanding as of and for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003. No options were granted under any
plan in 2005, 2004 or 2003.

Weighted-
Stock Average

Options Exercise Price

(thousands)

Outstanding at December 31, 2002 21,057 $55.49

Exercisable at December 31, 2002 8,586 $47.95

Exercised, cancelled and forfeited (2,513) $44.39

Outstanding at December 31, 2003 18,544 $56.97

Exercisable at December 31, 2003 11,604 $54.44

Exercised, cancelled and forfeited (4,736) $47.67

Outstanding at December 31, 2004 13,808 $60.17

Exercisable at December 31, 2004 10,768 $60.01

Exercised, cancelled and forfeited (5,594) $59.79

Outstanding at December 31, 2005 8,214 $60.43

Exercisable at December 31, 2005 8,214 $60.43
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The following table provides certain information about stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2005:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-

Remaining Average Average
Exercise Shares Contractual Exercise Shares Exercise
Price Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price

(thousands) (years) (thousands)

$ 0–$19.99 1 3.0 $19.10 1 $19.10
$20–$30.99 17 3.1 $24.62 17 $24.62
$31–$40.99 30 4.0 $39.25 30 $39.25
$41–$50.99 770 4.9 $46.20 770 $46.20
$51–$60.99 4,483 3.4 $59.93 4,483 $59.93
$61–$69 2,913 5.3 $65.38 2,913 $65.38

Total 8,214 4.2 $60.43 8,214 $60.43

During 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, we granted approximately 249,000 shares, 582,000 shares, and 402,000 shares of
restricted stock with weighted-average fair values of $74.51, $63.29 and $56.08.



Note 21. Dividend Restrictions
The Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 (1935 Act) and
related regulations issued by the SEC impose restrictions on the
transfer and receipt of funds by a registered holding company from
its subsidiaries, including a general prohibition against loans or
advances being made by the subsidiaries to benefit the registered
holding company. Under the 1935 Act, registered holding compa-
nies and their subsidiaries may pay dividends only from retained
earnings, unless the SEC specifically authorizes payments from
other capital accounts. We received dividends from our subsidiaries
of $1.2 billion, $1.2 billion and $1.1 billion in 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

At December 31, 2005, our consolidated subsidiaries had
approximately $10.5 billion in capital accounts other than retained
earnings, representing capital stock, other paid-in capital and AOCI.
Dominion Resources, Inc. had approximately $8.8 billion in capital
accounts other than retained earnings at December 31, 2005.
Generally, such amounts are not available for the payment of
dividends by affected subsidiaries, or by Dominion itself, without
specific authorization by the SEC.

In response to a Dominion request, the SEC granted relief in
2000; authorizing payment of dividends by CNG from other capital
accounts to Dominion in amounts of up to $1.6 billion, representing
CNG’s retained earnings prior to our acquisition of CNG. The SEC
granted further relief in 2004, authorizing our nonutility subsidiaries
to pay dividends out of capital or unearned surplus in situations
where such subsidiary has received excess cash from an asset
sale, engaged in a restructuring, or is returning capital to an associ-
ate company. Our ability to pay dividends on our common stock at
declared rates was not impacted by the restrictions previously dis-
cussed during 2005, 2004 and 2003. We are not bound by the
foregoing restrictions on dividends imposed by the 1935 Act as of
February 8, 2006, the effective date on which the 1935 Act was
repealed under the Energy Policy Act of 2005.

The Virginia State Corporation Commission (Virginia Commis-
sion) may prohibit any public service company, including Virginia
Power, from declaring or paying a dividend to an affiliate, if found
not to be in the public interest. At December 31, 2005, the
Virginia Commission had not restricted the payment of dividends
by Virginia Power.

Certain agreements associated with our credit facilities contain
restrictions on the ratio of our debt to total capitalization. These
limitations did not restrict our ability to pay dividends or receive
dividends from our subsidiaries at December 31, 2005.

See Note 18 for a description of potential restrictions on dividend
payments by us and certain of our subsidiaries in connection with
the deferral of distribution payments on trust preferred securities.

Note 22. Employee Benefit Plans
We provide certain benefits to eligible active employees, retirees
and qualifying dependents. Under the terms of our benefit plans,
we reserve the right to change, modify or terminate the plans. From
time to time in the past, benefits have changed, and some of these
changes have reduced benefits.

We maintain qualified noncontributory defined benefit pension
plans covering virtually all employees. Retirement benefits are
based primarily on years of service, age and compensation. Our
funding policy is to generally contribute annually an amount that is
in accordance with the provisions of the Employment Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974. The pension program also provides
benefits to certain retired executives under company-sponsored
nonqualified employee benefit plans. Certain of these nonqualified
plans are funded through contributions to a grantor trust.

We provide retiree health care and life insurance benefits with
annual employee premiums based on several factors such as age,
retirement date and years of service. In 2004, we amended our
non-union retiree health care and life insurance plans. In connec-
tion with the amendment, eligible employees under age fifty-five
share more of the costs of benefits with us, and certain retiree
medical benefits were enhanced. We re-measured our accumu-
lated postretirement benefit obligation (APBO) during the third
quarter of 2004 and as a result reduced the liability by $59 million.
The impact of re-measurement on our 2004 postretirement net
periodic benefits cost was not material. We will amortize the unrec-
ognized actuarial gains associated with the plan amendment over
the average remaining service period of plan participants in accor-
dance with SFAS No. 106, Employers’ Accounting for Postretire-
ment Benefits Other Than Pensions.

On December 8, 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the Medicare Act)
was signed into law. The Medicare Act introduces a prescription
drug benefit under Medicare (Medicare Part D) as well as a federal
subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit plans that provide
a benefit that is at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D.
Based on an analysis performed by a third-party actuary, we have
determined that the prescription drug benefit offered under our
other postretirement benefit plans is at least actuarially equivalent
to Medicare Part D and therefore we expect to receive the federal
subsidy offered under the Medicare Act. We expect to receive sub-
sidies of approximately $4 million, $5 million, $5 million, $6 million
and $7 million for the years 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010
respectively, and expect to receive approximately $50 million during
the period 2011 through 2015. We considered the passage of the
Medicare Act a significant event requiring remeasurement of our
APBO on December 8, 2003. We will amortize the unrecognized
actuarial gains associated with the benefits of the subsidy over the
average remaining service period of plan participants in accordance
with SFAS No. 106.

We use December 31 as the measurement date for virtually all
of our employee benefit plans. We use the market-related value of
pension plan assets to determine the expected return on pension
plan assets, a component of net periodic pension cost. The market-
related value recognizes changes in fair value on a straight-line
basis over a four-year period. Changes in fair value are measured
as the difference between the expected and actual plan asset
returns, including dividends, interest and realized and unrealized
investment gains and losses.
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The following table summarizes the changes in our pension and other postretirement benefit plan obligations and plan assets and includes
a statement of the plans’ funded status:

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2005 2004

(millions)

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $3,410 $3,110 $1,381 $1,351
Acquisitions 15 — 44 —
Service cost 110 97 64 63
Interest cost 201 190 83 83
Benefits paid (142) (143) (67) (68)
Actuarial loss during the year 231 143 143 11
Plan amendments 9 13 (26) (59)

Benefit obligation at end of year 3,834 3,410 1,622 1,381

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 4,049 3,734 697 587
Acquisitions 15 — 10 —
Actual return on plan assets 433 453 51 60
Contributions 5 5 72 85
Benefits paid from plan assets (142) (143) (36) (35)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 4,360 4,049 794 697

Funded status 526 639 (828) (684)

Unrecognized net actuarial loss 1,288 1,225 491 366
Unrecognized prior service cost (credit) 34 28 (32) (7)
Unrecognized net transition obligation — — 23 27

Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost $1,848 $1,892 $ (346) $ (298)

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31:
Prepaid pension cost $1,915 $1,947 — —
Accrued benefit liability (115) (94) $ (346) $ (298)
Intangible asset 31 15 — —
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 17 24 — —

Net amount recognized $1,848 $1,892 $ (346) $ (298)

The accumulated benefit obligation for all of our defined benefit
pension plans was $3.3 billion and $3.0 billion at December 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively. Under our funding policies, we evalu-
ate plan funding requirements annually, usually in the fourth quar-
ter after receiving updated plan information from our actuary.
Based on the funded status of each plan and other factors, we
determine the amount of contributions for the current year, if any,
at that time.

Included above are nonqualified and supplemental pension
plans that do not have “plan assets” as defined by generally
accepted accounting principles. The total projected benefit obliga-
tion for these plans was $134 million and $112 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The total accumulated
benefit obligation for these plans was $118 million and $97 million
at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Because the accu-
mulated benefit obligation relating to these plans is in excess of the
fair value of plan assets, we recognized an additional minimum
liability of $48 million and $39 million at December 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future
service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

Other
Pension Postretirement

Benefits Benefits

(millions)

2006 $ 188 $ 74
2007 161 80
2008 161 86
2009 167 91
2010 196 97
2011–2015 1,176 580
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Our overall objective for investing our pension and other post-
retirement plan assets is to achieve the best possible long-term
rates of return commensurate with prudent levels of risk. To mini-
mize risk, funds are broadly diversified among asset classes,
investment strategies and investment advisors. The strategic target
asset allocation for our pension fund is 45% U.S. equity securities;

Pension Plans Other Postretirement Plans

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2005 2004

Fair % of Fair % of Fair % of Fair % of
Value Total Value Total Value Total Value Total

(millions)

Equity securities:
U.S. $1,750 40 $1,761 44 $330 42 $308 44
International 607 14 522 13 90 11 74 11

Debt securities 990 23 947 23 289 36 250 36
Real estate 340 8 298 7 21 3 17 2
Other 673 15 521 13 64 8 48 7

Total $4,360 100 $4,049 100 $794 100 $697 100

The components of the provision for net periodic benefit cost were as follows:

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

(millions)

Service cost $ 110 $ 97 $ 86 $ 64 $ 63 $ 55
Interest cost 201 190 182 83 83 79
Expected return on plan assets (341) (336) (332) (51) (44) (33)
Amortization of prior service cost (credit) 3 2 2 (1) — —
Amortization of transition obligation (asset) — — (2) 3 7 9
Amortization of net loss 77 56 20 19 21 20

Net periodic benefit cost (credit) $ 50 $ 9 $ (44) $117 $130 $130

Significant assumptions used in determining the net periodic cost recognized in our Consolidated Statements of Income were as follows,
on a weighted-average basis:

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

Discount rate 6.00% 6.25% 6.75% 6.00% 6.25% 6.75%
Expected return on plan assets 8.75% 8.75% 8.75% 8.00% 7.79% 7.78%
Rate of increase for compensation 4.70% 4.70% 4.70% 4.70% 4.70% 4.70%
Medical cost trend rate(1) 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%

(1) Decreasing to 5.00% in 2009 and years thereafter.

Significant assumptions used in determining the projected pension benefit and postretirement benefit obligations recognized in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets were as follows, on a weighted-average basis:

Other Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits

At December 31, 2005 2004 2005 2004

Discount rate 5.60% 6.00% 5.50% 6.00%
Rate of increase for compensation 4.70% 4.70% 4.70% 4.70%

8% non-U.S. equity securities; 22% debt securities; and 25% other,
such as real estate and private equity investments. Financial deriv-
atives may be used to obtain or manage market exposures and to
hedge assets and liabilities. The asset allocations for our pension
plans and other postretirement plans follow:

We determine the expected long-term rates of return on plan
assets for pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans by
using a combination of:
• Historical return analysis to determine expected future

risk premiums;

• Forward-looking return expectations derived from the yield on
long-term bonds and the price earnings ratios of major stock
market indices;

• Expected inflation and risk-free interest rate assumptions; and
• The types of investments expected to be held by the plans.
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Assisted by an independent actuary, management develops
assumptions, which are then compared to the forecasts of other
independent investment advisors to ensure reasonableness.
An internal committee selects the final assumptions.

Discount rates are determined from analyses performed by a
third-party actuarial firm of AA/Aa rated bonds with cash flows
matching the expected payments to be made under our plans.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant
effect on the amounts reported for our retiree health care plans.
A one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost
trend rates would have had the following effects:

Other
Postretirement

Benefits

One One
Percentage Percentage

Point Point
Increase Decrease

(millions)

Effect on total service and interest cost components
for 2005 $ 26 $ (20)

Effect on postretirement benefit obligation at
December 31, 2005 $220 $(179)

In addition, we sponsor defined contribution thrift-type savings
plans. During 2005, 2004 and 2003, we recognized $33 million,
$29 million and $27 million, respectively, as contributions to
these plans.

Certain regulatory authorities have held that amounts recovered
in utility customers’ rates for other postretirement benefits, in
excess of benefits actually paid during the year, must be deposited
in trust funds dedicated for the sole purpose of paying such bene-
fits. Accordingly, certain of our subsidiaries fund postretirement
benefit costs through Voluntary Employees’ Beneficiary Associa-
tions. Our remaining subsidiaries do not prefund postretirement
benefit costs but instead pay claims as presented.

Note 23. Commitments and Contingencies
As the result of issues generated in the ordinary course of business,
we are involved in legal, tax and regulatory proceedings before vari-
ous courts, regulatory commissions and governmental agencies,
some of which involve substantial amounts of money. We believe
that the final disposition of these proceedings will not have a mate-
rial effect on our financial position, liquidity or results of operations.

Long-Term Purchase Agreements
At December 31, 2005, we had the following long-term commit-
ments that are noncancelable or are cancelable only under certain
conditions, and that third parties have used to secure financing
for the facilities that will provide the contracted goods or services:

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter Total

(millions)

Purchased electric
capacity(1) $441 $418 $387 $366 $352 $2,536 $4,500

Production handling
for gas and oil
production
operations(2) 54 51 36 22 14 13 190

(1) Commitments represent estimated amounts payable for capacity under power purchase
contracts with qualifying facilities and independent power producers, the last of which ends
in 2023. Capacity payments under the contracts are generally based on fixed dollar amounts
per month, subject to escalation using broad-based economic indices. At December 31, 2005,
the present value of our total commitment for capacity payments is $2.8 billion. Capacity
payments totaled $472 million, $570 million and $611 million, and energy payments totaled
$378 million, $293 million and $289 million for 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

(2) Payments under this contract, which ends in 2012, totaled $52 million, $22 million and $10
million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

In the first quarter of 2005, we paid $42 million in cash and
assumed $62 million of debt in connection with the termination of
a long-term power purchase agreement and the acquisition of the
related generating facility used by Panda-Rosemary LP, a nonutility
generator, to provide electricity to us. The purchase price was allo-
cated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair values as of the date of acquisition. In connection
with the termination of the agreement, we recorded an after-tax
charge of $47 million.

In the second quarter of 2005, we paid $215 million to divest our
interest in a long-term power tolling contract with a 551-megawatt
combined cycle facility located in Batesville, Mississippi. We
recorded after-tax charges of $8 million and $112 million in 2005
and 2004, respectively, related to the divestiture of the contract.

In October 2005, we reached an agreement in principle to
restructure three long-term power purchase contracts. The restruc-
tured contracts expire between 2015 and 2017 and are expected
to reduce capacity and energy payments by approximately $44 mil-
lion and $6 million, respectively, over the remaining term of the
contracts. The transaction became effective in February 2006 and
did not result in a cash outlay or charge to earnings.
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Lease Commitments
We lease various facilities, onshore and offshore drilling rigs,
vehicles and equipment primarily under operating leases. Payments
under certain leases are escalated based on an index such as the
consumer price index. Future minimum lease payments under non-
cancelable operating and capital leases that have initial or remain-
ing lease terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 2005 are
as follows:

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter Total

(millions)

$131 $142 $142 $132 $106 $345 $998

Rental expense totaled $160 million, $123 million and $105
million for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, the majority of
which is reflected in other operations and maintenance expense.

We have an agreement with a voting interest entity (lessor) to
lease the Fairless Energy power station in Pennsylvania (Fairless),
which began commercial operations in June 2004. During con-
struction, we acted as the construction agent for the lessor, con-
trolled the design and construction of the facility and have since
been reimbursed for all project costs ($898 million) advanced to
the lessor. We make annual lease payments of $53 million, that
are reflected in the lease commitments table. The lease expires in
2013 and at that time, we may renew the lease at negotiated
amounts based on original project costs and current market condi-
tions, subject to lessor approval; purchase Fairless at its original
construction cost; or sell Fairless, on behalf of the lessor, to an
independent third party. If Fairless is sold and the proceeds from
the sale are less than its original construction cost, we would be
required to make a payment to the lessor in an amount up to
70.75% of the original project costs adjusted for certain other costs
as specified in the lease. The lease agreement does not contain
any provisions that involve credit rating or stock price trigger events.

Environmental Matters
We are subject to costs resulting from a steadily increasing
number of federal, state and local laws and regulations designed
to protect human health and the environment. These laws and
regulations can result in increased capital, operating and other
costs as a result of compliance, remediation, containment and
monitoring obligations.

Historically, we recovered such costs arising from regulated elec-
tric operations through utility rates. However, to the extent environ-
mental costs are incurred in connection with operations regulated by
the Virginia Commission during the period ending December 31,
2010, in excess of the level currently included in Virginia jurisdic-
tional rates, our results of operations will decrease. After that date,
we may seek recovery through rates of only those environmental
costs related to our transmission and distribution operations.

Superfund Sites—From time to time, we may be identified as
a potentially responsible party (PRP) to a Superfund site. The EPA
(or a state) can either (a) allow such a party to conduct and pay for
a remedial investigation, feasibility study and remedial action or
(b) conduct the remedial investigation and action and then seek
reimbursement from the parties. Each party can be held jointly,
severally and strictly liable for all costs. These parties can also bring
contribution actions against each other and seek reimbursement
from their insurance companies. As a result, we may be responsible
for the costs of remedial investigation and actions under the Super-
fund Act or other laws or regulations regarding the remediation of

waste. We do not believe that any currently identified sites will
result in significant liabilities.

In 1987, we and a number of other entities were identified by
the EPA as PRPs at two Superfund sites located in Kentucky and
Pennsylvania. In 2003, the EPA issued its Certificate of Completion
of remediation for the Kentucky site. Future costs for the Kentucky
site will be limited to minor operations and maintenance expendi-
tures. Remediation design is complete for the Pennsylvania site,
and total remediation costs are expected to be in the range of
$13 million to $25 million. Based on allocation formulas and the
volume of waste shipped to the site, we have accrued a reserve of
$2 million to meet our obligations at these two sites. Based on a
financial assessment of the PRPs involved at these sites, we have
determined that it is probable that the PRPs will fully pay their share
of the costs. We generally seek to recover our costs associated with
environmental remediation from third-party insurers. At December
31, 2005, any pending or possible insurance claims were not
recognized as an asset or offset against obligations.

Other—Before being acquired by us in 2001, Louis Dreyfus Nat-
ural Gas Corp. (Louis Dreyfus) was one of numerous defendants in
a lawsuit consolidated and pending in the 93rd Judicial District
Court in Hidalgo County, Texas. The lawsuit alleges that gas wells
and related pipeline facilities operated by Louis Dreyfus and facili-
ties operated by other defendants caused an underground hydro-
carbon plume in McAllen, Texas. The plaintiffs claim that they have
suffered damages, including property damage and lost profits, as a
result of the alleged plume. Although the results of litigation are
inherently unpredictable, we do not expect the ultimate outcome
of the case to have a material adverse impact on our results of
operations, cash flows or financial position.

We have determined that we are associated with 21 former
manufactured gas plant sites. Studies conducted by other utilities
at their former manufactured gas plants have indicated that their
sites contain coal tar and other potentially harmful materials.
None of the 21 former sites with which we are associated is under
investigation by any state or federal environmental agency, and no
investigation or action is currently anticipated. One of the former
sites is conducting a state approved post closure groundwater
monitoring program and an environmental land use restriction has
been recorded. Regarding the other sites, it is not known to what
degree these sites may contain environmental contamination.
We are not able to estimate the cost, if any, that may be required
for the possible remediation of these other sites.

Nuclear Operations
Nuclear Decommissioning—Minimum Financial Assurance—
The Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) requires nuclear power
plant owners to annually update minimum financial assurance
amounts for the future decommissioning of their nuclear facilities.
Our 2005 NRC minimum financial assurance amount, aggregated
for our nuclear units, was $2.9 billion and has been satisfied by a
combination of the funds being collected and deposited in the trusts
and the real annual rate of return growth of the funds allowed by
the NRC. In June 2005, we gave notice to the NRC that we were
canceling our previous guarantee related to the nuclear units at
Virginia Power and two nuclear units at Millstone. These guarantees
were cancelled because, based on our calculations, the trusts
now contain sufficient funds to meet NRC requirements without
further assurances.
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Nuclear Insurance—The Price-Anderson Act provides the
public up to $10.8 billion of protection per nuclear incident via
obligations required of owners of nuclear power plants. The Price-
Anderson Act Amendment of 1988 allows for an inflationary provi-
sion adjustment every five years. We have purchased $300 million
of coverage from the commercial insurance pools with the remain-
der provided through a mandatory industry risk-sharing program.
With the acquisition of Kewaunee in July 2005, we have seven
licensed reactors. In the event of a nuclear incident at any licensed
nuclear reactor in the United States, we could be assessed up to
$100.6 million for each of our seven licensed reactors not to
exceed $15 million per year per reactor. There is no limit to the
number of incidents for which this retrospective premium can be
assessed. The Price-Anderson Act was first enacted in 1957 and
was renewed again in 2005.

We purchase insurance from NEIL to cover the cost of replace-
ment power during the prolonged outage of a nuclear unit due to
direct physical damage of the unit. Under this program, we are sub-
ject to a retrospective premium assessment for any policy year in
which losses exceed funds available to NEIL. The current policy
period’s maximum assessment is $35 million.

Old Dominion Electric Cooperative, a part owner of North Anna
Power Station, and Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric
Company and Central Vermont Public Service Corporation, part
owners of Millstone’s Unit 3, are responsible for their share of the
nuclear decommissioning obligation and insurance premiums on
applicable units, including any retrospective premium assessments
and any losses not covered by insurance.

Spent Nuclear Fuel—Under provisions of the Nuclear Waste
Policy Act of 1982, we have entered into contracts with the Depart-
ment of Energy (DOE) for the disposal of spent nuclear fuel. The
DOE failed to begin accepting the spent fuel on January 31, 1998,
the date provided by the Nuclear Waste Policy Act and by our con-
tracts with the DOE. In January 2004, we and certain of our direct
and indirect subsidiaries filed a lawsuit in the United States Court of
Federal Claims against the DOE in connection with its failure to
commence accepting spent nuclear fuel. We will continue to safely
manage our spent fuel until it is accepted by the DOE.

Guarantees, Surety Bonds and Letters of Credit
At December 31, 2005, we had issued $37 million of guarantees
to support third parties, equity method investees and employees
affected by Hurricane Katrina. In addition, in 2005, we, along with
two other gas and oil exploration and production companies,
entered into a four-year drilling contract related to a new, ultra-
deepwater drilling rig that is expected to be delivered in mid-2008.
The contract has a four-year primary term, plus four one-year
extension options. Our minimum commitment under the agree-
ment, which is reflected in the lease commitments table, is for
approximately $99 million over the four-year term; however, we are
jointly and severally liable for up to $394 million to the contractor if
the other parties fail to pay the contractor for their obligations
under the primary term of the agreement, which we view as highly
unlikely. We have not recognized any significant liabilities related to
any of these guarantee arrangements.

We also enter into guarantee arrangements on behalf of our
consolidated subsidiaries primarily to facilitate their commercial
transactions with third parties. To the extent that a liability subject
to a guarantee has been incurred by one of our consolidated sub-
sidiaries, that liability is included in our Consolidated Financial
Statements. We are not required to recognize liabilities for guaran-
tees issued on behalf of our subsidiaries unless it becomes proba-
ble that we will have to perform under the guarantees. No such
liabilities have been recognized as of December 31, 2005. We
believe it is unlikely that we would be required to perform or other-
wise incur any losses associated with guarantees of our sub-
sidiaries’ obligations. At December 31, 2005, we had issued the
following subsidiary guarantees:

Stated Limit Value(1)

(millions)

Subsidiary debt(2) $1,268 $1,268
Commodity transactions(3) 3,823 1,539
Lease obligation for power generation facility(4) 898 898
Nuclear obligations(5) 355 303
Offshore drilling commitments 300 300
Other 594 413

Total $7,238 $4,721

(1) Represents the estimated portion of the guarantee’s stated limit that is utilized as of
December 31, 2005 based upon prevailing economic conditions and fact patterns specific to
each guarantee arrangement. For those guarantees related to obligations that are recorded
as liabilities by our subsidiaries, the value includes the recorded amount.

(2) Guarantees of $1.1 billion of debt reflected on our December 31, 2005 balance sheet related to
variable interest lessor entities through which we have financed and leased several power
generation projects. In the event of default by the subsidiaries, we would be obligated to
repay such amounts.

(3) Guarantees related to energy marketing activities and other commodity commitments of
certain subsidiaries, including subsidiaries of CNG and DEI. These guarantees were provided
to counterparties in order to facilitate physical and financial transactions in gas, oil,
electricity, pipeline capacity, transportation and related commodities and services. If any of
these subsidiaries fail to perform or pay under the contracts and the counterparties seek
performance or payment, we would be obligated to satisfy such obligation. We and our
subsidiaries receive similar guarantees as collateral for credit extended to others. The value
provided includes certain guarantees that do not have stated limits.

(4) Guarantee of a DEI subsidiary’s leasing obligation for the Fairless Energy power station.
(5) Guarantees related to Virginia Power’s and certain DEI subsidiaries’ potential retrospective

premiums that could be assessed if there is a nuclear incident under our nuclear insurance
programs and includes guarantees for Virginia Power’s commitment to buy nuclear fuel. Also,
as part of satisfying certain NRC requirements concerned with ensuring adequate funding for
the operations of the Millstone Power Station, we have also agreed to provide up to $150
million to a DEI subsidiary, if requested by such subsidiary, to pay Millstone’s operating
expenses.
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Our current level of property insurance coverage ($2.55 billion
for North Anna, $2.55 billion for Surry, $2.75 billion for Millstone,
and $1.8 billion for Kewaunee) exceeds the NRC’s minimum
requirement for nuclear power plant licensees of $1.06 billion per
reactor site and includes coverage for premature decommissioning
and functional total loss. The NRC requires that the proceeds from
this insurance be used first to return the reactor to and maintain it
in a safe and stable condition and second to decontaminate the
reactor and station site in accordance with a plan approved by the
NRC. Our nuclear property insurance is provided by the Nuclear
Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL), a mutual insurance company, and
is subject to retrospective premium assessments in any policy ear
in which losses exceed the funds available to the insurance com-
pany. The maximum assessment for the current policy period is
$99 million. Based on the severity of the incident, the board of
directors of our nuclear insurer has the discretion to lower or elimi-
nate the maximum retrospective premium assessment. We have
the financial responsibility for any losses that exceed the limits or
for which insurance proceeds are not available because they must
first be used for stabilization and decontamination.



Additionally, as of December 31, 2005 we had purchased $70
million of surety bonds and authorized the issuance of standby let-
ters of credit by financial institutions of $4.2 billion to facilitate
commercial transactions by our subsidiaries with third parties.

Indemnifications
As part of commercial contract negotiations in the normal course of
business, we may sometimes agree to make payments to compen-
sate or indemnify other parties for possible future unfavorable
financial consequences resulting from specified events. The speci-
fied events may involve an adverse judgment in a lawsuit or the
imposition of additional taxes due to a change in tax law or interpre-
tation of the tax law. We are unable to develop an estimate of the
maximum potential amount of future payments under these con-
tracts because events that would obligate us have not yet occurred
or, if any such event has occurred, we have not been notified of its
occurrence. However, at December 31, 2005, we believe future
payments, if any, that could ultimately become payable under these
contract provisions, would not have a material impact on our
results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

Stranded Costs
In 1999, Virginia enacted the Virginia Restructuring Act that estab-
lished a detailed plan to restructure Virginia’s electric utility indus-
try. Under the Virginia Restructuring Act, the generation portion of
our Virginia jurisdictional operations is no longer subject to cost-
based regulation. The legislation’s deregulation of generation was
an event that required us to discontinue the application of SFAS
No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation,
to the Virginia jurisdictional portion of our generation operations
in 1999. In 2004, amendments to the Virginia Restructuring Act
and the Virginia fuel factor statute were adopted. The amend-
ments extend capped base rates by three and one-half years, to
December 31, 2010, unless modified or terminated earlier under
the Virginia Restructuring Act. In addition to extending capped
rates, the amendments:
• Lock in our fuel factor provisions until the earlier of July 1, 2007

or the termination of capped rates under the Virginia Restructur-
ing Act, with no adjustment for previously incurred over-recovery
or under-recovery of fuel costs, thus eliminating deferred fuel
accounting for the Virginia jurisdiction;

• Provide for a one-time adjustment of our fuel factor, effective
July 1, 2007 through December 31, 2010 (unless capped rates
are terminated earlier under the Virginia Restructuring Act), with
no adjustment for previously incurred over-recovery or under-
recovery of fuel costs; and

• End wires charges on the earlier of July 1, 2007 or the termina-
tion of capped rates.
Wires charges are permitted to be collected by utilities until July

1, 2007, under the Virginia Restructuring Act. Our wires charges
are set at zero in 2006 for all rate classes, and as such, Virginia
customers will not pay a fee if they switch from us to a different
competitive service provider.

We believe capped electric retail rates and, where applicable,
wires charges provided under the Virginia Restructuring Act provide
an opportunity to recover our potential stranded costs, depending
on market prices of electricity and other factors. Stranded costs are
those generation-related costs incurred or commitments made by
utilities under cost-based regulation that may not be reasonably
expected to be recovered in a competitive market.

Recovery of our potential stranded costs remains subject to
numerous risks even in the capped-rate environment. These
include, among others, exposure to long-term power purchase
commitment losses, future environmental compliance require-
ments, changes in certain tax laws, nuclear decommissioning
costs, increased fuel costs, inflation, increased capital costs and
recovery of certain other items. At December 31, 2005, our expo-
sure to potential stranded costs included: long-term power pur-
chase agreements that could ultimately be determined to be above
market; generating plants that could possibly become uneconomic
in a deregulated environment; and unfunded obligations for
nuclear plant decommissioning and postretirement benefits not
yet recognized in the financial statements.

Note 24. Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Substantially all of our financial instruments are recorded at fair
value, with the exception of the instruments described below that
are reported at historical cost. Fair values have been determined
using available market information and valuation methodologies
considered appropriate by management. The financial instruments’
carrying amounts and fair values are as follows:

At December 31, 2005 2004

Estimated Estimated
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value(1) Amount Value(1)

(millions)

Long-term debt (2) $15,567 $15,928 $15,446 $16,499
Junior subordinated notes

payable to affiliated trusts 1,416 1,537 1,429 1,595

(1) Fair value is estimated using market prices, where available, and interest rates currently
available for issuance of debt with similar terms and remaining maturities. The carrying
amount of debt issues with short-term maturities and variable rates refinanced at current
market rates is a reasonable estimate of their fair value.

(2) Includes securities due within one year.

Note 25. Credit Risk
Credit risk is our risk of financial loss if counterparties fail to per-
form their contractual obligations. In order to minimize overall credit
risk, we maintain credit policies, including the evaluation of coun-
terparty financial condition, collateral requirements and the use of
standardized agreements that facilitate the netting of cash flows
associated with a single counterparty. In addition, counterparties
may make available collateral, including letters of credit or cash
held as margin deposits, as a result of exceeding agreed-upon
credit limits, or may be required to prepay the transaction. Amounts
reported as margin deposit liabilities represent funds held by us
that resulted from various trading counterparties exceeding agreed-
upon credit limits established by us. Amounts reported as margin
deposit assets represent funds held on deposit by various trading
counterparties that resulted from us exceeding agreed-upon credit
limits established by the counterparties. As of December 31, 2005
and 2004, we had margin deposit assets (reported in other
current assets) of $160 million and $179 million, respectively,
and margin deposit liabilities (reported in other current liabilities)
of $133 million and $28 million, respectively.

We maintain a provision for credit losses based on factors
surrounding the credit risk of our customers, historical trends
and other information. We believe, based on our credit policies
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and our December 31, 2005 provision for credit losses, that it is
unlikely that a material adverse effect on our financial position,
results of operations or cash flows would occur as a result of
counterparty nonperformance.

As a diversified energy company, we transact with major compa-
nies in the energy industry and with commercial and residential
energy consumers. Except for gas and oil exploration and produc-
tion business activities, these transactions principally occur in the
Northeast, Mid-Atlantic and Midwest regions of the United States.
We do not believe that this geographic concentration contributes
significantly to our overall exposure to credit risk. In addition, as a
result of our large and diverse customer base, we are not exposed
to a significant concentration of credit risk for receivables arising
from electric and gas utility operations, including transmission ser-
vices and retail energy sales.

Our exposure to credit risk is concentrated primarily within our
sales of gas and oil production and energy marketing and risk man-
agement activities, including our hedging activities, as we transact
with a smaller, less diverse group of counterparties and transactions
may involve large notional volumes and potentially volatile commod-
ity prices. Energy marketing and risk management activities include
trading of energy-related commodities, marketing of merchant
generation output, structured transactions and the use of financial
contracts for enterprise-wide hedging purposes. At December 31,
2005, gross credit exposure related to these transactions totaled
$1.34 billion, reflecting the unrealized gains for contracts carried at
fair value plus any outstanding receivables (net of payables, where
netting agreements exist), prior to the application of collateral. After
the application of collateral, our credit exposure is reduced to
$1.20 billion. Of this amount, investment grade counterparties
represent 69% and no single counterparty exceeded 10%.

Note 26. Equity Method Investments and
Affiliated Transactions
At December 31, 2005 and 2004, our equity method investments
totaled $331 million and $387 million, respectively, and equity earn-
ings on these investments totaled $43 million in 2005, $34 million
in 2004 and $25 million in 2003. We received dividends from these
investments of $28 million, $37 million and $28 million in 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively. Our equity method investments are
reported on our Consolidated Balance Sheets in other investments.
Equity earnings on these investments are reported on our Consoli-
dated Statements of Income in other income (loss).

International Investments
CNG International (CNGI) was engaged in energy-related activities
outside of the United States, primarily through equity investments
in Australia and Argentina. After completing the CNG acquisition,
we committed to a plan to dispose of the entire CNGI operation
consistent with our strategy to focus on our core businesses.

During 2003, we recognized impairment losses totaling
$84 million ($69 million after-tax) related primarily to investments
in a pipeline business located in Australia and a small generation
facility in Kauai, Hawaii that was sold in December 2003 for cash
proceeds of $42 million. In 2004, we received cash proceeds of
$52 million and recognized a benefit in other income of $27 million
related to the sale of a portion of the Australian pipeline business.

At December 31, 2005, our remaining CNGI investment is
accounted for at its fair value of $4 million. We continue to market
this investment for sale.

Note 27. Dominion Capital, Inc.
We have substantially exited the core DCI financial services,
commercial lending and residential mortgage lending businesses.

Our Consolidated Balance Sheets reflect the following
DCI assets:

At December 31, 2005 2004

(millions)

Current assets $108 $ 26
Available-for-sale securities 286 335
Other investments 89 102
Property, plant and equipment, net 10 15
Deferred charges and other assets 87 121

Total $580 $599

Securitizations of Financial Assets
At December 31, 2005 and 2004, DCI held $286 million and
$335 million, respectively, of retained interests from the securitiza-
tion of financial assets, which are classified as available-for-sale
securities. The retained interests resulted from prior year securitiza-
tions of commercial loans receivable in collateralized loan obliga-
tion (CLO), collateralized debt obligation (CDO) and collateralized
mortgage obligation (CMO) transactions.

In connection with ongoing efforts to divest our remaining finan-
cial services investments, we executed certain agreements in the
fourth quarter of 2003 that resulted in the sale of commercial
finance receivables, a note receivable, an undivided interest in a
lease and equity investments to a new CDO structure. In exchange
for the sale of these assets with an aggregate carrying amount of
$123 million, we received $113 million cash and a $7 million 3%
subordinated secured note in the new CDO structure and recorded
an impairment charge of $3 million. The equity interests in the new
CDO structure, a voting interest entity, are held by an entity that is
not affiliated with us.

Simultaneous with the above transaction, the new CDO struc-
ture acquired all of the loans held by two special purpose trusts that
were established in 2001 and 2000 to facilitate DCI’s securitization
of certain loan receivables. DCI’s original transfers of the loans to
the CLO trusts qualified as sales under SFAS No. 125, Accounting
for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments
of Liabilities. Only after receiving consents from non-affiliated third
parties, the CLO trusts’ governing agreements were amended to
permit the sale of their financial assets into the new CDO structure
in 2003. In consideration for the sale of loans to the new CDO
structure, the trusts received $243 million of subordinated secured
3% notes in the new CDO structure and $119 million in cash, which
was used by the CLO trusts to redeem all of their outstanding senior
debt securities. As of December 31, 2003, we still held residual
interests in the CLO trusts, the value of which depended solely on
the subordinated 3% notes issued by the new CDO. In connection
with a review of the remaining assets in the CLO trusts, DCI
recorded impairments totaling $23 million in 2003. We received
our distribution of the new CDO notes in the first quarter of
2004 upon liquidation of the trusts.
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In February 2005 the CDO structure was recapitalized to allow
for additional assets. The recapitalization allows the collateral man-
ager a twelve month ramp-up period to invest in additional eligible
securities of a higher quality than previously held by the CDO struc-
ture. The additional assets will improve the credit quality and diver-
sity of the portfolio thereby reducing the overall risk of the portfolio.

At the closing date of the transaction in February 2005, DCI
exchanged its original $258 million Class B Notes, 3% paid-in-kind
(PIK) interest for $100 million Class B-1 Notes, 7.5% current pay
interest and $158 million Class B-2 Notes, 3% PIK interest. DCI
also has a commitment to fund up to $15 million of liquidity.

There were no mortgage securitizations in 2004 or 2005. Activ-
ity for the subordinated notes related to the new CDO structure,
retained interests from securitizations of CMOs and the CLO and
CDO retained interests is summarized as follows:

Retained
Interests—

CMO CLO/CDO

(millions)

Balance at January 1, 2004 $141 $ 272
Liquidation of retained interest in CLO trusts — (231)
Distributions of new CDO notes to Dominion — 235
Interest income — 9
Amortization (1) —
Cash received (27) (4)
Fair value adjustment (46) (13)

Balance at December 31, 2004 $ 67 $ 268
Interest income — 4
Proceeds from the sale of CDOs — (16)
Other cash received (1) (8)
Fair value adjustment (28) —

Balance at December 31, 2005 $ 38 $ 248

Key Economic Assumptions and Sensitivity Analysis
Retained interests in CLOs and CDOs are subject to credit loss and
interest rate risk. Retained interests in CMOs are subject to credit
loss, prepayment and interest rate risk. Given the declining residual
balances and the lower weighted-average lives due to the passage
of time, adverse changes of up to 20% in assumed prepayment
speeds, credit losses and interest rates are estimated in each
case to have less than a $3 million pre-tax impact on future results
of operations.

Impairment Losses
The table below presents a summary of asset impairment losses
associated with DCI operations.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003

(millions)

Retained interests from CMO securitizations(1) $25 $46 $ 36
Retained interests from CLO/CDO securitizations(1) — 13 15
2003 CDO transactions — — 23
Venture capital and other equity investments(2) 10 26 16
Deferred tax assets(3) — — 26
Goodwill impairment(4) — — 18

Total $35 $85 $134

(1) As a result of economic conditions and historically low interest rates and the resulting impact
on credit losses and prepayment speeds, we recorded impairments of our retained interests
from CMO, CDO and CLO securitizations in 2005, 2004 and 2003. We updated our credit loss
and prepayment assumptions to reflect our recent experience.

(2) Other impairments were recorded primarily due to asset dispositions.
(3) Represents an increase in the valuation allowance related to federal tax loss carryforwards

not expected to be utilized.
(4) See Note 13 for discussion of goodwill impairments.

Note 28. Operating Segments
During the fourth quarter of 2004, we performed an evaluation
of our Dominion Clearinghouse (Clearinghouse) trading and market-
ing operations, which resulted in a decision to exit certain energy
trading activities and instead focus on the optimization of company
assets. The financial impact of the Clearinghouse’s optimization of
company assets is now reported as part of the results of the busi-
ness segments operating the related assets, in order to better
reflect the performance of the underlying assets. As such, activities
such as fuel management, hedging, selling the output of, contract-
ing and optimizing the Dominion Generation assets are reported in
the Dominion Generation segment. Activities related to corporate-
wide enterprise commodity risk management and optimization ser-
vices that are not focused on any particular business segment are
reported in the Corporate segment. Aggregation of gas supply and
associated gas trading and marketing activities, as well as the prior
year results of certain energy trading activities exited in connection
with the reorganization continue to be reported in the Dominion
Energy segment.

Additionally, in January 2005 in connection with the reorganiza-
tion, commodity derivative contracts held by the Clearinghouse were
assessed to determine if they contribute to the optimization of our
assets. As a result of this review, certain commodity derivative con-
tracts previously designated as held for trading purposes are now
held for non-trading purposes. Under our derivative income state-
ment classification policy described in Note 2, all changes in fair
value, including amounts realized upon settlement, related to the
reclassified contracts were previously presented in operating rev-
enue on a net basis. Upon reclassification as non-trading, all
unrealized changes in fair value and settlements related to those
derivative contracts that are financially settled are now reported in
other operations and maintenance expense. The statement of
income related amounts for those reclassified derivative sales con-
tracts that are physically settled are now presented in operating rev-
enue, while the statement of income related amounts for physically
settled purchase contracts are reported in operating expenses.

Our company is organized primarily on the basis of products and
services sold in the United States. We manage our operations
through the following segments:

Dominion Delivery includes our regulated electric and gas dis-
tribution and customer service business, as well as nonregulated
retail energy marketing operations.

Dominion Energy includes our tariff-based electric transmission,
natural gas transmission pipeline and underground natural gas stor-
age businesses and an LNG facility. It also includes certain natural
gas production and producer services, which consist of aggregation
of gas supply, market-based services related to gas transportation
and storage and associated gas trading and the prior year’s results
of certain energy trading activities exited in December 2004.

Dominion Generation includes the generation operations of
our electric utility and merchant fleet as well as energy marketing
and risk management activities associated with the optimization of
generation assets.

Dominion E&P includes our gas and oil exploration, develop-
ment and production operations. Operations are located in several
major producing basins in the lower 48 states, including the outer
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continental shelf and deepwater areas of the Gulf of Mexico, and
Western Canada.

Corporate includes our corporate, service company and other
functions (including unallocated debt), corporate-wide enterprise
commodity risk management and optimization services, the
remaining assets of DCI and the net impact of our discontinued
telecommunications operations that were sold in May 2004. In
addition, the contribution to net income by our primary operating
segments is determined based on a measure of profit that execu-
tive management believes represents the segments’ core earnings.
As a result, certain specific items attributable to those segments
are not included in profit measures evaluated by executive manage-
ment in assessing the segment’s performance or allocating
resources among the segments and are instead reported in the
Corporate segment. In 2005, we reported net expenses of $505
million in the Corporate segment attributable to our operating seg-
ments. The net expenses in 2005 primarily related to the impact of
the following:
• A $556 million loss ($357 million after-tax) related to the dis-

continuance of hedge accounting in August and September
2005 for certain gas and oil hedges resulting from an interrup-
tion of gas and oil production in the Gulf of Mexico caused by
Hurricanes Katrina and Rita and subsequent changes in the fair
value of those hedges during the third quarter, attributable to
Dominion E&P;

• A $77 million charge ($47 million after-tax) resulting from the
termination of a long-term power purchase agreement, attribut-
able to Dominion Generation; and

• A $51 million charge related to credit exposure associated with
the bankruptcy of Calpine Corporation, attributable to Dominion
Generation. We have not recognized any deferred tax benefits
related to the charge, since realization of tax benefits is not
anticipated at this time based on our expected future tax profile.
In 2004, we reported net expenses of $224 million in the Cor-

porate segment attributable to our operating segments. The net
expenses in 2004 primarily related to the impact of the following:
• A $184 million charge ($112 million after-tax) related to our

interest in a long-term power tolling contract that was divested
in 2005, attributable to Dominion Generation;

• A $96 million loss ($61 million after-tax) related to the discon-
tinuance of hedge accounting in September 2004 for certain oil

hedges resulting from an interruption of oil production in the
Gulf of Mexico caused by Hurricane Ivan and subsequent
changes in the fair value of those hedges during the third quar-
ter, attributable to Dominion E&P; and

• A $71 million charge ($43 million after-tax) resulting from the
termination of three long-term power purchase agreements,
attributable to Dominion Generation.
In 2003, we reported net expenses of $220 million in the Cor-

porate segment attributable to our operating segments. The net
expenses in 2003 primarily related to the impact of the following:
• $21 million net after-tax benefit representing the cumulative

effect of adopting new accounting principles, as described in
Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements, including:
• SFAS No. 143: a $180 million after-tax benefit attributable

to: Dominion Generation ($188 million after-tax benefit);
Dominion E&P ($7 million after-tax charge); and Dominion
Delivery ($1 million after-tax charge);

• EITF 02-3: a $67 million after-tax charge attributable to
Dominion Energy;

• Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. C20: a
$75 million after-tax charge attributable to Dominion
Generation; and

• FIN 46R: a $17 million after-tax charge attributable to
Dominion Generation;

• $197 million ($122 million after-tax) of incremental restoration
expenses associated with Hurricane Isabel, attributable primarily
to Dominion Delivery;

• A $105 million charge ($65 million after-tax) for the termination
of long-term power purchase agreements attributable to
Dominion Generation;

• A $64 million charge ($39 million after-tax) for the restructuring
and termination of certain electric sales agreements attributable
to Dominion Generation; and

• $26 million of severance costs ($15 million after-tax) for work-
force reductions during the first quarter of 2003, attributable to:
• Dominion Generation ($8 million after-tax);
• Dominion Energy ($2 million after-tax);
• Dominion Delivery ($4 million after-tax); and
• Dominion Exploration & Production ($1 million after-tax).
Intersegment sales and transfers are based on underlying con-

tractual arrangements and agreements and may result in interseg-
ment profit or loss.
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The following table presents segment information pertaining to our operations:

Dominion Dominion Dominion Dominion Adjustments & Consolidated
Year Ended December 31, Delivery Energy Generation E&P Corporate Eliminations Total

(millions)

2005
Total revenue from external customers $4,298 $1,673 $8,068 $2,644 $ 29 $ 1,329 $18,041
Intersegment revenue 39 1,407 203 246 588 (2,483) —

Total operating revenue 4,337 3,080 8,271 2,890 617 (1,154) 18,041
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 329 121 366 563 35 (2) 1,412
Equity in earnings of equity method investees 1 13 21 3 5 — 43
Interest income 11 12 61 15 247 (251) 95
Interest and related charges 191 84 289 140 538 (251) 991
Income tax expense (benefit) 253 212 218 324 (425) — 582
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — — — — 5 — 5
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle, net of tax — — — — (6) — (6)
Net income (loss) 448 319 402 565 (701) — 1,033
Investment in equity method investees 5 97 112 42 75 — 331
Capital expenditures 532 399 724 1,690 13 — 3,358
Total assets (billions) 10.4 6.6 17.6 15.4 16.0 (13.3) 52.7

2004
Total revenue from external customers $3,757 $2,047 $4,925 $2,291 $ 69 $ 902 $13,991
Intersegment revenue 77 384 793 157 509 (1,920) —

3,834 2,431 5,718 2,448 578 (1,018) 13,991
316 116 282 558 35 (2) 1,305

1 12 11 (1) 11 — 34
8 14 52 2 269 (244) 101

151 62 254 94 622 (244) 939
256 119 321 314 (310) — 700

— — — — (15) — (15)
466 190 525 595 (527) — 1,249

5 94 162 40 86 — 387
441 354 623 1,311 21 — 2,750
9.2 7.2 14.5 11.3 14.3 (11.1) 45.4

2003
Total revenue from external customers $3,287 $1,863 $4,482 $1,858 $ 149 $ 456 $12,095
Intersegment revenue 61 493 293 150 591 (1,588) —

3,348 2,356 4,775 2,008 740 (1,132) 12,095
302 104 532 49 — 1,216

— 12 13 6 (6) — 25
14 8 52 1 271 (237) 109

171 64 239 82 656 (237) 975
236 223 312 220 (394) — 597

— — — — (642) — (642)

— — — — 11 — 11
453 346 512 415 (1,408) — 318

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, approximately 2% of our total long-lived assets were associated with international operations. For
the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, approximately 1%, 2% and 2%, respectively, of operating revenues were associated
with international operations.
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Note 29. Gas and Oil Producing Activities (unaudited)

Capitalized Costs
The aggregate amounts of costs capitalized for gas and oil producing activities, and related aggregate amounts of accumulated depreciation,
depletion and amortization follow:

At December 31, 2005 2004

(millions)

Capitalized costs:
Proved properties $ 9,929 $8,246
Unproved properties 1,775 1,623

11,704 9,869

Accumulated depletion:
Proved properties 2,513 1,921
Unproved properties 109 109

2,622 2,030

Net capitalized costs $ 9,082 $7,839
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Total Costs Incurred
The following costs were incurred in gas and oil producing activities:

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003

United United United
Total States Canada Total States Canada Total States Canada

(millions)

Property acquisition costs:
Proved properties $ 118 $ 118 — $ 20 $ 20 — $ 181 $ 181 —
Unproved properties 151 137 $14 116 102 $ 14 133 125 $ 8

269 255 14 136 122 14 314 306 8

Exploration costs 235 230 5 213 199 14 291 266 25

Development costs(1) 1,207 1,128 79 915 841 74 667 604 63

Total $1,711 $1,613 $98 $1,264 $1,162 $102 $1,272 $1,176 $96

(1) Development costs incurred for proved undeveloped reserves were $284 million, $172 million and $182 million for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Results of Operations
We caution that the following standardized disclosures required by the FASB do not represent our results of operations based on our historical
financial statements. In addition to requiring different determinations of revenue and costs, the disclosures exclude the impact of interest
expense and corporate overhead.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003

United United United
Total States Canada Total States Canada Total States Canada

(millions)

Revenue (net of royalties) from:
Sales to nonaffiliated companies $1,499 $1,369 $130 $1,526 $1,297 $229 $1,736 $1,552 $184
Transfers to other operations 268 268 — 195 195 — 185 185 —

Total 1,767 1,637 130 1,721 1,492 229 1,921 1,737 184

Less:
Production (lifting) costs 443 406 37 394 309 85 357 294 63
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 564 525 39 560 497 63 526 470 56
Income tax expense 283 264 19 295 266 29 356 350 6

Results of operations $ 477 $ 442 $ 35 $ 472 $ 420 $ 52 $ 682 $ 623 $ 59



Company-Owned Reserves
Estimated net quantities of proved gas and oil (including condensate) reserves in the United States and Canada at December 31, 2005,
2004 and 2003, and changes in the reserves during those years, are shown in the two schedules that follow:

2005 2004 2003

United United United
Total States Canada Total States Canada Total States Canada

(billion cubic feet)

Proved developed and undeveloped
reserves—Gas

At January 1 4,910 4,814 96 5,161 4,718 443 4,885 4,387 498
Changes in reserves:

Extensions, discoveries and other additions 299 276 23 387 342 45 810 767 43
Revisions of previous estimates(1) 73 71 2 2 141 (139) (152) (94) (58)
Production (290) (275) (15) (348) (312) (36) (375) (335) (40)
Purchases of gas in place 55 55 — 10 10 — 133 133 —
Sales of gas in place (85) (85) — (302) (85) (217) (140) (140) —

At December 31 4,962 4,856 106 4,910 4,814 96 5,161 4,718 443

Proved developed reserves—Gas
At January 1 3,685 3,591 94 3,834 3,474 360 3,865 3,479 386
At December 31 3,706 3,605 101 3,685 3,591 94 3,834 3,474 360

Proved developed and undeveloped
reserves—Oil

(thousands of barrels)

At January 1 164,062 144,007 20,055 204,509 149,707 54,802 204,650 150,577 54,073
Changes in reserves:

Extensions, discoveries and other additions 6,681 5,399 1,282 11,615 7,699 3,916 15,114 7,887 7,227
Revisions of previous estimates(2) 63,884 65,264 (1,380) (22,925) (1,989) (20,936) 1,489 5,348 (3,859)
Production (15,575) (14,714) (861) (13,783) (11,258) (2,525) (12,251) (9,612) (2,639)
Purchases of oil in place 69 69 — 666 666 — 380 380 —
Sales of oil in place (1,423) (1,423) — (16,020) (818) (15,202) (4,873) (4,873) —

At December 31 217,698 198,602 19,096 164,062 144,007 20,055 204,509 149,707 54,802

Proved developed reserves—Oil
At January 1 113,992 102,152 11,840 88,379 55,530 32,849 94,205 59,484 34,721
At December 31 152,889 145,735 7,154 113,992 102,152 11,840 88,379 55,530 32,849

(1) Approximately 135 bcf of the 2004 Canadian reserve revisions pertained to properties sold in 2004 and resulted from performance-based reserve reclassifications from proved undeveloped
to unproved.

(2) The 2005 U.S. revision is primarily due to an increase in plant liquids that resulted from a contractual change for a portion of our gas processed by third parties. We now take title to and market the
natural gas liquids extracted from this gas. Approximately 17 million barrels of the 2004 Canadian reserve revisions pertained to properties sold in 2004 and resulted from performance-based reserve
re-determinations on two British Columbia enhanced oil recovery projects.
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Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows and Changes Therein
The following tabulation has been prepared in accordance with the FASB’s rules for disclosure of a standardized measure of discounted future
net cash flows relating to proved gas and oil reserve quantities that we own:

2005 2004 2003

United United United
Total States Canada Total States Canada Total States Canada

(millions)

Future cash inflows(1) $63,004 $61,112 $1,892 $36,819 $35,735 $1,084 $36,486 $32,922 $3,564
Less:

Future development costs(2) 1,979 1,877 102 1,527 1,488 39 1,505 1,391 114
Future production costs 8,127 7,718 409 5,609 5,302 307 5,582 4,765 817
Future income tax expense 19,019 18,527 492 10,152 9,909 243 9,457 8,715 742

Future cash flows 33,879 32,990 889 19,531 19,036 495 19,942 18,051 1,891
Less annual discount (10% a year) 18,916 18,560 356 10,505 10,275 230 10,709 9,745 964

Standardized measure of discounted future
net cash flows $14,963 $14,430 $ 533 $ 9,026 $ 8,761 $ 265 $ 9,233 $ 8,306 $ 927

(1) Amounts exclude the effect of derivative instruments designated as hedges of future sales of production at year-end.
(2) Estimated future development costs, excluding abandonment, for proved undeveloped reserves are estimated to be $594 million, $330 million and $176 million for 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively.

In the foregoing determination of future cash inflows, sales prices for gas and oil were based on contractual arrangements or market prices
at year-end. Future costs of developing and producing the proved gas and oil reserves reported at the end of each year shown were based on
costs determined at each such year end, assuming the continuation of existing economic conditions. Future income taxes were computed by
applying the appropriate year-end or future statutory tax rate to future pretax net cash flows, less the tax basis of the properties involved, and
giving effect to tax deductions, permanent differences and tax credits.

It is not intended that the FASB’s standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows represent the fair market value of our proved
reserves. We caution that the disclosures shown are based on estimates of proved reserve quantities and future production schedules which
are inherently imprecise and subject to revision, and the 10% discount rate is arbitrary. In addition, costs and prices as of the measurement
date are used in the determinations, and no value may be assigned to probable or possible reserves.

The following tabulation is a summary of changes between the total standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows at the
beginning and end of each year:

2005 2004 2003

(millions)

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows at January 1 $ 9,026 $ 9,233 $ 7,805
Changes in the year resulting from:

Sales and transfers of gas and oil produced during the year, less production costs (2,502) (2,004) (1,997)
Prices and production and development costs related to future production 8,929 1,656 480
Extensions, discoveries and other additions, less production and development costs 1,396 1,118 1,920
Previously estimated development costs incurred during the year 284 172 182
Revisions of previous quantity estimates 27 (734) (918)
Accretion of discount 1,367 1,359 1,149
Income taxes (3,659) (291) (679)
Other purchases and sales of proved reserves in place 140 (878) 84
Other (principally timing of production) (45) (605) 1,207

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows at December 31 $14,963 $ 9,026 $ 9,233
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Note 30. Quarterly Financial and Common Stock Data (unaudited)
A summary of our quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 follows. Amounts reflect all adjustments,
consisting of only normal recurring accruals, necessary in the opinion of management for a fair statement of the results for the interim peri-
ods. Results for interim periods may fluctuate as a result of weather conditions, changes in rates and other factors.

First Second Third Fourth Full
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year

(millions, except per share amounts)

2005
Operating revenue $4,736 $3,646 $4,564 $5,095 $18,041
Income from operations 873 705 185 676 2,439
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of

change in accounting principle 429 332 10 263 1,034
Net income 429 332 15 257 1,033

Basic EPS:
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of

change in accounting principle 1.26 0.98 0.03 0.76 3.02
Net income 1.26 0.98 0.04 0.74 3.02

Diluted EPS:
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of

change in accounting principle 1.25 0.97 0.03 0.76 3.00
Net income 1.25 0.97 0.04 0.74 3.00

Dividends paid per share 0.67 0.67 0.67 0.67 2.68
Common stock prices (high-low) $76.01-66.51 $76.87-67.75 $86.87-72.15 $86.97-73.50 $86.97-66.51

2004
Operating revenue $3,884 $3,045 $3,296 $3,766 $13,991
Income from operations 893 586 755 502 2,736
Income from continuing operations 445 258 337 224 1,264
Net income 437 251 337 224 1,249

Basic EPS:
Income from continuing operations 1.37 0.79 1.02 0.67 3.84
Net income 1.35 0.76 1.02 0.67 3.80

Diluted EPS:
Income from continuing operations 1.36 0.79 1.02 0.67 3.82
Net income 1.34 0.76 1.02 0.67 3.78

Dividends paid per share 0.645 0.645 0.645 0.665 2.60
Common stock prices (high-low) $65.85-61.20 $64.75-60.78 $65.87-62.07 $68.85-62.97 $68.85-60.78
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Our 2005 results include the impact of the following
significant items:
• First quarter results include a $47 million after-tax charge

resulting from the termination of a long-term power purchase
agreement, $31 million of after-tax losses related to the discon-
tinuance of hedge accounting for certain oil hedges, resulting
from a delay in reaching anticipated production levels in the
Gulf of Mexico, and subsequent changes in the fair value
of those hedges and a $28 million after-tax benefit due to
the recognition of business interruption insurance revenue
associated with the recovery of delayed gas and oil production
due to Hurricane Ivan.

• Second quarter results include an $86 million after-tax benefit
due to the final settlement of business interruption insurance
claims associated with Hurricane Ivan.

• Third quarter results include a $357 million after-tax loss related
to the discontinuance of hedge accounting for certain gas and oil
hedges, resulting from an interruption of gas and oil production
in the Gulf of Mexico caused by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita, and
subsequent changes in the fair value of those hedges.

• Fourth quarter results include a $51 million after-tax charge to
establish an allowance related to credit exposure associated with
the bankruptcy of Calpine Corporation and a $77 million after-tax
benefit reflecting the impact of a decrease in gas and oil prices
on hedges that were de-designated following Hurricanes Katrina
and Rita.
Our 2004 results include the impact of the following

significant items:
• Third quarter results include a $61 million after-tax loss related

to the discontinuance of hedge accounting for certain oil
hedges, resulting from an interruption of oil production in the
Gulf of Mexico caused by Hurricane Ivan, and subsequent
changes in the fair value of those hedges.

• Fourth quarter results include a $112 million after-tax charge
related to the sale of our interest in a long-term power tolling
contract that was divested in 2005, a $64 million after-tax
charge resulting from the termination of two long-term power
purchase agreements, and a $61 million after-tax benefit due to
the recognition of business interruption insurance revenue asso-
ciated with delayed gas and oil production due to Hurricane Ivan.



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

Note 31. Subsequent Event
On March 1, 2006, we entered into an agreement with Equitable
Resources, Inc. to sell two of our wholly-owned regulated gas distri-
bution subsidiaries, The Peoples Natural Gas Company and Hope
Gas, Inc., for $969.6 million plus adjustments to reflect capital
expenditures and changes in working capital. The transaction is
expected to close by the first quarter of 2007, subject to state
regulatory approvals in Pennsylvania and West Virginia, as well as
approval under the federal Hart-Scott-Rodino Act. The carrying
amounts of the major classes of assets and liabilities to be
disposed of are as follows:

At December 31, 2005 2004

(millions)

Assets
Current assets $ 438 $ 291
Property, plant and equipment, net 694 662
Deferred charges and other assets 107 89

Total assets $1,239 $1,042

Liabilities
Current liabilities $ 323 $ 200
Deferred credits and other liabilities 209 194

Total liabilities $ 532 $ 394
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Directors

Peter W. Brown, M.D., 63
Physician, Virginia Surgical Associates

Ronald J. Calise, 57
Former Managing Director, Global Power Group,
Investment Banking Division, Lehman Brothers

Thos. E. Capps, 70
Chairman, Dominion Resources, Inc.

George A. Davidson, Jr., 67
Retired Chairman, Dominion Resources, Inc.

Thomas F. Farrell, II, 51
President and Chief Executive Officer,
Dominion Resources, Inc.

John W. Harris, 58
President, Lincoln Harris, LLC (real estate consulting firm)

Robert S. Jepson, Jr., 63
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Jepson Associates, Inc. (private investments)
Chairman, Jepson Vineyards, Ltd.

Mark J. Kington, 46
Managing Director,
X-10 Capital Management, LLC (private investments)

Benjamin J. Lambert, III, 69
Optometrist

Richard L. Leatherwood, 66
Retired President and Chief Executive Officer, CSX Equipment

Margaret A. McKenna, 60
President, Lesley University

Frank S. Royal, M.D., 66
Physician

S. Dallas Simmons, 66
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer,
Dallas Simmons & Associates (management consulting firm)

David A. Wollard, 68
Founding Chairman of the Board, Emeritus, Exempla Healthcare
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Executive Officers

Thomas F. Farrell, II, 51
President and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas N. Chewning, 60
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Mary C. Doswell, 47
President and Chief Executive Officer,
Dominion Resources Services

Jay L. Johnson, 59
President and Chief Executive Officer, Dominion Delivery

Paul D. Koonce, 46
Chief Executive Officer, Dominion Energy

Mark F. McGettrick, 48
President and Chief Executive Officer, Dominion Generation

Duane C. Radtke, 57
President and Chief Executive Officer,
Dominion Exploration & Production

Eva S. Hardy, 61
Senior Vice President — External Affairs
& Corporate Communications

G. Scott Hetzer, 49
Senior Vice President and Treasurer

James L. Sanderlin, 64
Senior Vice President — Law

Steven A. Rogers, 44
Vice President, Controller and Principal Accounting Officer
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Dominion Resources Services, Inc. is the transfer agent and
registrar for Dominion’s common stock. Our Shareholder Services
staff provides personal assistance for any inquiries Monday
through Friday from 9a.m. to noon and from 1 p.m. to 4 p.m.
(ET). In addition, automated information is available 24 hours a
day through our voice response system.

1-800-552-4034 (toll free)
1-804-775-2500

Major press releases and other company information may be
obtained by visiting our Web site at www.dom.com. Shareholders
may also obtain account-specific information by visiting this site.
To sign up for this service, visit www.dom.com and click on
“Investors,” then point to “Stock Information” and select “Access
Your Account.” Once you have accessed the sign-in page, click
on “First Time Visitor” in the upper- left corner of the screen and
follow the directions for “New Member Sign Up.” After you have
signed up, you will be able to monitor your account, make
changes and review your Dominion Direct® statements at your
convenience.

Direct Stock Purchase Plan
You may buy Dominion common stock through Dominion Direct®.
Please contact Shareholder Services for a prospectus and enroll-
ment form or visit www.dom.com.

Common Stock Listing
New York Stock Exchange
Trading symbol: D

Common Stock Price Range

2005 2004

High Low High Low

First Quarter $76.01 $ 66.51 $65.85 $61.20
Second Quarter 76.87 67.75 64.75 60.78
Third Quarter 86.87 72.15 65.87 62.07
Fourth Quarter 86.97 73.50 68.85 62.97
Year $86.97 $ 66.51 $68.85 $60.78

Dividends on Dominion common stock are paid as declared by
the board. Dividends are typically paid on the 20th of March,
June, September and December. Dividends can be paid by check
or electronic deposit, or they may be reinvested.

On December 31, 2005, there were approximately 168,000 reg-
istered shareholders, including approximately 74,000 certificate
holders.

Certifications
Dominion has submitted to the New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE) a certification by its chief executive officer that he is not
aware of any violation by the company of NYSE corporate gover-
nance listing standards. Dominion has also filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission certifications by its chief
executive officer and chief financial officer as Exhibits 31.1 and
31.2 in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005.

Annual Meeting
This year’s Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Dominion
Resources, Inc. will be held Friday, April 28, at 9:30 a.m. (ET)
at the Greater Richmond Convention Center located at
403 North 3rd Street, Richmond, Virginia.

Corporate Street Address
Dominion Resources, Inc.
120 Tredegar Street
Richmond, Virginia 23219

Mailing Address
Dominion Resources, Inc.
P.O. Box 26532
Richmond, Virginia 23261-6532

Web Site
www.dom.com

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Deloitte & Touche LLP
Richmond, Virginia

Shareholder Inquiries
Shareholder_Services@dom.com

Dominion Resources Services, Inc.
Shareholder Services
P.O. Box 26532
Richmond, Virginia 23261-6532

Additional Information
Copies of Dominion’s Annual Report, Proxy Statement and
reports on Form 10-K, Form 10-Q and Form 8-K are available
without charge. These items can be viewed by visiting
www.dom.com, or requests for these items can be made
by writing to:

Corporate Secretary
Dominion Resources, Inc.
P.O. Box 26532
Richmond, Virginia 23261-6532

Electronic Reports
Our proxy statement and annual report are available electroni-
cally. Please refer to the proxy card that was mailed to sharehold-
ers with this annual report for more information.

Shareholder Information
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